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Financial Summary
B

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
RMB’000 2019 2018  Year-on-year (%)
BZE20194F #HZE20184F
12A31H 12H31H
AR T LEE IFFE [& £k (%)
Revenue Wz 845,820 783,364 8.0%
Gross profit EF 106,828 95,611 11.7%
Profit before tax BRI AI i A 56,134 62,469 -10.1%
Profit for the year from RERFESEEBNFE N
continuing operations 36,304 46,623 22.1%
Profit and total comprehensive RATHA ANEEEN REH
income attributable to the owner W 4E5E
of the Company 36,282 46,149 -21.4%
Earnings per share on continuing and FERE RIS EESTREAR RMB12 cents RMB16 cents
discontinued operations AR¥125 AR#165 -25.0%
REVENUE g
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
RMB’000 2019 2018  Year-on-year (%)
BZE2019F #HZE2018%F
12A31H 1243311
AR Fr LLFE IFFE [& £k (%)
TV advertising services BREERE 309,082 527,043 -41.4%
Online advertising services HFTEERS 433,593 195,839 121.4%
Outdoor advertising services PINEE RS 63,441 51,568 23.0%
Other advertising services HhEE R 39,704 8,914 345.4%
845,820 783,364 8.0%
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Awards and Recognition
BRIFEREY

NN

COMPANY HONOURS AND AWARDS

Name of award:
Greater China Region Content Marketing Company of The Year (K4 &
FEANBTEHEAR)

Time Period:
May 2019

Awarded by:
IAl International Advertising Executive Committee (AIBIR E & B E &)

Award description:

IAl International Advertising Awards is jointly hosted by China Advertising
Association of Commerce, National Advertising Institute, School of
Advertising of Communication University of China, jointly organised by
MBA Institute of Communication University of China and IAl International
Advertising Institute. For the purposes of “building platform for industrial
exchanges, witnessing advertising development of the age, aiming at
effect of brand marketing and providing reference of creativity strategy”,
it boasts a panel of judges comprising firm owners, marketing and brand
managers, advertising workers, media workers, academic masters in
advertising media and celebrities. In the 19th IAl International Advertising
Awards, leveraging on its professional services and strong practical
capabilities, Beijing Ruicheng stand out from various participating
companies and won Greater China Region Content Marketing Company
of The Year.

Award:
Five Star Alliance Business Partner of 2019 (FL 2kt B2019FE HEAEE
£H19)

Time Period:
October 2019

Awarded by:
Five Star Alliance (F2H#82) (Hubei Satellite TV, Guangdong Satellite TV,
Sichuan Satellite TV, Henan Satellite TV and Heilongjiang Satellite TV)

Award description:

Hubei Satellite TV, Guangdong Satellite TV, Sichuan Satellite TV, Henan
Satellite TV and Heilongjiang Satellite TV jointly promote the “Five Star
Alliance” cooperation plan, by consolidating the strength of five satellite
TV channels; they provide a one-stop integrated marketing services
for various brand customers. Adhering to the concept of “cooperation,
development and win-win”, the “Five Star Alliance” has been continuously
committed to exploring new paths for development for many years, so as
to achieve diversified content, diversified services, industrialised operations
and enhance the competitiveness of platforms. The Group consolidates
the strengths and communication values of five satellite TV channels to link
the diversified content and diversified services and provide various brand
customers with personalised communication strategies and marketing
services.
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Awards and Recognition
BRIFEREY

NN

PROFESSIONAL HONOURS AND AWARDS

Award-winning work:
Project cooperation case — strategic jointly integrated marketing of China
Mobile & Kugou Music

Award:

19th Al International Advertising Awards: Advertising Agent and Advertiser
Category — Mobile Marketing Case — Mobile Application Class — Bronze
Prize (5T UEIAIBIR E & 8- RIE E S /B 82 85/APPHE- 17 59)

Time Period:
April 2019

Awarded by:
IAl International Advertising Executive Committee (AIFIFR &5 B E &)

Award description:

IAl International Advertising Awards is jointly hosted by China Advertising
Association of Commerce, National Advertising Institute, School of
Advertising of Communication University of China, jointly organised by
MBA Institute of Communication University of China and IAl International
Advertising Institute. For the purposes of “building platform for industrial
exchanges, witnessing advertising development of the age, aiming at
effect of brand marketing and providing reference of creativity strategy”,
it boasts a panel of judges comprising firm owners, marketing and brand
managers, advertising workers, media workers, academic masters in
advertising media and celebrities. The award-winning work demonstrates
the industry’s recognition towards the Group’s online marketing expertise
and services.

Award-winning work:
Cooperation case — Casarte (RiE) “Knowledge is Power” (Rl 5h = 71

=

=)

Award:
Eleventh China Advertising Golden Vision Awards: Gold Prize for TV Case
E+-EESILERBRHTH

Time Period:
May 2019

Awarded by:
The Committee of the China Advertising Golden Vision Awards (B&E&
RIEAZL )

Award description:

China Advertising Golden Vision Awards is hosted by Advertiser (formerly
known as Advertiser Magazine), and academically supported by the
School of Advertising of the Communication University. China Advertising
Golden Vision Awards is based on the advanced concepts and operating
strategies of the five global advertising awards, including Cannes, Mobius,
New York, Cleo and London awards and incorporated the request of Effie
Awards. It is a professional award in the field of marketing communication
in Greater China which combined with local actuality. The award-winning
work created a new model for artist’s digital marketing, successfully
integrated knowledge with brands and gained unanimous recognition from
the industry.
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Awards and Recognition
BRIFEREY

NN

Award-winning work:
Project cooperation case — Casarte (KIE#) “Friends of Time” (B fE &9 A7

&)

Award:

China International Advertising Festival 2019:

Annual Brand Building Golden Award (7 Bl B[R 4 £2019/&8 &5 £ 85 2
MR 2R i & 1%)

Time Period:
October 2019

Awarded by:
The Organising Committee for the China International Advertising Festival

(FEIERESRAEE)

Award description:

China International Advertising Festival is the most authoritative,
professional and national event of the advertising industry with the largest
scale and the most influence in China. “CIFA Advertiser Awards (% =
#2)” is the first high-standard award specifically created for advertisers in
China’s advertising industry. It is also a star-studded industry ceremony
during the China International Advertising Festival every year. Based
on related laws, regulations and policies in China and with the guiding
principle of “fairness, justice and openness”, it recommends and selects
high-quality cases within the industry that have innovative spirit and
significance to the advertising industry in China. The award-winning work
gained unanimous recognition from the industry in terms of knowledge
marketing and creative implantation.

Award-winning work:
Cooperation case — Casarte (&%) “Art of Life Super Press Conference”

(BRI RIEMNS)

Award:

China International Advertising Festival 2019: Annual In-depth Marketing
Award (F BB EEE2019E S T RFERELH D H)

Time Period:
October 2019

Awarded by:
The Organising Committee for the China International Advertising Festival
(PR ESHHEES)

Award description:

China International Advertising Festival is the most authoritative,
professional and national event of the advertising industry with the largest
scale and the most influence in China. “CIFA Advertiser Awards (4% =
4%)” is the first high-standard award specifically created for advertisers in
China’s advertising industry. It is also a star-studded industry ceremony
during the China International Advertising Festival every year. Based
on related laws, regulations and policies in China and with the guiding
principle of “fairness, justice and openness”, it recommends and selects
high-quality cases within the industry that have innovative spirit and
significance to the advertising industry in China. The award-winning work
has excellent performance in integrating online and offline communication,
content marketing and building multi-screen interaction.
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Awards and Recognition
BRIFEREY

NN

Award-winning work:
Project cooperation case — Fotile (77X) “The Smiling, Proud Wanderer 4”
(EHOTH4)

Award:
China International Advertising Festival 2019: Annual In-depth Marketing
Award (FEIBEBREEEI2010B G T RFEREEHE )

Time Period:
October 2019

Awarded by:

The Organising Committee for the China International Advertising Festival
(PRIERESHEZS)

Award description:
Great Wall Awards (5 ¥ 82 & & = £8)

China International Advertising Festival is the most authoritative,
professional and national event of the advertising industry with the largest
scale and the most influence in China. “CIFA Advertiser Awards (&&=
#2)” is the first high-standard award specifically created for advertisers in
China’s advertising industry. It is also a star-studded industry ceremony
during the China International Advertising Festival every year. Based
on related laws, regulations and policies in China and with the guiding
principle of “fairness, justice and openness”, it recommends and selects
high-quality cases within the industry that have innovative spirit and
significance to the advertising industry in China. The award-winning
work fully demonstrates the industry’s high recognition towards Fotile
achievements in brand communication and brand influence with “The
Smiling, Proud Wanderer 4”, which is an excellent example of innovative
marketing.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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Chairlady’s Statement

The Group was established in 2003. We are very honoured to be
successfully listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange on
12 November 2019, landing in international capital market.

In the face of the continued slowdown in macroeconomic growth and the
sluggish growth of the traditional media industry in 2019, the Group has
demonstrated high stress tolerance and resilience. We adhered to the
promotion of diversified services, strengthened the strategy formulation
capability and data analysis capability, strived to provide customers
with personalised advertising solutions, maintained the leading position
in terms of market share in the core business of TV advertising and
properly adjusted the business structure, vigorously developed the online
advertising business and outdoor advertising business so as to further
enhance our strength as a multi-channel advertising provider and lay a
solid foundation for better development in the future.

Looking forward into 2020, the continued slowdown in macroeconomic
trend, the impact of the new coronavirus pneumonia and the decline
in domestic consumption growth will add tremendous pressure and
uncertainty to the Group’s short-term business performance. However,
we have confidence in and good expectations on the medium and long-
term prosperity in China’s economy. In 2020, the Group will focus on its
existing advantages and core competitiveness to further stimulate the
team’s innovative vitality, strive to maintain a stable operation during the
economic down cycle, and lay a foundation for the medium and long-
term development of the Group through the development of new growth
points.

In terms of TV advertising services business, we will continue to actively
enhance creative design and communication capability, develop content
marketing business, by which we completed content marketing planning
as well as implantation of creative design and implement action plans for
various customers, so as to enhance customers’ brand value by content
integration.

In terms of online advertising services business, we will follow the trends
of the entire new media environment and comply with the changes in
customer’s needs to further improve the online marketing business. We
will also continuously improve the internet integrated service capacity
and provide customers with one-stop online marketing solutions through
technologies of big data and precision placement.

In terms of outdoor advertising services business, we will leverage on the
Company’s accumulated advantages and experience in TV advertising
to continuously strengthen the market expansion in the field of subway
TV advertising placement. We will also achieve in-depth integration and
effective communication between brands and high-quality content through
cross-platforms’ content joint dissemination.

In 2020, we will continue to pay attention to trending hotspots and assist
brand customers to carry out integration communication on marketing
such as “sports marketing”, “knowledge marketing” and “experiential
marketing”, helping customers to maximize their investment return on
advertising communication. Meanwhile, we will continue to explore and
follow up on new technologies. By using new technologies, we will look
for new media advertising methods and start new advertising business so
as to expand new market, provide customers with new advertising value
and seek new profit growth points.
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Chairlady’s Statement

We are confident in creating values for customers, shareholders, BAVE 50 BB 2 = A 15 475 AR 755 A0 BBy (B mO A8 i 26
employees and the society continuously through professional and efficient B AP -IRE -  EIRMSFEEIEEE - &% &
communication services and up-to-date operational strategies. Last but WAEENRR - BRI —BEER HEPNZFHFBAEED
not least, | would like to express our gratitude to the Shareholders of the H—@EA -

Group and all parties concerned who have given assistance and support
along with the Group’s development.

LI Na Z= 1R

Chairlady Ez

Beijing, PRC AL R

24 April 2020 20204 H24H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Market overview

In 2019, under the influence of multiple factors, such as escalating trade
dispute, market environment, operation condition of the enterprise and
product cycle, advertisers’ confidence in the market has declined after
the soar in 2018. Meanwhile, the budget expenditure of advertisers has
also become more cautious. The proportion of advertisers with increased
budgets has recorded the lowest over the recent decade; flat budget
has become the new norm (Source of data: CCTV Market Research
CTR “Survey Report of 2019 China Advertisers’ Marketing Trend”).
During the Reporting Period, facing the enormous pressure of macro
environment with slowing economic growth and downward trend on TV
advertising market, the Group will focus on its existing advantages and
core competitiveness, adhere to the promotion of diversified advertising
services, vigorously develop online advertising business, leverage the
matrix advantages of internet media and new media resources, strength
the resource efficiency of high-quality traffic, and continuously improve
the internet integrated service capacity through technologies of big data
and precision placement, strengthened strategy formulation capability
and data analysis capability, and strived to provide customers with
personalised one-stop advertising solutions to further enhance the
Group’s competitiveness as a multi-channel advertising service provider.

Business review
TV advertising services

Riding on our strong customer base, we are able to establish a
strong presence in the TV advertising media services industry through
maintaining long-standing relationships with our major TV station suppliers
which are first-tier provincial satellite TV stations such as leading provincial
satellite TV stations in Hunan, Shanghai, Zhejiang and Jiangsu. These
long-established relationships give us competitive edge in securing
valuable TV advertising resources such as TV advertising time slots
during prime time and the rights to implant soft-sell advertisements in
variety shows or TV series with high viewership and demand in renowned
TV stations. Furthermore, due to our long-standing relationships with
these provincial satellite TV stations, we are able to consolidate TV
advertising resources available and allow our customers access to a
broad range of TV advertising resources from different TV stations.
During the Reporting Period, the Group continuously improved its
customer development and service capabilities in the TV advertising
business while enhancing its competitiveness through the optimisation
on the media resource portfolio and attracting advertising placements
from brand customers through customised advertising strategies and
scientific comprehensive services. During the Reporting Period, the Group
provided TV advertising media services such as advertising placements of
brands or products, implantation design of advertisements to customers,
including a well-known domestic brand beverage seller and a large
domestic telecommunications service provider, respectively, which gained
recognition from various well-known customers.
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In terms of content marketing business, the Group continued to actively
improve its creative design and communication capability to complete
content marketing planning as well as implantation of creative design
and implement action plans for various customers, so as to enhance
customers’ brand value by content integration. During the Reporting
Period, the Group successively provided services to major advertiser
customers, including a leading home appliances manufacturer in the
China with its headquarter located in Qingdao and a leading kitchen
appliances manufacturer with its headquarter located in Ningbo, involving
project cooperation, namely the cooperation between a leading home
appliances manufacturer in the PRC (headquartered in Qingdao) and
Shenzhen Satellite TV on a knowledge speech program on celebrating
new year’s eve and a popular science knowledge conference, the
cooperation between a leading kitchen appliances manufacturer
advertiser with its headquarter located in Ningbo and a leading provincial
satellite TV station in Hunan on a observational reality show of a group
of celebrities running an inn, and the cooperation between a leading
kitchen appliances manufacturer advertiser with its headquarter located in
Ningbo and a provincial satellite TV station in Shanghai on a talent variety
program, a comedy reality competition program and a large-scale home
redevelopment program.

Online advertising services

Leveraging on the online advertising services, the Group has gradually
established and will continue to expand its extensive supplier network
and the operators of China’s major online platforms to gain more popular
online advertising sources. The Group continued to improve the internet
integrated service capacity and provide customers with one-stop online
marketing solutions through technologies of big data and precision
placement. During the Reporting Period, the Group successively provided
services to customers, including several large online mobile games in
China. During the cooperation period, each brand has a better conversion
rate in the placement on online media, which secured the sustainability
of advertising placements. The Group has gained high recognition and
praises from customers.

Qutdoor advertising services

The Group seized the business opportunity for the stable growth in the
outdoor advertising media services market and continued to strengthen
the market expansion in the field of advertising placements, such as
buildings and subway TV. Levering on our experience in providing
advertising services and our strong data analysis capabilities, we satisfy
customers’ needs by identifying relevant supplier with specific outdoor
advertising resources, for example, the right to place advertisements on
platforms such as buildings and subways in major cities in China. During
the Reporting Period, the Group successively provided certain domestic
large pharmaceutical company customers with advertising placements in
buildings and subways in various regions of China.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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Other advertising services

With the steadily foundation of the existing media services such as radio
channels, the Group continued the expansion on the resources on new
fields, including sources from certain well-known video websites and
electronic business platforms to satisfy customers’ needs. During the
Reporting Period, the Group mainly provided advertising placements for a
well-known domestic brand electrical appliance retailer.

Financial review

Revenue and profit and total comprehensive income attributable to the
owners of our Company

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB845.8 million, representing an increase of 8.0% from approximately
RMB783.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Revenue details for the Reporting Period are as follows:

0] For the Reporting Period, revenue from TV advertising services
was approximately RMB309.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 41.4% from approximately RMB527.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018, which was primarily due to the
reduction of advertising placements from a well-known domestic
beverage seller customer in 2019.

(I For the Reporting Period, revenue from online advertising services
was approximately RMB433.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 121.4% from approximately RMB195.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Leveraging the online advertising
services, the Group has gradually established and will continue to
expand its extensive supplier network to gain more popular online
advertising sources from the operator of major online platforms
in China. The Group continued to improve the internet integrated
service capacity and to provide customers with one-stop online
marketing solutions through technologies of big data and precision
placement. The revenue from online advertising business increased
significantly as compared with the same period of last year.

(I For the Reporting Period, revenue from outdoor advertising services
was approximately RMB63.4 million, representing an increase of
approximately 23.0% from approximately RMB51.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018, which was primarily due to the
Group seized the business opportunities from the stable growth
in the outdoor advertising media services market, continued to
strengthen the market expansion in the field of outdoor advertising
investment, such as buildings and subway TVs, and increased
advertising placements from certain large pharmaceutical company
customers.
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(V) For the Reporting Period, revenue from other advertising services
was approximately RMB39.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 345.4% from approximately RMB8.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. With the steadily foundation of the
existing other media services such as radio channels, the Group
continued the expansion on the resources in new media field to
satisfy customers’ needs and increase the advertising placements
from customers.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of the Group increased as
compared to last year. The overall decrease of services cost of the online
advertising business during the Reporting Period also led to an increased
gross profit margin as compared with the same period of last year. For the
Reporting Period, the profit and total comprehensive income attributable
to the owners of our Company was approximately RMB36.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 21.4% from approximately
RMB46.1 million last year, which was primarily due to the listing expenses
of the Group in terms of service stage in the Reporting Period that
increased significantly as compared with last year. Excluding the listing
expenses, for the Reporting Period, the profit attributable to the owners of
our Company was approximately RMB55.2 million (2018: approximately
RMB50.3 million), representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
9.8%.

Other income, gains and loss

The Group recorded a year-on-year increase of approximately 242.0% in
other income, gains and loss from approximately RMB4.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB14.1 million for the
Reporting Period, which was primarily due to the increase in government
grants received, and in accordance with the Ministry of Finance, State
Taxation Administration and General Administration of Customs 2019
Announcement No.39, since 1 April 2019, the service industry has
implemented the input tax of value-added-tax additional 10% deduction
accounting into other income.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses recorded a relatively stable
increase. The Group recorded a year-on-year increase of approximately
1.5% in selling and marketing expenses from approximately RMB14.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB15.1
million for the Reporting Period. The Group’s selling and marketing
expenses accounted for approximately 1.8% of the Group’s total revenue
for the same period (2018: approximately 1.9%).

Administrative expenses

The Group recorded a year-on-year increase of approximately 27.2%
in administrative expenses from approximately RMB11.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB14.2 million for
the Reporting Period. The Group’s administrative expenses accounted
for approximately 1.7% of the Group’s total revenue for the same period
(2018: approximately 1.4%).
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Financing costs

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded financing costs of
approximately RMB7.6 million (2018: approximately RMB6.0 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 25.4%, which was
primarily due to the increase in the principal amount of bank loan in 2019.

Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net of reversals

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s impairment losses on receivables
was approximately RMB8.9 million (2018: approximately RMB1.0 million),
representing an increase of approximately RMB7.9 million as compared
with last year. The Group conducted evaluation and judgement on the
recoverability of receivables, and conducted the evaluation through a
third-party company, the impairment losses on receivables was primarily
due to the significant increase in trade receivables at the end of period.

Income tax expense

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax expenses was
approximately RMB19.8 million (2018: approximately RMB15.8 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 25.1%, which was
primarily due to the listing expenses not being deductible before income
tax.

Profit for the year from continuing operations

The Group’s profit for the year from continuing operations decreased by
approximately 22.1% from approximately RMB46.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB36.3 million for the
Reporting Period.

Save as the influences from aforesaid factors, the decrease can be
attributable to the significant increase in listing expenses of the Group.
The Group’s listing expenses was approximately RMB18.9 million for the
Reporting Period (2018: approximately RMB4.1 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 356.6%.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2019, deferred tax assets was approximately
RMB2.789 million (2018: approximately RMB0.638 million), representing
an increase of approximately 337.1%. It was mainly due to the large
increase in impairment losses under expected credit loss model.

Loan receivable

As at 31 December 2018, loan receivable of non-current assets was
approximately RMB13 million, it was an internet drama investment
with fixed income held by the Group with two years of income period
(1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020). Since it has been held for
one year, the loan receivable transferred to current assets in 2019.
As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of loan receivable was
approximately RMB12.6 million.

WEHR  REESSHBREABHIBARKET 576 T T
(20184 : #)/ARHB,043F7T) » RILLIZINA)A25.4%
TE2RAR2019FRITERARILIATEL ©

TR BB B R R = (A8 F155 7 [ET)

HEHA - AEENRYSIEREBEN S ARES 42T
7T (20184 : RARK998TIT) » M EFIEMOBA
R¥E7,944T 7T » ANEE S EUGTIAR AT MU T TR H)
B WRBE = ARETAE - BURGRRESREE
[RERERE 5 MWL IR EEAPTE -

ikedid53

WMEHAN AEERSHERAOAARK19,830F T
(20185 : A ARHE15,846T T) * RLLEMA A
251% £ Z 2 BB TSR ATIKINATE

R BT F AT

REENFRNFBECEEBENTFREFBEE2018F 124
S1HIEFENYAEAREAL6,623T TR D 422 1%ERE
BRI 4 A AR 36,304 T T

Br bl > REFEI - AR LRAER ETEAKIBEM
FTER - AEBMEHRNZ EMEBERHABARE18,918F L
(201845 : MR AREA143F L) » RILLIEHN4I356.6% °

FAPREE

R2019F 128318  BIERIEEEN AARK2,789F T
(2018%F : X9 B AR¥638FT) » AL INAIS37.1% © =
DREHEEEHEERN TAREREILINEES AR

JEWE K

M2018F12A31H » IERBEEFTHEKERNAAR
#13,000F 7T WIEAAEERFE M —HEE T K= S
BIIEE - WS H A A (201951 A1 H £20204F12 A 31
H)  AREE—F R20196BARBEETHREKRE
Ko M2019F12A31H - BUEREASBOAARKE
12,579F 7T °

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR

15



16

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Trade receivables, prepayments and other receivables

The Group’s trade receivables, prepayments and other receivables
was approximately RMB443.7 million as at 31 December 2019
(2018: approximately RMB208.5 million), representing an increase of
approximately 112.8%, which was primarily due to the vigorous expansion
of online advertising services in the fourth quarter of 2019.

Trade and other payables

As at 31 December 2019, trade and other payables was approximately
RMB240.5 million (2018: approximately RMB94.2 million), representing
an increase of approximately 155.2%. It was mainly due to the vigorously
expansion on data business in the fourth quarter, increase of customer
and placement amounts and increase in costs.

Tax payables

As at 31 December 2019, tax payables were approximately RMB20.1
million (2018: approximately RMB9.5 million), representing an increase of
approximately 111.6% as compared with last year. It was mainly due to
the vigorously expansion on businesses, increase of placement amounts
and taxes generated will be payable in next year.

Significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies

For the Reporting Period, the Group held two internet dramas or movies
investments under execution, all completed shooting and broadcasting.
The Group did not involve in the production of such internet dramas and
movies. The Group solely acted as a pure investor in the internet dramas
or movies projects without holding any equity interest in the relevant
production companies. The revenue generated from these two respective
investments is fixed income, and will continue to bring fixed return to
the Group in 2020. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
the above-mentioned two internet dramas or movies of the Group was
recorded in loan receivable of RMB12,579,000 and trade receivables and
other receivables of RMB850,000, respectively.

For the Reporting Period, save for the Reorganisation (as defined in
the prospectus of our Company dated 31 October 2019); and the
aforementioned, there was no significant investments, material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies recorded by the
Group.

As at the date of this annual report, our Company has not entered into any
agreements in relation to material investment or capital assets, and did
not have any other plans in relation to material investment or capital assets.
However, if any potential investment opportunity arises in the future, our
Company will conduct a feasibility study and prepare an implementation
plan to consider whether the said opportunity would benefit our Company
and its Shareholders as a whole.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s overall financial position is stable with sufficient liquidity.
As at 31 December 2019, bank balances and cash was approximately
RMB68.0 million (2018: approximately RMB36.7 million), representing an
increase of approximately 85.1%, of which, approximately 95% was in
RMB, the remaining 5% was in HKD and other currencies.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total assets was approximately
RMB580.0 million, of which equity attributable to the owners of our
Company was approximately RMB214.4 million, non-controlling equity
was approximately RMBO.1 million.

Capital expenditure

For the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any other significant
capital expenditure.

Contingent liabilities

For the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any other significant
contingent liabilities.

Pledged assets
For the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any pledged assets.
Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio decreased from approximately 106.4% as at 31
December 2018 to approximately 47.8% as at 31 December 2019 was
primarily due to the increase in the total amount of equity from the Global
Offering. The gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the sum of total bank
and other borrowings, amounts due to a related party and lease liabilities
by total equity as at the end of the respective periods, and multiplied by
100%.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s business activities and operations are mainly carried out
in China where core transactions are conducted in RMB. The influence
by exchange rate fluctuations on cash flow or liquidity of the Group’s
operating business is very limited, therefore, the Group currently did not
engage in or intend to manage hedging activities of foreign exchange
rate risk. The Group will continue to monitor foreign exchange activities to
secure the Group’s cash value as far as possible.

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuations

in the prevailing market interest rates on bank balances and cash. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
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The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate bank
and other borrowings, lease liabilities, and amounts due to a related party.
The Group’s policy is to maintain short-term borrowings at prevailing
market rates so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Industry and group outlook
Outlook

Since the beginning of 2020, the 2019 coronavirus (the “COVID-19") has
spread in China and has affected the business and economic activities of
the Group to a certain extent. As at the date of this annual report, it is not
yet possible to conduct reliable estimation on the above-mentioned overall
financial impact.

However, in a long run, it may have limited impact on enterprises and
the China’s economy; the long-term positive development outlook of
China’s economy remains unchanged. The Group will closely monitor the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the
financial position and operations of the Group.

In 2020, the Group will focus on its existing advantages and core
competitiveness and continue to enlarge the investment on internet to
further stimulate the team’s innovative vitality, strive to maintain a stable
operation during the economic down cycle, and lay a foundation for the
medium and long-term development of the Group.

Specifically, in terms of TV advertising and content marketing, we will
continue to actively enhance creative production and communication
capabilities, develop content marketing business so as to enhance
customers’ brand value by content integration. In terms of online
advertising and online marketing, we will follow the trends of the entire
new media environment, comply with the changes in customer’s
needs and continue to enlarge the investment on internet to leverage
the matrix advantages of internet media and new media resources,
strength the resource efficiency of high-quality traffic, further improve the
online marketing business, continuously improve the internet integrated
service capacity and provide one-stop online marketing solutions to
more customers. In terms of outdoor advertising, we leverage on our
Company’s accumulated advantages and experience in TV advertising
to continuously strengthen the market expansion in the field of outdoor
subway TV advertising placement. Meanwhile, we will continue to explore
and follow up on new technologies. By using new technologies, we
will look for new media advertising methods and start new advertising
business so as to expand new market, provider customers with new
advertising value and seek new profit growth points.

Use of proceeds from the initial public offering

The shares of our Company were listed on Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date and the net proceeds raised from this initial public offering after
deducting professional fees, underwriting commissions and other related
listing expenses amounted to approximately HK$78.8 million (the “IPO
Net Proceeds”).
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had utilised approximately HK$58.6 R2019F12A31H  AEEBEFALS8.68 8B hE
million, representing approximately 74.4% of the IPO Net Proceeds as RRRBEEMGRIBFENT4.4%  INTRAR
follows:
Unutilised
Approximate Actual amount of
percentage amount IPO Net
of IPO Net Actual utilised up Proceeds as
Proceeds as amount of to 31 at 31
BRARABRERSNETFHE stated in the IPO Net December December
Intended use of IPO Net Proceeds ZREAZ Prospectus Proceeds 2019 2019
BRERME BARALERE BE2019F HE2019%F
EFEBRETFE FMEREFE 12831HE 12831 HH
BHES T ERcsE DRAERSE ABREE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B&#T) (&%) (B &%)
Enhancing the Group’s market position in IS8 AEE M BN - BITAE
TV advertising through strengthening its 18BN RIE
financial position to satisfy the prepayment  EEAESERESER © 1E
obligation to TV stations to acquire TV RAXEER
advertising resources BRESTIEMHAL 47.7% 37.6 33.3 4.3
Further developing the Group’s online E—HAEEAEENSTESEY
advertising business 30.0% 23.6 16.7 6.9
Further developing the Group’s outdoor E—SREAEBENPINEEL K
advertising business 12.3% 9.7 8.6 1.1
Strengthening the Group’s strategy MR EENRE REESTEE
formulation and data analytical capabilities 4277 & E#)
and enhance its reputation in the market minEE 10.0% 79 - 7.9
100% 78.8 58.6 20.2

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

As disclosed in our Company’ announcement dated 24 February 2020,

U AT BEA2020F2 A4 HMAEFHE €58

the Board resolved to change the use of unutilised IPO Net Proceeds. BARERHABANE R RAREEMSRIEFENAS
The table below sets forth the revised proposed change of use of the TR EARBDANERARBERSREFENLER]
unutilised IPO Net Proceeds: ERERAR
Original
approximate
percentage of Unutilised
IPO Net Revised amount of Revised
Proceeds  approximate IPO Net allocation of
as stated in  percentage of Proceeds up to unutilised
BROMREMENETFHE the IPO Net the date of this IPO Net
Intended use of IPO Net Proceeds BERR Prospectus Proceeds annual report Proceeds
BRERMEL BRALHRE BELAFREY HARBAEX
BROMRE FENERE ER0BRE LORRERS
FBRIEFE RIEET  FBRERE REFER
REBNBEDL BB HABALE CHp
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(&%) (&%)
Enhancing the Group’s market position in IS8 AEE BN - BITAE
TV advertising through strengthening its BEBENRENETNESER
financial position to satisfy the prepayment  EEER @ MR AEERE
obligation to TV stations to acquire TV BB E TS HAL
advertising resources 47.7% 42.2% 4.3 -
Further developing the Group’s online E—SRRASENRTEEER
advertising business 30.0% 30.0% 6.9 6.9
Further developing the Group’s outdoor E—SERAEENPINEEER
advertising business 12.3% 12.3% 1.1 1.1
Strengthening the Group’s strategy e AREE M E R EIE TR
formulation and data analytical capabiliies M iRFAEEHTISEE
and enhance its reputation in the market 10.0% 10.0% 7.9 7.9
General working capital purpose —REEES - 5.5% - 4.3
100.0% 100.0% 20.2 20.2
For details, please refer to the announcement of our Company dated 24 B2 E2020F 2 A24BHAE -
February 2020.
Except to the above, there was no change in the intended use of the IPO BrOA EPTON - BMIRERFEANBBENE X AREEMF

Net Proceeds as previously disclosed in the Prospectus. Our Company
expects to utilise the IPO Net Proceeds within two years from the Listing
Date.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Directors 2=

Date of joining Date of appointment
Name Age the Group as Director
e i MATEEHAH EZEARESEH
Ms. Li Na (1) 42 April 2003 25 January 2019
£y 4235, 20034 A 2019%1A25H
Mr. Feng Xing (/5 )" 42 August 2004 25 January 2019
S 42755, 200448 A 20191 A 25H
Ms. Wang Xin (EfiX) 42 August 2015 1 April 2019
Izt 42755 20158 A 2019F4A1H
Mr. Leng Xuejun (R 2E) 37 September 2013 25 January 2019
REBHAE 375 2013F9A 2019%F1 A25H
Mr. Zhao Gang () 46 October 2019 22 QOctober 2019
M E 467, 2019%10H 20199 10H22H
Mr. Li Xue (£5) 55 October 2019 22 QOctober 2019
FERE 557K 201910H 2019F10A22H
Mr. How Sze Ming ({& B.H) 43 October 2019 22 October 2019
EBHEE 435%, 2019%10A 2019F10A22H
Note: Biat -
(1) Mr. Feng Xing is the general manager of our Company. He is one of the members (1)

of our senior management.

Position/Title
By Bt

Executive Director and chairlady of the Board

HTEEREESLF

Executive Director and vice chairman of
the Board
HWITEEREZGREE

Executive Director
BITES

Executive Director, vice chairman of the Board
and one of our joint company secretaries

WTEE EFRRTERBEREZ -

Independent Non-executive Director
BAUFRITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUIITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BUFNTES

WERIE AL AIMBAETE - RBEREEBHILE S — -

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Ms. Li Na (Z=1), aged 42, is one of our founders, an executive Director
and the chairlady of our Board. Ms. Li is primarily responsible for
overseeing the overall management, strategic planning and business
development of the Group. She was redesignated as an executive
Director on 29 April 2019. Ms. Li is also the chairlady of the nomination
committee. Ms. Li has over 18 years of experience in the advertising
industry. Prior to joining the Group in April 2003, she worked as a deputy
director in Jinjuan Advertisement Technology Co., Ltd* (£ B8 & SR
% BBRAR]), a company principally engaged in the advertising and media
business, from April 2000 to November 2003, where she was responsible
for marketing matters and after-sales services. From June 2004 to
October 2018, Ms. Li was the legal representative of Beijing Ruicheng.
From June 2004 to February 2016, Ms. Li was the executive director of
Beijing Ruicheng. From February 2010 to February 2016, she was also the
general manager of Beijing Ruicheng. From March 2016 to October 2018,
Ms. Li was the chairlady of the board of directors of Beijing Ruicheng.
Ms. Li was responsible for the overall management of Beijing Ruicheng.
Ms. Li graduated from the Ecole Nationale des Ponts et Chaussées with
an executive master’s degree of business administration (specialising
in aeronautics and aviation management) which was co-organised by
Tsinghua University, in October 2018. Ms. Li was awarded the “Ten Best
and Most Influential Female Advertising Person in China 2009-2010"*
(2009-2010F E R B & AFE N HELMEES A) jointly granted by the
MBA School of Communication University of China* (1 Bl {8 £ K ZAMBAE2
B) and the Advertising Magazine Office* ((f& & E%R) F#z64t) in 2010 and
the “China Advertising Golden Vision Awards: New Ten Years Leaders in
China’s Marketing™ (PEEE F &R+ FPRLSHEREEAYKR
#%) granted by the Market Observation Magazine Office* (715 ER 224 55 4L)
in2011.

Mr. Feng Xing (%5 ), aged 42, is an executive Director. Mr. Feng is
primarily responsible for the day-to-day planning, management and
implementation of our business strategies. He was redesignated as an
executive Director on 29 April 2019.

Mr. Feng has over 18 years of experience in the advertising industry. Prior
to joining the Group in August 2004, he worked in Hefei Television* (&
FEMEIEE R AB) as a reporter from August 2000 to August 2002, where
he was responsible for the production of medical programmes. He then
worked as a sales representative in the business department in Jinjuan
Advertisement Technology Co., Ltd* (&8 EERIERMH AR AF), a
company principally engaged in the advertising and media business,
from August 2002 to July 2004, where he was responsible for marketing
matters. Mr. Feng then worked as the deputy general manager of Beijing
Ruicheng from August 2004 to February 2016, where he was responsible
for the overall management of the business department. Since March
2016, he has been the general manager of Beijing Ruicheng, where he
was responsible for implementation of the Company’s business strategies.
He was also the director of Beijing Ruicheng from March 2016 to October
2018, where he was responsible for the implementation of the company’s
operating strategies. Mr. Feng graduated from the Cheung Kong School
of Business* (KT EEPT) in the PRC with an executive master’'s degree
in business administration in September 2018.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019

WLt 4255 REIAZ —  HTEERESSE
B FRTTEHRERARENKMBBER - KEEE
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FA4AE2003F 11 A LTS REERERGBRA RG4S
2 RARTENERERIFEEN  mMEAELEHEEE
MERRIS - 200466 A E2018F10A * T+ AItR
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bR MITESE - N2010FE2 A E 2016528 » K Ik
B RE AL - R20165E3 A £20185F 108 » &
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A EI[2009—2010F EFEFAFE N THELEESE AL
RR20 1 EEMSERMG LB PRES ESRER
TFPEEEEREEAMAE] -

BEEE - 425 HITES - BEAETZTASAFERE
BIE N EERER o N2019%F4 A29H AT AT
BHo

AR E18F EEITEMNELR - 1£2004F8 A AL
E@EA] - HHR2000FE8 A E2002F8 A HEAIETEREE
BERE  FATBREMERE - £1% - ®H200248A
F2004F7 AN S BERREBRHERAREFBLAE
¥RE ZRARETEREEERERER  MEBEE
THETE - B EEBR2004F8 A E2016F2 A B FIL R
M EIEAE  BEEEIMEBIELE - B201653A
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R2016F3AE2018F 108 » AL RINHMES - &
EEBMZARNSERE - BEENR2018F9AEFEE
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAE

Mr. Feng also holds the following positions in the members of the Group:

Name Position held

=5 FRERA

Beijing Ruicheng
SIS R

Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye General Manager

MG Porgi]

Beijing Lingyu Executive director and general
manager

It RER PITEE MBTE

Ruicheng BVI Director

InHRBERES B=

Mr. Feng was awarded, among others, the Jinwang Annual Internet
Marketing Individuals in the PRC* (& #F/E B4 5 AY) in 2015
granted by the Internet Marketing Commissions Committee* (4945 & &4
T{EZ B E) and the title of “Contemporary China Outstanding ADMAN"*

General Manager

Principal roles and responsibilities

TERBRRBE

Implementation of business strategies
VeSS
Overall management

EREER

Overall management and day-to-day
planning
BREERATERE

Overall management
B2ReE

MENTHFE LR

AR TERGL -

Date of appointment

EZRERMY

4 March 2016
2016%F3H4H

25 December 2018
201812 H25H

29 October 2018
2018510 H29H

28 January 2019
201941 H28H

RSN EESER2015FERGEHETIEZES
A A RR20ITFHES A
X/bE B K Worldwide Media Industry Association8 % #)
[ADMANHR B & A HH S A 518 -

(ADMANA Bl & R A H E S A) granted by the Adman Culture Group and
Worldwide Media Industry Association in 2017.

Ms. Wang Xin (E£fX), aged 42, is an executive Director of our
Company. Ms. Wang Xin is primarily responsible for overseeing business
development and sales matters of the Group. She was redesignated as
an executive Director on 29 April 2019. Ms. Wang Xin is also a member of
the remuneration committee. She is the sister of Ms. Wang Lei, one of the
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Wang Xin has over 13 years of experience in the advertising industry.
From June 2005 to June 2015, Ms. Wang Xin has been the general
manager of Qingdao Zhongzhouxian Advertisement Co. Ltd.* (F &
FRESRE S AR AA]), a company which is principally engaged in the
advertising business, where she was responsible for overall management
of the company. She has been the executive director of Shanghai Kailun
since August 2015, where she is responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of the company. Ms. Wang
Xin graduated from the PLA Nanjing Institute of Politics* (7 Bl A R A2 i E
B RIBUAZRR) with a bachelor’s degree in economics and administrative
management in June 2014.

Ms. Wang Xin also holds the following positions in the members of the
Group:

Name Position held

EFRR&L 4255 ARBWITEE c TMELLTEZHEE
BEASBEMEBERNIEESEHE - R2019F4 8296
TAPTESF - IMZETNATFHEZEENKE - HATE

(RRAEIERIRER 2 —) Lk, Ik o

IMEETRESTERBBI3FELS - H2005F6AE
2015%F6A  TMALt—HEATETHMEESERAF
IR Z AR T BN EBEESER  MEAEZARNE
BEEE - §2015F8 AR BT LS HRITES -
BEZARNERETE  REEBBIREKER - R2014F
68 IMETEERTREARMHRERRBUASH @ &

MEEEITHER S LM

FIREZ L IR AEEE R RHEEA TR :

=L FRAERAL
Shanghai Kailun Executive director

EEsfm MITE=R

Principal roles and responsibilities

FERBRBE

Overall management, strategic planning and

business development
BEEE  FBREINERER

R (FE

Date of appointment

BEERH
5 August 2015

201558 A5H

VEREBEERAT « —T-NFFH
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREBAS

Mr. Leng Xuejun (82 ), aged 37, is an executive Director and one
of the joint company secretaries of our Company. Mr. Leng is primarily
responsible for overseeing the company secretarial matters and financial
matters of the Group. He was redesignated as an executive Director on
29 April 2019. Mr. Leng has over 5 years of experience in the advertising
industry and he joined the Group in September 2013. From September
2013 to February 2016, he was the business manager of Beijing
Ruicheng, where he was responsible for business development and
external liaison. From March 2016 to October 2018, he was the director of
Beijing Ruicheng, where he was responsible for the overall management,
business development and implementation of business strategies of the
company. Since November 2018, he has been the executive director of
Beijing Ruicheng, where he continues to be responsible for the overall
management, business development and implementation of business
strategies of the company. From March 2016 to November 2018, he was
the secretary to the board of directors of Beijing Ruicheng, where he was
responsible for company secretarial matters. Mr. Leng graduated from
the Nanjing University in the PRC and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
administrative management by way of distance learning in February 2009.

Mr. Leng also holds the following positions in the members of the Group:

Name Position held

Principal roles and responsibilities

REBELRE 375 ARARITEZRBFELARMEY
— o /z%iigﬁiﬁmﬂﬁwi$ﬁ&$$lmﬁﬁ’%

o HR2019F 4 A20 R BT ANITES - R4S
3@5@%%6%3’%@5& C WH2013F9AMALRER o 1
2013F9AE2016F 27  HAILRIMBMHERLIE - A
BEBIERE LN - A2016F3 A £20185F 108 » %
BRI HNES  FASZANEEERE £KEE
T ¥ EEE M o B2018% 11 A#E - BUAIL R MEHIT
EE REBEEZARNEBEEE ENEEREBSE
BEE i » 20163 A £2018F11 A » AL FIEHES
EWE BERARIMEEE - AL N2009F2 A2 ERN
FERERAZ  WAEBRRENEARGITHRERSELE
fiL °

REENAEENKE AT REEUTRAL -

Date of appointment

= P ER A

Beijing Ruicheng Director (Executive director since

TERBRBE

Overall management, business development

BEERHY

4 March 2016

November 2018) and implementation of business strategies
b HUH EE(H2018F11 AR AIITE BREE  EBERNMEREEERRE 20165374 H
%)
Qingdao Ruicheng Executive director Overall management 7 December 2018
Jiaye
S E WITES e 2018F12A7H
Ruicheng HK Director Overall management 21 February 2019
W EE BE BEEne 201952 A421H

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019



Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Mr. Zhao Gang (#Ml), aged 46, was appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director on 22 October 2019, and is responsible for
providing independent advice and judgement to the Board. Mr. Zhao is
also the chairman of the remuneration committee, a member of the audit
committee and a member of the nomination committee. Mr. Zhao has
over 19 years of experience in the media industry. Prior to joining the
Group, from September 1999 to September 2014, he worked as a deputy
general manager in Qingdao Radio and Television Advertising Media Co.,
Ltd* (BEEERERESEHBRAT]), where he was responsible for
the operation of advertising business. From October 2014 to July 2015,
he worked as the assistant to the general manager in Fujian Southeast
Weixing Media Co., Ltd.* (&R mEE 2 EHE BB A R]). From October
2015 to March 2017, he worked as the management of the advertisement
department and the deputy director in Yunnan Radio and Television
Group Co., Ltd* (EFEEEEEEEAFR A F]). From March 2017 to July
2018, he worked as the president of Xizang Beiwen Media Co., Ltd* (Fa7&
b EIEB PR A R, a company which is primarily engaged in production
of television programmes, where he was responsible for the overall
management and operation of the company. Since October 2018, Mr.
Zhao has been the vice president and general manager of the advertising
business centre of Beijing Huashi Juhe Culture Media Co., Ltd* (1t 5%
BEELEEBRRAR]), a company which is primarily engaged in the
publication of internet and TV programmes, movies and anime, where
he was responsible for the publication of TV programmes, anime and
advertising business. Mr. Zhao graduated from the Qingdao University in
the PRC with an associate degree in design in July 2005.

Mr. Li Xue (Z£E), aged 55, was appointed as our Independent Non-
executive Director on 22 October 2019, and is responsible for providing
independent advice and judgement to the Board. Mr. Li is also the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee.

Mr. Li has over 30 years of financial and accounting experience. From July
1987 to November 1995, Mr. Li worked as a lecturer in Shandong Linyi
Finance School* (115 & E&)T B BUE4R). He then worked as a lecturer
in the faculty of finance of Yantai University in the PRC from November
1995 to February 1997. Since February 1997, Mr. Li has been a professor
of the faculty of accounting of the Management College of the Ocean
University of China. Since July 2008, he has been the dean of the faculty
of accounting of the Qindao College of the Qingdao Technological
University in the PRC. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive
director of Qingdao Holdings International Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0499)) which is
principally engaged in property businesses, where he is responsible for
providing independent judgement and advice to the board of directors.
Mr. Li graduated from the Shandong Economics University in the PRC
with a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 1987 and he graduated
from the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in the PRC with a
master’s degree in economics in January 1998.

Mr. Li is a certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (B :E & 5HEM 17 &) as well as a certified tax advisor
of the Chinese Certified Tax Agents Association (FF B =M I5A0 5 2).
He has been a senior member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since March 2015. He is currently a council member of the
Accounting Society of China (1Bl &5 2&) and a council member of the
Chinese Institute of Internal Audit (R BRI #2517 ). He is also currently
a member of the Chinese Audit Society (1 EIZE 2 €) and a council
member of the audit education division of the Chinese Audit Society.

BRI %A - 465% 0 N2019FE10 A2 B EZ X AYB L IEH
TEE BEMNBECREBUYERRHE - BEEE
FTMEEEER  BRZBEKERRERZESNE - #
LERBBIOFHEEITELR - EMAREBF - HFR
19099F 9 AZE2014F9 A I B EREERBESEHEAR
NEIREBEIE  AEESEFEE - FHR2014F10A %
2015F7 A IR EREHEEFERA R GBI -
WR2015F10 A E2017TF3 AT EEEEEREEGR
NRIEEHEERENEE - HR2017F3 A E2018F7 A
HERBEIEEEER AR (FEXERETRAFENR
ANEE  BEZARNERERREE - Bit4EH2018
FIOABREAIRERBEE ULEEBRAR (FEHRE
BHWMELEGHE EEMHENRE) BEEET O
BERBEIE  BEBREE  DERESEMER M
FER200567 ABVSH BB B KSR BHBIZME -

ZELAE 0 555 0 FA2019E10 A22 B EZ E AL 3EH
TEE BEMNEZBECREBUYERRHE - ZXETNE
EREEBETRRIEREEENE -

FTHREBEARIOFY LR &% - 51987F7 AZE1995
FUA - FRERILEEER T BERTHEM - HE%EA
1995F 11 A E1997F2 AN EE & K E(EI K R #AN ©
B1997F2 A » FhAEAPRHIGFAEEREREHE
R - HE2008F7 ARIHFEBEERTIASEEZET
G REMT - TRERABIAMER ETRAE BIERE
BARAT (MRS : 0499) B IEHITES  ZA
RIETEREMEEL  MEAEAESTSREELHE L
BER o TRAMSTETAEENPHILRLESR &
EEEEBA AT - WHN998F 1 AEENHE EBIIKEX
2 BIEEEE B -

FRAERTEEME MBS EMEFTE - FIRH
SEMBLASAD 5 & e L ML ASAD - B2015F3 AR - KAT
BaAMEsdmneERe8 - RRATESHEGRER
PENMESHERE - WIRATREAZEGERTH
BB EEAHENGEE -
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Mr. How Sze Ming (& & 8), aged 43, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 22 October 2019. Mr. How
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
of Business Administration Degree (first class honour, majoring in
professional accountancy) in December 1999. By profession, he is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. How has over twenty years of experience in investment banking and
assurance and advisory industries. Mr. How joined Southwest Securities
(HK) Capital Limited (“Southwest Securities”), a company principally
engaged in investment banking and advisory services, in February 2016
and is currently a managing director and head of corporate finance
where he is responsible for corporate finance advisory work. Prior to
joining Southwest Securities, Mr. How had worked for several renowned
investment banks with PRC and Hong Kong background, including CMB
International Capital Corporation Limited, ICBC International Holdings
Limited and CCB International Capital Limited.

Mr. How has held the following positions in the following companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. He has been an independent non-executive
director of Million Stars Holdings Limited (formerly known as Odella
Leather Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8093) from January 2015 to March
2017; an independent non-executive director of World-Link Logistics
(Asia) Holding Limited (stock code: 6083) since December 2015; an
independent non-executive director of Forgame Holdings Limited (stock
code: 484) since January 2016; an independent non-executive director
of Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (stock code: 755) since May 2017;
an independent non-executive director of 1957 & Co. (Hospitality) Limited
(stock code: 8495) since November 2017; and an independent non-
executive director of Watts International Maritime Engineering Limited
(stock code: 2258) since October 2018.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Senior Management
The senior management of the Group consists of our general manager
and our deputy general manager.

Date of joining

Name Age the Group Position/title
] FiR MAKEE B, Bt
M B

Mr. Feng Xing ()5 £) 42 August 2004 General manager
IBEE A 421%, 20044 8H IR
Ms. Lin Zi (1K) 44 March 2004 Deputy general

manager
WELT 4453 200443 A Bl

For the biography of Mr. Feng Xing, please refer to “Directors and Senior
Management — Directors” in this section.

Ms. Lin Zi (M%), aged 44, is the deputy general manager of our
Company. Ms. Lin is primarily responsible for assisting our general
manager to implement our business strategies. She has been appointed as
our deputy general manager since 29 April 2019.

Ms. Lin has over 20 years of experience in the advertising industry. Prior
to joining the Group in March 2004, she worked as a manager in Jinjuan
Advertisement Technology Co., Ltd* (&8 EERIERMH AR AF), a
company principally engaged in the advertising and media business,
from March 1998 to December 2002, where she was responsible for
media placement. She then worked as a manager in Shanghai Prospect
Advertising Co., Ltd* (L/8RTSEEBR A A]), a company principally
engaged in the business of placement of TV advertisements, from
December 2002 to February 2004, where she was responsible for
media placement and liaison with media. Since March 2004, Ms. Lin
has been the deputy general manager of Beijing Ruicheng, where she
was responsible for the management of liaison work with media. From
March 2016 to October 2018, she was the director of Beijing Ruicheng,
where she was responsible for the implementation of operating strategies
of the company. Ms. Lin graduated from the University of Science and
Technology of China with a bachelor’s degree in information technology in
December 1998.

Ms. Lin also has held the following positions in the members of the Group:

BREERE
REERRREIRE HARSIE MBI REIRAENK

Date of appointment
as a member of the
senior management

Principal roles and
responsibilities

BZEABR IEBK
EEERERH REBE
29 April 2019 Implementation of our business
strategies
201948298 BB EBRR
29 April 2019 Assisting the general manager
to implement our business
strategies
2019F4F29H BB ERRMNEERE

ERBSAREZRE F2HLXEFRaREEE—E
i

MELL - 4457 ARFERKIE - MRTTEAEWHE
BPREEERRPIFEBRE - RE2019F4 4290
REREREIREIE -

ML LB E20F EEITEMNLER - FE2004F3 A MAK
EEFT 0 BN19985F3 8 £2002F 12 A HEL BB EERIR
BRDERAGEIE  ZARTENEESE REEER - M
WEEEEBIRK - B - 11X 2002F12 A E2004F2 A H
TEBRSEEERARKE  ZRRTENETERES
WMER  MEETEEIS R BEEBE - 520045
AR MZTAILFIFEHRNEREE  AREEEEH
®ITAE - M20165E3 A E2018F 108 @ AL miEHmE
= BEEHZARMNEERE - MZIH1998F12 AR
BRI i AR E TS E B RITE L 24] -

MR ABER B AR R EEATRAL

Name Position held Principal roles and responsibilities Date of appointment
=L PR AL FTERBRBE EZERH

Beijing Ruicheng Deputy general manager Management of liaison work with media 1 March 2004
Bk BliEsE BEASHG AR TIEE IR 200443 H1H
Shanghai Kailun General manager Overall management 5 August 2015
e e ERen 201558 H5H

Ms. Lin was awarded the “Eighth China Advertising Golden Vision Awards:
Leader in China’s Marketing” (/\JEFBE4S &R EEHEEEETE
A#) in 2016 jointly by the Advertiser Magazine* (&% E5#541) and the
Committee of the China Advertising Summit* (FEIEE T IE€HES).
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Joint Company Secretaries
Mr. Leng Xuejun

For the biography of Mr. Leng Xuejun, please refer to “Directors and
Senior Management — Directors” in this section.

Mr. Lei Kin Keong, was appointed as a Joint Company Secretary of
the Company on 29 April 2019. Mr. Lei currently serves as an assistant
vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited
(a professional services provider specializing in corporate services),
responsible for managing company secretarial work for several listed
companies. Mr. Lei has over 18 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and company secretary.

Mr. Lei graduated from the Polytechnic University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor’s degree in accounting in 2006. He is also a non-practising
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom (formerly known
as the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators at the United
Kingdom).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. The Company has applied and complied with the
required code provisions set out in the CG Code during the Relevant
Period.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having been made specific
enquiry, the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the Relevant Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Composition of the Board
During the Reporting Period, the Board comprised the following
Directors:
EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS: DIRECTORS:
Ms. Li Na (Chairlady) Mr. Zhao Gang
Mr. Feng Xing Mr. Li Xue
Ms. Wang Xin Mr. How Sze Ming

Mr. Leng Xuejun

The Directors possess the skills, experience and expertise either in
the same industry or relevant to the management of the business
of the Group. The biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship between members of the Board (if any) are set out in
the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 21 to 26
of this annual report. There are no relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships) among
members of the Board.

2. Chairlady and General Manager

The positions of the Chairlady of the Board and General Manager
are held by separate individuals to ensure that a segregation of
duties and a balance of power and authority are achieved. The
Chairlady is responsible for overseeing the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of the Group. The
General Manager is responsible for formulating detailed plans for
implementation of the business strategies of the Group set by the
Board and mainly focuses on the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s business. During the Relevant Period, the
position of the Chairlady of the Board was held by Ms. Li Na and
the position of the General Manager of the Company was held by
Mr. Feng Xing.
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Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors, all of whom are independent, play
an important role in the Board. They possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management skill and
experience and have provided their professional advice to the
Board through regular attendance and active participation. Three
Independent non-executive Directors have represented more than
one-third of the Board, they provide a certain degree of check and
balance and exercise independent judgement for safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and the Group as a whole.

The Non-executive Directors of the Company has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date and are subject to
retirement by rotation at the Company’s annual general meetings
at least once every three years in accordance with the regulations
of the Articles of Association. The Company has received an annual
written confirmation from each Independent Non-executive Director
in respect of his independence to the Company pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company has assessed the
independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors and is
satisfied that each of them continued to satisfy the independence
criteria under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and remained
independent throughout the Relevant Period.

The Company also has at all times complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors and the appointment of an Independent Non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Independent Non-
executive Directors represented at least one-third of the Board and
there will be a sufficiently robust and independent voice within the
Board to counter-balance any situation involving conflict of interest
and safeguard the interests of the independent Shareholders.

Division of Responsibilities of the Board and the
Management of the Company

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. The main corporate
governance duties of the Board include (a) to formulate and
review the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Company; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (c)
to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to formulate,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) to employees and Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees including
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. The Board has delegated to the Board
committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference which are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The management under the leadership of the general manager
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses and implementation of the strategy and direction set by
the Board.

To ensure the operational efficiency and specific issues are being
handled by relevant expertise, the Board delegates certain powers
and authorities from time to time to the management.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well
as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Code
Provision A.1.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held in each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of majority of directors,
Directors may participate in person or through electronic means of
communication.

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly. Notice of not less than fourteen days is given
of all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with the
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda. For other
committee meetings, seven days’ notice is given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are despatched to the Directors or
committee members at least three days before meetings to ensure
that they have sufficient time to review these documents and be
adequately prepared. When the Directors or committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters to
be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the Chairlady prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the committees and the decisions reached in the meetings,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the
Directors within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held so that they have an opportunity to request
amendments. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by Directors.

No Board meeting or general meeting of the Company was held
during the Relevant Period. As the Company was listed on 12
November 2019, the Board did not have any matters to discuss
during the Relevant Period which is less than two month. The
Company will fully comply with the requirement under the code
provision A.1.1 of the CG Code to convene Board meetings at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. On
30 March 2020, the members of the Board have (i) reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; (ii) reviewed the policies
and practices on corporate governance of the Company; and (i)
reviewed and monitored the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements during the
regular board meetings. As at the date of this annual report, the
members of the Board have reviewed the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, including (i) reviewing
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, (ii)
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, (iii) reviewing
and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and (iv)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

Board Committees

The Board has established Board Committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the Board Committees. The Company
currently has three committees under the Board, which are
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the
Nomination Committee. These committees operate in accordance
with their respective terms of reference established by the Board.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 22 October 2019
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The audit committee of the Company consists of three members,
namely Mr. Li Xue, Mr. Zhao Gang and Mr. How Sze Ming. Mr. Li
Xue currently serves as the chairman of the audit committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things,
to review and supervise our financial reporting process and risk
management and internal control system, nominate and monitor
external auditors and to provide advice and comments to the Board
on matters related to corporate governance.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Code provision C.3.3(e)(i) of the CG Code provides that the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee shall have the terms that the
members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management and the Audit Committee must meet at
least twice a year with the Auditor. The Company has included
such terms in relevant terms of reference, and thus complied
with the Code provision C.3.3(e)(i) of the CG Code during the
Relevant Period. During the Relevant Period, a meeting of the Audit
Committee was held to receive the auditors’ advice on matters that
need to be brought to the attention of the Group's audit work in
2019. As at 30 March 2020, the members of Audit Committee have
conducted an annual review on the risk management and internal
control system of the Group and monitored the auditing process.
The Audit Committee has proposed recommendations to the Board
on the risk management and internal control system as well as
monitoring the auditing process.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee 22 October
2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The remuneration committee of the Company consists of
three members, namely Mr. Zhao Gang, Ms. Wang Xin and Mr.
How Sze Ming. Mr. Zhao Gang currently serves as the chairman of
the remuneration committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (1)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (2) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (3) either determining, with
delegated responsibility or making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

No meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the
Relevant Period. On 30 March 2020, the members of Remuneration
Committee have reviewed and approved the remuneration
recommendations from the management, and proposed
recommendations to the Board on the results of reviewing the
remuneration policies and structure of the Directors and the
management for the relevant years.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 22 October
2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The nomination
committee of our Company consists of three members, namely Ms.
Li Na, Mr. Zhao Gang and Mr. Li Xue. Ms. Li Na currently serves as
the chairlady of the nomination committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board and/or in senior management and
succession planning for Directors in particular the Chairlady of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
Structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, and diversity of perspectives), developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination or election
or re-election of Directors, developing and maintaining a policy
concerning board diversity policy ("Board Diversity Policy"),
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of Directors
and assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors. During Relevant Period, the Nomination Committee
did not hold any meeting. On 30 March 2020, the members of
Nomination Committee have reviewed the structure, scale and
composition of the Board, and proposed recommendations to
the Board on the re-election of the members of the Board in the
forthcoming AGM in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy of
the Company and the nomination policy of the Directors; accessed
the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
its approach to achieve and maintain an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of our Board that are relevant to our business
growth. Pursuant to our board diversity policy, selection of Board
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
industry experience. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The nomination committee is responsible for ensuring the
diversity of the Board. The nomination committee will review our
board diversity policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness and we will disclose the implementation of the board
diversity policy in corporate governance report of the Company on
an annual basis.

As at the date of this annual report, the diversity of the Board of the
Company is set out in the following diagram, and the biographical
details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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Educational structure
Number of people and percentage (%)

Age structure

Number of people and percentage (%)
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- University diploma Bachelor's degree Aged 35-40 Aged 41-45
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PROCEDURE AND PROCESS FOR NOMINATION OF
DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of Directors including Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the following procedures and process:

i. Selection criteria:

(@)

the Nomination Committee shall consider suitability of
the proposed candidates for appointment as Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules, the board
diversity policy and the policy for the nomination of the
Board;

the character and integrity of the proposed candidates
for appointment as Directors;

the Nomination Committee shall consider whether the
proposed candidates for appointment as Directors are
equipped with the skills and expertise required from
members of the Board, and the skills, experiences and
knowledge to make significant contributions to the
Group;

the Nomination Committee shall consider the re-
election of any Directors who are to retire by rotation
having regard to the re-appointment of Directors’
performance, ability to continue to contribute to the
Board and their participation in the Board;

compliance with the criteria of independence, in case
for the appointment of an Independent Non-executive
Director, as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules;

the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with
regard to directors of the Company; and

any other relevant factors determined by the
Committee or the Board from time to time as
appropriate.
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Nomination procedures includes:

(@)

the Nomination Committee shall formulate a selection
criteria list of candidates for directorship, the list will
consider the Board’s existing structure, scale, the
board diversity policy and the needs of talent groups
and the Board, the candidates shall equip with the
characteristics of coordinating with the expansion of
the overall talent groups, experiences and expertise of
the Board;

the Company shall identify suitable candidates for
directorship through various channels, including the
recommendations from the Directors, the Shareholders,
the management or external head hunting companies;

the company secretary must obtain the personal
information of the nominated candidates in
accordance with the regulations of rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules;

the Nomination Committee shall perform sufficient due
diligence on the individual candidate for directorship
and make recommendations to the Board for the
consideration and approval;

to ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-
executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment setting out the expectation in terms of
time commitment, committee service and involvement
outside meetings of the Board;

in the context of re-appointment of any existing
members of the Board, the Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its consideration
and recommendation, for the proposed candidates to
stand for re-election at the annual general meeting;

the Board shall has the final decision on matters
related to the selection and appointment of
directorship; and

the Board shall recommend the retired director
to stand for re-election at the general meeting in
accordance with the recommendations from the
Nomination Committee. The appointment of retired
director is subject to the approval at the annual
general meeting.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Remuneration of Directors

The executive Directors did not receive any allowance for their
service provided as Directors throughout the Reporting Period.
executive Directors who are also the Company’s staff are entitled to
receive salaries, fees, discretionary bonuses and other allowance and
benefits in kind according to their respective positions taken on a full-
time basis in the Company. Information relating to the remuneration
of each Director for the Reporting Period is set out in note 11 to the
financial statements on page 122 of this annual report.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, for the
Reporting Period, details of the remuneration of senior management
(except for Directors) by remuneration grade are as follows:

Remuneration band

e E
Nil to RMB500,000

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 22 October 2019. The principal particulars of
these service contracts are (j) for a term of three years commencing
from their respective effective date of appointment until the day on
which the next general meeting of the Shareholders for re-election
of Directors is held; and (i) are subject to termination in accordance
with their respective terms. The service contracts may be renewed
in accordance with our Articles of Association and the applicable
Listing Rules.

At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board subject
to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be determined
by the members in general meeting. Any Director so appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director so appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Any Director so appointed by the
Board shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an annual
general meeting.

At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However, if the
number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one third shall be the number of
retiring Directors. The Directors to retire in each year shall be
those who have been in office longest since their last re-election or
appointment but, as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
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10.

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election as a Director
and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
has been lodged at the head office or at the registration office
of the Company. The period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence no earlier than the day after despatch of the notice of
the relevant general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the
period during which such notices may be lodged must be at least
seven days.

A Director is not required to hold any shares in the Company by
way of qualification nor is there any specified upper or lower age
limit for Directors either for accession to or retirement from the
Board.

From time to time the Board may appoint one or more of its
members to be managing director, joint managing director or
deputy managing director or to hold any other employment or
executive office with the Company for such period and upon such
terms as the Board may determine, and the Board may revoke or
terminate any of such appointments. The Board may also delegate
any of its powers to committees consisting of such Director(s) or
other person(s) as the Board thinks fit, and from time to time it
may also revoke such delegation or revoke the appointment of and
discharge any such committees either wholly or in part, and either as
to persons or purposes, but every committee so formed shall, in the
exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any regulations
that may from time to time be imposed upon it by the Board.

Training of Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the Reporting Period, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by reading and watching
relevant materials on the topics related to (i) the duties of directors
and role and function of board committee including conflict of
interest, board diversity, (i) corporate governance including
managing inside information, and (iii) rules and regulations and
operation and management of listed companies and by attending
compliance seminar arranged by King & Wood Mallesons on the
topics related to inside information, connected transaction, notifiable
transaction and the Model Code. All Directors have provided written
records of the training they received for the Relevant Period to the
Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The management of the Company provides explanation and information
to the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of financial statements

and other information put before the Board for approval. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for preparation information and
representations contained in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the Reporting Period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flow for the
Reporting Period.
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In the preparation of the financial statements, the International Financial
Reporting Standards have been adopted and appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently used and applied. The Board is not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Board continues to prepare the financial
statements set out on pages 80 to 163 on a going concern basis. The
reporting responsibilities of the Group’s external auditors, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 75 to
79 of this annual report.

AUDITOR REMUNERATION

The management performs a review of remuneration to external auditors
on an annual basis. The fees for audit services have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee, and the fees for non-audit services, if any, are approved
by management.

For the Reporting Period, the fee paid/payable to the external auditor of
the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out
as follows:

Audit and related service:
Non-audit service:

FEERZIRTE -

COMPANY SECRETARY

The executive Director, the vice chairman of the Board and one of
the joint company secretaries, Mr. Leng Xuejun is an employee of the
Company. He is responsible for overseeing the company secretarial
matters and financial matters of the Group. Having regard to Mr. Leng’s
past experience in handling administrative and corporate matters, the
Board considered Mr. Leng has thorough understanding of the internal
management and business operations of the Group.

In addition, the Company has appointed Mr. Lei Kin Keong as another
joint company secretary to work closely with and provide assistance to
Mr. Leng in discharging his duties and responsibilities as a joint company
secretary and acquiring relevant experience within the meaning of Rules
3.28 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Lei is an assistant vice president of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a corporate service
supplier.

Mr. Leng is the primary corporate contact person of the joint company
secretary, Mr. Lei. In respect of corporate governance, the Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations related to the Company and
other matters, Mr. Lei contacts Mr. Leng, and Mr. Leng is responsible
for reporting to the Board and/or the Chairlady of the Board. The
relevant professional trainings that Mr. Lei participated in during the
Reporting Period has reached 15 hours, which is in compliance with the
requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As the Company was
listed on 12 November 2019, Mr. Leng promised to take at least 15
hours of relevant professional training every year from 2020 to update his
knowledge and skills.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy of the Company, the Company currently
does not have any predetermined dividend payout ratio. A decision to
declare or pay any dividend in the future and the amount of any dividends
depends on a number of factors, including but not limited to our results
of operations, financial position, working capital, capital requirements and
other factors the Board may deem relevant. The Board will review our
dividend policy from time to time. The Board has the absolute discretion to
decide whether to declare or distribute dividends in any year. There is no
assurance that dividends of such amount or any amount will be declared
or distributed each year or in any year.

Any declaration and payment of dividends under the Dividend Policy will
be subject to the Board’s determination that the same would be in the
best interests of the Group and the Shareholders of the Company as
a whole. In addition, the declaration and payment of dividends may be
subject to legal restrictions or any applicable laws, rules and regulations
and the Articles of Association.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure
of corporate information, which will enable Shareholders and investors
to make the informed investment decisions. Information about the
Company’s financial results, corporate details and major events will
be disseminated continuously through publication of announcements,
circulars, interim and annual reports and press release. All published
information is promptly uploaded to the Company’s website at www.
reach-ad.com, for public access.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity
for the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairlady of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees will be available to
answer questions at shareholder meetings. The external auditor will also
attend the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies
and auditor independence.

From the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has not convened any general meetings.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting

In accordance with article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at the general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
rights, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to process
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to The Board
Shareholders can also submit enquiries to the Board and send proposals
to be put forward at shareholders’ meeting to the Board by sending emails
to repr@reach-ad.com or making phone calls to our investor hotline at 86-
10-85769398.

Room 302, 3/F, Building C1, Phase I, Dongyi International Media Industrial
Park, No. 8 Gaojing Culture Park Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report,
there has not been any change in the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association. The Company’s memorandum and articles of
association are available on the website of the Company (www.reach-ad.
com) and that of the Stock Exchange.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Accountability

The Board understands that its responsibility is to assess and
determine the nature and level of risks that the Group is willing to
accept in the process of reaching strategic targets, and to ensure
the Group establishes and maintains an appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control system. This system is aimed
at managing and not eliminating the risk of not meeting business
targets, and will provide reasonable but not absolute guarantee that
major misrepresentations or business losses will not occur.

Governance Structure of Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Board is responsible for the assessment and determination
of significant risks and the effectiveness of risk management
monitoring for the year; it is responsible for the maintenance of an
appropriate and effective design, implementation and monitoring
of risk management and internal control system; it is responsible to
make conclusions as to the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system every year, after considering the work
and review results of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in the
assessment and monitoring of the risks encountered by the Group,
the design, implementation and monitoring and performance of the
relevant risk management and internal control system. It reports
to the Board after properly reviewing the Group’s annual risk
management and the effectiveness of the internal control system.

The management is responsible for the proper design,
implementation and monitoring of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system as authorized by the Board, and the
confirmation provided to the Board as to the effectiveness of the
relevant system.

The securities department is responsible for the coordination of
risk identification and assessment procedure, preparation of risk
assessment reports, bringing identified risks to the attention of the
Audit Committee, and reporting the actions taken in relation to
the management of such risks. Business divisions and functional
operations department are responsible, in accordance with their
duties, for identifying, assessing and responding to the risks
relevant to their individual departments’, and carrying out risk
management procedures and internal control measures within the
scope of their respective business and functional operations areas.

The internal audit department is responsible for assisting the
Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system, and to conduct
independent assessments of the established risk management
and internal control system in accordance with the internal control
procedures.
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3. Risk Management

3.1

3.2

Risk Management Objectives

The objective of corporate risk management is to manage
significant risks that the Company is faced with, and take
major responsive and monitoring actions on significant risks,
through the establishment of a proper organizational system
and management model. The specific objectives are as

follows:

o Identify, assess, quantify, respond and manage all
current and future process of significant risks, and
contain them at all times at a level and in a scope
acceptable to management;

o Establish a consistent and effective monitoring and
reporting system for all significant risks;

o Provide reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations of external monitoring authorities, and that
various departments comply with relevant internal
rules and regulations;

. Provide reasonable assurance that significant
measures to achieve the Company’s targets are
properly implemented.

Major Processes of Risk Management

Risk management mainly includes four major areas: risks
identification, risks assessment, risks response and risk
monitoring and reporting.

Risk identification: each business and functional

Risk assessment:

department and its subsidiaries
conducts, once in a year, an
identification of potential internal
and external risks in its respective
operation processes. During risks
identification, references are mainly
made to the impact the risks have
on the Company’s objectives, and
major problems or risk incidents in the
business activities for the past year.

according to the risks assessment
standards, each business and
functional department and its
subsidiaries reviews the risks identified,
and assesses the possibilities of
occurrence and the extents of impacts
in order to screen out the significant
risks. The Group adopts a combination
of bottom-up and top-down risk
assessment procedures to fully identify
all of the Group’s significant risks, which
are then given rankings. Significant risks
are then reported to the appropriate
management level, Audit Committee
and the Board. A final list of significant
risks is confirmed after thorough
communication and discussion.
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Risks response:

Risk monitoring

and reporting:

3.3

Significant Risks

the responsible department of the
identified risks formulates a risk
response plan by properly applying
methods such as risk avoidance,
risk reduction, risk sharing and risk
acceptance, with consideration of
the Group’s level of risk tolerance.
This allows the Group to properly
allocate resources for risk mitigation
or improvements on risk response
measures, with an aim to reduce
the overall risk of the Group to an
acceptable level.

Risk monitoring and reporting are
carried out by integrating the use
of risk warning indicators, internal
auditing and periodic summarized risk
reports.

In accordance with the corporate risk management
framework, the Group conducted an overall risk audit and
assessment in 2019. The following lists the significant risks
of the Group and its major affiliates, the changes in the
nature and level of these risks, and the relevant plans and
monitoring measures to mitigate these significant risks.

Risk Type
EEIER

Risk Relating to Industry
Policy

ITEREERRE

Risk Description

[t pus

Potential regulatory risks in the Internet
advertising industry

The Company is developing its Internet advertising
business. As compared with traditional media,
Internet (including mobile Internet) as an emerging
media communication channel, is subject to
relatively loose policy regulations with low industry
entry barriers and sufficient industry competition,
which provides a good external environment for
the sustainable rapid development for Internet
advertising industry. The development of Internet
advertising industry will continue to accelerate
the update and improvement of relevant policies
and regulations. In the future, changes in the
regulatory policies of China on the Internet may
negatively impact on the innovation, competition
or information communication in the Internet
field, which may cause negative influences on the
business operation and financial conditions of the
Company.
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Response Mitigation Plan

EBREHGT R

While developing new business, various departments
of the Company are paying close attention and
understanding to the regulation institutions’ latest
policy requirements towards the field, to ensure the
Company’s business does not touch the regulatory
red line. The Company formulated an emergency
response plan to ensure that when the laws and
regulations changes, it can buffer the fluctuation
influence on the Company’s operation caused by the
policy changes in a timely manner.
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TREBRE

Risk Type
R

Risk Relating to Customers
Needs

EPHFRER

Risk Relating to Human
Resources

ANERER

Risk Description

2 B ot

Operating risks caused by the increase of
customers’ requirements

With the development of new media advertising,
customers’ concepts and awareness continued
to change. Customers’ demand shows a trend of
personalization, diversification and specialization,
and customers’ demand on creative advertising
continues to grow, which means the Company
needs to increase cost to satisfy customers’
demand. If the Company fails to satisfy
customers’ demand in a timely and reasonably
manner, it may face the risk of losing customers.

EFERESEBNEERE
BEEMREESVANER - EPESMEHAT
ErE(t - TRPERERAML - Zat BXL
BT FRUESAIESEROTEHRRS BB
REQNRFRILINA - HREPHFTNR - IR
AARELFAERREPHER - AIEEERESR
K

Risks of lacking personnel in core positions
or insufficient ability

The advertising industry is a talent-intensive
industry. For advertising media companies,
professional advertising talents are the
core resource to the enterprise and the key
element for maintaining and improving the
core competitiveness of the Company. The
development of the new media advertising has
put forward higher and more diverse requirements
for the Company’s personnel, which requires the
personnel to have corresponding knowledge,
skills and experience. The industry has a high
mobility of talents, if the Company cannot
retain the existing talents, nurture new talents
continuously, hire new and experienced talents,
and fail to construct its talent team, it will have
a significant adverse impact on the Company’s
operation.
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AlME @ ERNEEATREENZOER 2
REMBA R RROBEF NOMBEER - FEE
BEENER  HARABRETER &k
MK - FRERA S AEAENAE - HEem
K5 o TEATRBMK - BERRITEZERE
AT B TREREEETA - SIEFNEAR
BEOAT - EEATZRAS BHER - SHRRK
EREELTERIMNTE -

Response Mitigation Plan

RBREHTR

Facing the challenges brought by customers, the
Company is constantly responding to customers’
demand by connecting to the industry’s leading
edge to understand the emerging advertising model
and nurturing employees’ business capability. The
Company conducts real-time monitoring on the
advertising changes, actively investigates excellent
cases of various media and grasps the latest
development of the industry through participating in
advertising exhibitions and other forms, to understand
advertising trend and formulate corresponding plans.
In order to satisfy customers’ various demand, the
Company hires social talents, provides employees
with regular trainings and encourages employee to be
innovative through motivating excellent creativity.

NEHE T HROPE - [ETENBBH TR
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The Company values on the construction of talents
resources. Based on the principle of enhancing
compensation competitiveness through incentives,
the Company establishes a reasonably compensation
system to pay employees equal to or higher than
the general salary level of equivalent positions in the
labour market so as to attract human resources in the
society and retain existing talents.

In order to improve the overall competence level of
employee, the Company (i) strengthens recruitment
evaluation management during talents recruitment
and through multiple channels to obtain candidate
information to ensure the ability of recruiters
matches the recruitment position; (i) strengthens
the professional training and coaching, conducts
orientation, pre-job and on-the-job training regularly
SO as to continuously improve employees’ expertise
and competence. The Company will include the
competency of its employees at all level into the
indicators of performance appraisal and regularly
conduct evaluation on the employee’s competency in
accordance with scientific evaluation methods to give
them awards and punishments.
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Risk Type Risk Description
[E B 2R B L g A

Risk Relating to Business Risks of violating advertising content

Violation With the continuous enhancement of the public's
awareness of the quality of advertisements
and the continuous improvement of the
requirements of the relevant laws and regulations
on the authenticity of advertising information,
the Company needs to bear more social
responsibilities and legal obligations to create
a trustworthy society and protect consumers'
rights and interests.

If the company fails to detect problems in a
timely manner due to the Company's insufficient
review of customer qualifications, omissions in
the review of advertising content, or customers
deliberately concealing the true information of
their products or services, the Company may
damage its reputation due to non-compliance
of advertising business activities, or penalties or
claims to the Company.

EBEMAR EERBRESRRR
BEADHESEERANTEIRES - ARERE
FREESESEEENRBEERFELTE A
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4. Internal Control 4.

4.1 Internal Control Objectives
The Board acknowledges its responsibility to supervise the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system, and
a sound and effective internal control system is achieved
through a management structure with explicit authorization
and internal monitoring accountability. The objectives are:

o to reasonably assure that the enterprise is operated
and managed in compliance with the laws and
regulations, the safety of assets, and the authenticity
and completeness of its financial reports and related

information;
o to enhance operating efficiency and effectiveness; and
o to promote the achievement of the enterprise’s

development strategies.

46 Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019

Response Mitigation Plan

RBREHTR

The business department of the Company constantly
pays attention and understands the advertising
industry’s latest requirements of the laws and
regulations.

The Company established a sound business process,
customer service process and internal control
system to conduct strict review on customers’
qualifications, identities and products so as to secure
the compliance of the advertising business activities.
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4.2

4.3

Internal control

The Group has referred to the COSO (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission)
framework, and incorporated the Group’s business
management characteristics in the design of its internal
control system, and has established an internal audit
department to take responsibility of the internal control
function. The Company hired a third-party institution
to perform internal audit work once a year. During the
Reporting Period, the Group completed risk oriented internal
assessments on monitoring and anti-fraud, sales and
receipt, procurement and payment, project management,
human resources and salary, day-to-day fund management,
outbound investment process, and periodically followed-up
with the rectifications of the problems identified by internal
audit. The management and the Audit Committee reviewed
the internal control assessment reports, and assessed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The scope of the review included the
Group’s major control and risk management functions,
such as financial control, operations control and compliance
control.

As at 31 December 2019, the Board considered that, the
Group had carried out internal control’s “plan, review, report
and follow-up” processes of the close-loop management
system, that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate, that the
Company’s procedures on financial reporting and the
compliance of the provisions under the Listing Rules were
effective and adequate and that no significant areas of
concern that might affect the Group’s financial control,
operations control, compliance control and risk management
functions had been uncovered.

In the process of the review, the Board considered that the
resources, qualifications, experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting, as well as their training
sessions and budget were adequate.

Inside information

The Company is aware of and strictly complies with the
requirements of the currently applicable laws, regulations
and guidelines, including the obligations to disclose inside
information under the SFO and the Listing Rules, and the
Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission, at the time when
the relevant businesses are transacted. The Group has
established the authority and accountability, as well as the
handling and dissemination procedures in relation to inside
information, and has communicated to all relevant personnel
and provided them with specific trainings in respect of the
implementation of the continuous disclosure policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s handling and
dissemination procedures and measures in relation to inside
information are effective.

4.2

4.3
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REPORT DESCRIPTION

This report is prepared by Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited
(the “Company”) in accordance with the requirements of Appendix
27 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” to the
Listing Rules for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019 (the “Reporting Period”). The report covers the Company and
all holding companies and is published after review and approval
by the Board of the Company. The corporate governance of the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” in this annual report.

ESG GOVERNANCE

Statement of the Board

During the Reporting Period, the Company completed
the initial public offering. During the listing process, the
Company actively promoted the management of the
environmental, social and governance, established the
“System of Environmental, Social and Governance” and
created a management system of environmental, social and
governance with clear delineation of responsibilities. The
Board of the Company undertakes the overall responsibility
for the environmental, social and governance of the
Company. In order to fulfil the social responsibilities of a
listed company, during the Reporting Period, the Company
has established a working group on environmental, social
and governance, which is responsible for the implementation
of strategies and policies of the Board, and has developed
an environmental, social and governance indicator system,
and formulated relevant working procedures to promote the
management and implementation of environmental, social
and governance matters.

The Company takes “creative innovation and entrepreneurial
innovation” as its corporate philosophy, “building up the
most trusted advertising brand in China” as its mission and
“building a bridge between brand and customers” as its
vision. Committing to pursuing the core values of “treasure
reputation with essence and sincerity”, the Company is
strived to pursue harmonious development of the value of
corporate, employees, investors and society, actively fulfilling
its social obligations to help creating a more friendly and
sustainable society.

Stakeholder Engagement and Identification of Material
Issues

The Company strives to establish and maintain multi-
channels for communication with stakeholders to secure the
rights and interests of each stakeholder and implement the
communication and management of social responsibilities.
The Company has identified key stakeholders who have
close relationship with the Company and has identified
the Company’s key issues on environmental, social and
governance through analysing the stakeholders’ needs. Key
stakeholders of the Company and communication measures
including:
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Stakeholders Communication channels

&

Government and
regulatory initiatives

B R B E e

Shareholders and
investors

BERRIEEE

Customers

P

Employees
E&

Business partners

BIERH

BERE

e  Study on policy issues and guidance

documents

T8 PR B a8 Mt

e Participate in training organized by relevant
authorities and associations

o ZHFREM - BeAmanE)

e Seminars and symposiums

.« HEREHE

e Investors’ columns
e KREEZIR
® The general meeting of shareholders

o BERXE®

e Mailbox

o {48

e Roadshows
o KA

e Market researches

o MIHAM

e Demand analysis

o FROMT

e Point-to-point communication services

o HHEEBIRG

e Internal meeting
o AEEH

e Face-to-face communication with

employees
o HETEM¥ERM
e Trainings
o I

e Centralised meetings
o KhEE
e Daily communication

o HEER

Expectations

Ll

Compliance with laws and regulations
BFRERER

Integrity in the business

BN
Timely and complete information disclosure
TENEERE

Continuous improvement on operation
performance

FHEM G S XK BT

Compliance operation management
ERBEER

Timely and complete information disclosure

KrTEnES R

Improvement on services and product quality
ReRErERES

Satisfying customers’ diversified needs
mEEFPZTbHEK

Protection on employees’ interests

HEB Tz

Caring for employees’ health

HEE TR

Provision of training and learning opportunities
REENIREER S

Reasonable promotion channels and effective
performance incentives

BB TS B B RSB

Openness, fairness and justice procurement
ANF -~ AF - RIEERE

Compliance with contracts and mutual benefits
EFE4 - BFHERE
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RIR - HERERRE

In order to further identify the key areas of corporate’s
practice on environmental, social and governance and
information disclosure, in accordance with the requirements

RE-THELRRE  HERERERM
ERWENERES  ARAMRIEE BB
PRCGRE - B RERMERESD) - GRIE -+
SRERERIEM) B - RS - &R

on “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
and “A STEP-BY-STEP GUIDE TO ESG REPORTING”, the
environmental, social and governance working group has
identified issues concerned by stakeholders and sorted
out the materiality assessment, so as to disclose relevant
information on operation management as accurately and
comprehensively as possible.

Scope of “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide”
(BRI - HEREAREED) EEHE

A. Environment
AR

A1 Emissions
ATEEY

A2 Use of resources

A2E R R

A3 The environment and natural resources
ASIRIE R RAER

B. Society
B.AtE

B1 Employment
B1{Ef®

B2 Health and safety
B2l fREIZ &

B3 Development and training
B3% & BT

B4 Labour standards

B4 T8

B5 Supply chain management
B5{itfEHE IR

B6 Product responsibility
BeEmE T

B7 Anti-corruption
BTRES

B8 Community investment
B8itm R E
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Material environmental, social and governance issues of
the Company
AATNEREE - HERERRE

Carbon emissions management
IREERE TR

Green operations, lower energy consumption
HEEY  RIEERER

Compliance with China’s laws and regulations
BIRREFOAERER

Equal opportunity and diversified employment, employees care
FERZTLER  ETHEE

Occupational health and staff safety

BERERETLE

Employee development and training
B TR EERE

Prohibition of child labour and forced labour

BirET ReabitsT

Open and fair procurement

NHRFRE

Customer services and boycott against false advertisements

BEP R LA ERES

Anti-corruption

RIE1ERR

Community welfare
fad=/N
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CREATING A SUSTAINABLE INDUSTRY CHAIN

High-quality service

As a leading comprehensive advertising communication
services platform in China, the Company owns a professional
and mature service system and strives to provide customers
with multi-level and extreme marketing communication
services:

TETFHERE

1. BENRB
ERE2EBLENGALESEERB TS -
ARAREEERANRBER - BOARB
BEPRHZER - BBULE HEERY -

Content marketing Leveraging on excellent resource integration capability, the Company provides customers
with integrated marketing services of content implantation in TV variety shows, Internet
variety shows, TV dramas, web dramas, movies and large-scale network movie.

AEEH ERHENEREBARN  REFPR
MABZEAREABAEHRS -

HERGE  BRGE  ERE 85 EY 8

Vertical marketing Precision marketing which targeted on specific groups, the Company creates a precision
industrial chain vertical marketing model with unique operation methods and capabilities
to provide customers with vertical marketing services on items including parent-child and

fashion style.

EHEH STEPREABIOISEZ Y - DUBRMRIET AME N TSR EER B EEEEE N
REPRUERTHE RRHELESHEANEELSHRY -

Online marketing Based on big data analysis and grasp of the targeted groups, the Company provides
customers with professional searching engine marketing, mobile effect marketing,
programmatic purchase, socialisation marketing and precise integration of brand

placement services.

L ERABEI T REEEATNLE  SEPREBEXRRSIELH  BHWREH
REFCBE - a2k nig R ERARMIRS

Scenario marketing Conducting communication advertising in the real-life scene at where the audiences
are located, the Company provides customers with marketing communication services
including outdoor advertisements (such as mobile TV advertisement in subways and
airports), radio advertisement in private cars and outdoor advertisement integration.

HREH ERZFAAENREERSRETEELE  AEPRIEHBHERES - WEEF

SRS - RRERERS - PINE

In order to guarantee the service quality to customers, the
Company will organise professionals and third-party teams to
monitor the delivery during advertising period and summarise
the project after the end of project to improve the service
quality to customers. When miscasts or missed broadcasts
are found, the business teams and monitoring broadcast
team will report at the first place, propose resolutions
after checking with the media and the business teams will
negotiate with customers to ensure customer’s satisfaction.
During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive
any customer complaints.

In addition, the Company highly values customer’s privacy
protection. On the one hand, it conducts privacy protection
when signing contracts with customers. On the other hand,
customer’s information is encrypted by the Company;
no one has the rights to obtain the information without
management’s approval.

EEAFEHEERY -
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Responsible advertising and promotion

In order to comply with the “Advertising Law of the PRC”
((hEARKEMEEEE)), the Company links the entire
chain from media, advertising companies to customers to
jointly manage the legal publicity of advertisements and avoid
false, exaggerated facts and infringements of advertising
content. When the Company reaches an agreement with
the customers, the Company will arrange publication
on the requirements of the Advertising Laws, such as
factual terms which would cause misunderstanding and
exaggeration. In the process of delivering the finish product
of the advertisement, the professionals of the Company will
conduct preliminary review of the advertising content on the
factuality, effectiveness and wordings of the activity. If there
are any problems, the professionals will communicate and
negotiate with customers for amendments. If problems such
as misleading propaganda are found in the advertisement
while reviewing, the Company will actively coordinate and
communicate with the media and customers so as to help
the advertisement to be released legally and in compliance.

The Company highly values on the protection of intellectual
property rights. On the one hand, the Company registers
and renews trademarks and designs in a timely manner.
On the other hand, the Company pays attention to the
intellectual property rights of others during providing services
to customers so as to avoid infringing the rights and interests
of others.

Supply chain management

The Company strictly complies with the internal “Suppliers’
Management System” ((HEFEERHIE)) and
“Procurement Management System” ((REEEHIE)),
strictly follow the principle of openness and transparency
to ensure the suppliers’ procurement is fair, just and open,
and adhere to integrity management. The Company’s
system clarifies the mechanisms for supplier access, level
management and exit and strictly abides by implementation.
For core business procurement, the Company values the
dynamic inspection of its licenses and qualifications to ensure
it complies with the relevant requirements and amendments
of national policies and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, there were a total of 58
suppliers whom had a supply and sales partnership with the
Company. The Company did not receive any major supplier
has any significant actual or negative impact on business
ethics, environmental protection, human rights and labour
measures.
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ADVOCATING GREEN DEVELOPMENT

The Company’s main operating sites are located in Beijing
and Shanghai China. The Company strictly complies with all
environmental laws, regulations and rules of the place where it
operates, including the “Environmental Protection Law of PRC”
((pEE AR AMBIZRER#X)) and the “Energy Conservation
Law of the PRC” ({fhZE A R EAMBEEILIBEIRE)). The Company is
committed to continuously put its efforts to utilise natural resources
(such as energy, materials and water) as efficiently as possible in
its operations and offices to enhance energy efficiency and energy
protection, and to minimise overall emissions and its impact on the
environment as far as possible.

As an industry-leading all-media advertising sales service provider,
the Company puts its focus on corporate social responsibility,
advocates and practices outstanding corporate citizenship, and
strives to pursue harmonious development of corporate value,
employee value, investor value and social value. Despite the
small impact of our operations on the environment, we continue
to implement the environmental philosophy of green innovation,
continuously launch innovative green office initiatives to promote
energy conservation and emission reduction, aiming at minimizing
the consumption of energy resources and emissions in our daily
operations. At the same time, the Company strictly adheres to
national laws and regulations and industry policies. During the
Reporting Period, the Company did not have any major non-
compliance in relation to environmental laws and regulations.

1. Emission management
As an advertising sales provider, the Company’s
environmental impact is mainly due to the consumptions
in office space. Emissions are mainly from waste of the
consumption in office, including greenhouse gases, domestic
sewage and office waste. For various types of emissions, the
Company’s treatment methods are as follows:

o Domestic sewage and office waste: since the
Company is a service-oriented enterprise, daily
domestic sewage and office waste are handled by
the municipal waste disposal initiatives. The Company
reduced general waste emissions by encouraging
employees to adopt measures like using less
disposable items and reusing printing paper.

. Hazardous waste: since production and manufacturing
are not involved, there is no significant hazardous
waste. All electronic products of the Company will
be sold and continued to be used after reaching a
certain number of years of using (non-scrapped). As
the Company’s existing equipment is relatively new,
no significant hazardous wastes were generated this
year, and no disclosure would be made.

o Greenhouse gas: the greenhouse gas is mainly
from the direct emissions from business vehicles
and indirect emissions from purchased electricity.
The Company advocates green office, low-carbon
operations, and encourages employees to take public
transportations to save energy and reduce greenhouse
gas emissions
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Disclosure of Emission Information

Indicators g

Greenhouse gas emissions from direct EEREHROREREHNE
sources

Greenhouse gas emissions from indirect ERERRNRZEREHNE

sources

Total greenhouse gas emissions RERBAKNE

Greenhouse gas emission per milion RMB ~ BETAXUNEEREHNE

revenue

BEREMHIEE

Total hazardous waste emissions
Total domestic garbage from office operation i A& ER FHE G S
Garbage emission per milion dollars BETEERANRHNRE
operating income

Note: The statistical scope of emission data is in line with the scope of
the listed entities of the Company;
The calculation method of greenhouse gases adopts the
calculation method of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC);
The calculation method of total domestic garbage from office is
estimated by the per capita discharge.

Resource management

The Company advocates green office, integrates the concept
of low-carbon management into its daily operations, actively
takes up the responsibility for the environment, and drives the
electronic office of the Company. The daily use of resource
is mainly from the consumption of gasoline from the use of
business vehicles, the consumption of purchased electricity,
water and paper produced from office as well as the use of
packaging materials. The managing measures include:

o Energy consumption: emphasising the practice of
switching off lights and power sources after work; opted
to switch on corridor lamps at intervals by turns; used
energy-saving power packs and inductive hand-washing
facilities; considered to purchase equipment with lower
energy consumption under the same efficiency standard;
deployed vehicles in a reasonable manner to reduce
the mileage of driving without passenger, enhanced the
efficiency of vehicle usage and encouraged employees
to travel by taking public transportations.

° Water consumption: water conservation practice
is encouraged throughout the offices. By obeying
uniform arrangements for office building properties,
there was no issue in sourcing suitable water sources.

° Paper consumption: comprehensively implemented an
online automation system to encourage the employee
to do work in a paperless manner with less printing
as much as possible, to promote the replacement of
paper-based fax with email communication for the
avoidance of waste of paper, and to encourage staff
printing on both sides of a paper and re-use paper
whenever practicable.
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B EREE
Data for 2019
Unit By 20195 E8E
Tons CO, equivalent ~ BECO, & 8 17.67
Tons CO, equivalent  IECO,E 8 37.38
Tons CO, equivalent  BECO, & 8 55.05
Kg CO, equivalent/AMB F7CO,EE /BT 65.08
million ARE
Tons M N/A
Tons W 59
Kg/$million TR/EBL 6.98
it HEREIRR AT BB SR LN A L B R E
7ﬁ :
B ERBE ES A ERABTERIRZEZTZE
EB(PCORFIE A=
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Disclosure of Resource Usage Information

Indicators bi-]

Gasoline consumption FUBREREE
Electricity consumption B8
Consolidated energy consumption LARRHEERS

Comprehensive energy consumption per ~ BETAERAGA LR

million RMB revenue
Water consumption k&
Water consumption per milion RMB revenue B &2 £ W AFEKE
Paper consumption RAfE
Packaging materials consumption BEMEERE

Note: The statistical scope of emission data is in line with the scope

of the listed entities of the Company. Among them, due to
the Company'’s relocation in the middle of the year, the water
consumption data is only for the second half of the year.

The Company values the protection of the ecological
environment. As an advertising services provider, scale
production process is not involved and the Company does
not have business which has a significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

CREATING SHARED VALUE

The Company is committed to fully assuming its corporate social
responsibility, shaping and sharing its corporate culture, paying
attention to the care for and growth of employees, as well as
creating a good working environment for its staff. To provide better
service, the Company continues its service innovation, with a focus
on service quality and supplier management. The Company also
regulates its corporate operations, gives care to the community,
strives to achieve employee happiness, partner satisfaction and
social recognition, and endeavours in reaching a harmonious
development which maximizes the interests of the stakeholders.

1.

Employment

The Company adheres to the core principle of “people-
centric” and highly values the rights and interests of
employees. In accordance with various laws and regulations
such as the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”
((FhE AR FEMELEDE)) and the “Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China” ((F#EARLFELEAR
%)), the Company established a comprehensively regulation
and prepared the “Staff Handbook”, which includes
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
period, equal opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination.
The Company strictly complies with national and local
regulations to secure employees’ rights and interests on
statutory holidays and annual leaves and provide employees
with benefits such as insurance, housing provident fund and
overseas study opportunities.

Unit

Litres
KWH

Tons standard coal equivalent

Kg standard co:
RMB million
Tons

Kg/RMB million
Kg

Kg

ERERAERNE
Data for 2019
B 20195 EHiE
Tt 8,080.62
KWH 49,196
WEIZE 14.73
alequivalent/  TRIZE/BET 17.42
AR
i 48
TR/BBTARE 56.75
TR 285
T N/A
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As at the end of the Reporting Period, the employment data BHIERERR - ARBERBEIEBESIAT ¢
of the Company is as follows:
Disclosure of Employment Information EREEREE
Data for 2019
Indicator B Unit By 2019 E 8 &
Total employees BT Persons A 67
Number of female senior management SR EEAEH Persons A 3
employees
Cumulative annual turnover of male FERFNBHEETHERE % % 38
employees
Cumulative annual turnover of female FERHNLZHETIHBE % % 24
employees
Gender Full-time and part-time employees
B8 EXERBETIEE
Male employees - Femable employees Part-time employees - Full-time employees
SMET ZHEBT FBET ZBET

Academic qualification Age
BREE FRRESB
Postgraduate and above University bachelor degree Aoed
[ e g u ; 1 Aged 30 and below - Aged 311040 . Aged 41 and above
HRERIL REAH 0BT 31405 MERIAE
University diploma High School and below
RBER BHEIAT
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The Company strictly complies with the labour laws and
regulations, including the “Labour Law of the People's
Republic of China” (R #E AR AFME L E))%E), the “Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China” ((FFEE AR
HMFLB)E FE)), the “Law on the Protection of Minors
of the PRC” ({1 #E AR HEMEIRKF AREIE)) and the
“Law on the Protection of Rights and Interests of Women
and Children of the PRC” (P ZEARANMBE G Z R E#R
{R7&%)), and strictly abides by the management policies
established in accordance with the international policies
for the prevention of child labour and forced labour, as well
as the relevant policies and regulations established by the
countries and locations where our operation are located.

All employees of the Company are employed by the human
resource department in compliance with legal procedures,
S0 as to ensure each of them meets the job requirements of
corresponding positions and the requirements of laws and
regulations. The Company adheres to equality between men
and women, equal pay for equal work policy, fairly treats
employees of different gender, age, ethnicity, religion and
cultural background, protect the legitimate interests and
rights of employees, firmly resists the use of child labours
and forced labours, eliminates discrimination or harassment
in the workplace, to earnestly fulfil its social responsibilities as
a listed company. During the Reporting Period, there were
no child labour or forced labour cases happened.

Health and safety

The Company focuses on the health and safety of
employees. By complying with the requirements of the
“Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances” ({ T{5/R
1&41)) of China, the Company strives to create a healthy and
safe working environment for its employees. In accordance
with the regulations and requirements, the Company pays
work injury and medical insurance, regularly organises
medical examinations for employees, and appropriately
adjusts working hours in abnormal weather conditions,
to secure the health and safety of employees. During the
Reporting Period, the Company actively responded to the
local prevention and control work of safety, strengthened
employees’ attention towards the infrastructure safety in the
office area, corporated with the safety fire drills organised by
local government and property organisations and equipped
with essential fire safety equipment. During the Reporting
Period, there were no significant health, safety incidents and
fatalities happened.

Disclosure of health and safety information

Indicator BE

Number of death due to work injury AT THAH

Proportion of death due to work injury AT T8l

Number of workday recorded loss due to & L1845 T1EH
work injury
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Development and training

The Company puts heavy focuses on the development and
nurture of talents as employees are the most valued asset
of the Company. The Company established a performance
appraisal system and a promotion system. An annual training
plan for employee will also be established so as to provide
each employee a fair environment for growth and promotion,
provide male and female employees a fair training opportunity
with respect, and guarantee all male and female employees
reached the goal of 100% training rate.

In order to stimulate employees’ work potential and emphasis
on the hiring and nurturing of talents, through setting up of a
talent growth path integrating vertical professional and cross-
disciplinary development. It helped professionals to achieve
their long term development goals while meeting the demand
for an integrated development of cross-disciplinary talents.

The Company pays attention to the development of
employees in the aspects of new employee induction
training, employee management during the probation
period, the employee skills upgrading, as well as the key
role developments. Through setting up of a talent growth
path integrating vertical professional and cross-disciplinary
development, it helped professionals to achieve their long
term development goals while meeting the demand for an
integrated development of cross-disciplinary talents. Through
channels such as press conference, Internet media training
and department voluntary training sessions, the Company
enhances employees’ understanding towards corporate
culture, professional skills, business process, regulations
and policies and media industry information, and broadens
employees’ vision.

During the Reporting Period, the data of Company’s internal
trainings are as follows:

Disclosure of internal training

Indicator BB

Training rate of male employees BB THEIIE
Training rate of female employees i 8 TIR=R
Number of training sessions 5o EREk
Number of trainees EIIAIR
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Anti-corruption Management

The Company strictly complies with the relevant laws and
regulations such as the “Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China” ((FF#E ARLME L)) and the
“Company Law of the People’s Republic of China” ({/
FEAREMBEAFEY), and formulates the systems and
policies such as the “Corporate Ethics Conduct and Ethics
Handbook and Code of Conduct” ({/A Rl3EERFMERETF
fit 277 A5FA)), the “Anti-money Laundering Regulations”
((REEEEFIE)), the “Anti-corruption and Bribery
Management System” ((R/EH - BEEEEIEHIEZ)) and the
“Internal Audit Management System” ({ A EPE 5T & 12 4
J£)), establishes an anonymous email reporting channel to
clarify the processing, investigation and feedback process of
employees’ complaints, thereby mitigating the integrity risk.

All new recruits to the Company have to sign the Ethical
Conduct Commitment with the Company, and the human
resources department will conduct an integrity introduction
education for the new recruits. In addition, a good faith
clause, anti-corruption terms and penalties for breach of
contract were added to the procurement contract and
anti-corruption campaigns are regularly conducted during
employees’ training sessions. During the Reporting Period,
the Company did not have any significant matter which
breached relevant laws and regulation systems.

Community Welfare

The Company values on social development, commits to its
social responsibility and is actively engaged in social welfare
activities and community building work.

The Company mainly focuses on the building of community
culture and the development of rural schools. The Company
sent its employees to country schools to carry out donation
and encouraged its employees to actively participate in
various social welfare activities. The Company also actively
participated in social activities, for example, the Company
assisted the snow removal in the community on snowy days
to ensure the safety of the community.
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RIR - HERERRE

PROSPECTS

2019 was an important year for the Company. During the Reporting
Period, the performance of the Company has been steadily improved and
its initial public offering has been successfully completed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. In the future, while the performance continues to
grow, the Company hopes to take care of the environmental, social and
governance work.

Firstly, the Company will continue to deepen its environmental, social
and governance management. The Board will be more involved in the
environmental, social and governance work and decision-making. The
working group of environmental, social and governance will organise a
series of training for employees to promote the philosophy of cooperate
social responsibility and optimise the responsibility system mechanism.

Secondly, the Company will strengthen the communication with
stakeholders. Various departments of the Company will broaden the
channels of communication with stakeholders to maintain a closer
communication with Shareholders, regulatory institutions and customers,
and carry out compliance work to accelerate the rapid and sustainable
development of the enterprise.

Lastly, various departments of the Company will continue to implement
the environmental, social and governance practices. At the environmental
level, the Company will continue to develop the environmental
management system, improve the data base and prepare for future
compliance challenges. At the social level, the Company will improve the
quality of employee training, strengthen the business ethics and advance
the community welfare process.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWE

The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 15 January
2019 as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws of
the Cayman Islands. The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 12 November 2019. Pursuant to the Global Offering
(as defined in the Prospectus), the Company issued 100,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company on 12 November 2019 with a nominal
value of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$1.25 per ordinary share for a total
cash consideration of HK$125,000,000, before deducting professional
fees, underwriting commissions and other related listing expenses. The
IPO Net Proceed per share is HK$0.788.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group include the provision of the following types of advertising
services to our customers (i) TV advertising services; (i) online advertising
services; (iii) outdoor advertising services; and (iv) other advertising
services.

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period,
including an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business are set out under the sections
headed “Chairlady’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. These discussions forms part of this
Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The business operations and results of the Group may be affected by
various factors, including but not limited to the risks relating to the Group,
our industry, conducting business in the PRC. The Board is aware
that the Group is exposed to various risks. Except as disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report to the Group's risk and uncertainties, the
other principal risks and uncertainties affected the Group are summarised
below:

i) The Group has a concentrated customer base and the strong
market positions of our major customers may limit our bargaining
power when entering into contracts with these major customers;

(ii) The cash flow of the Group may deteriorate due to material
payment delays by our customers which may negatively affect our
business, financial position and results of operations;

(iii) The Group has a concentrated supplier base and any increases in
cost of the advertising resources provided by our major suppliers
could materially and adversely affect our results of operations,
financial position and business prospects;

(iv)  The Group may experience fluctuations in the gross profit margin
for our advertising services; and

(v) The business of the Group may be affected by seasonal fluctuation
in demand for our advertising services of customers in different
industries.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and protecting the environment and giving back
to community. The Group has implemented environmental protection
measures to reduce energy consumption, water consumption and paper
consumption.

Details of such are set out under the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. This discussion
forms part of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep abreast of requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong applicable to it to ensure
compliance.

The Group had complied with all relevant PRC laws and regulations in
all material respects including the Advertising Law of the PRC, Interim
Measures for the Administration of Internet Advertising and the Company
Laws of PRC during the Reporting Period. The Group has obtained all
requisite licenses, permits and certificates necessary to conduct the
operations in material respects from relevant PRC regulatory authorities.

The Group had also complied with all relevant Hong Kong Laws and
regulations in all material respects including the Company Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the Listing Rules and the SFO).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices

adopted by the Company is set out under the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY PARTIES

Relationship with Employees

The remuneration payable to our employees includes salaries and
allowance, performance related bonuses and retirement benefits
contributions. The salaries of our employees are generally determined
by the employees’ respective position, qualification, experience and
performance. The performance related bonuses are calculated based on
our employees’ respective position, duration of services and performance
of our employees. In order to attract and retain our employees, we assess
the remuneration package offered to our employees on an annual basis to
determine whether any adjustment to the basic salaries and bonus should
be made.

We provide training programmes for all of our employees to enhance our
employees’ knowledge, skills and capability relevant to the advertising
industry. All of our new hires will be provided with an induction programme
to familiarise with the Group, followed by on-the-job training based on
departmental needs and the development strategies of the Group. We
also provide promotion opportunities for capable employees as we have
policies and procedures setting out the assessment criteria for promotion.

Group’s relationship with our employees is satisfactory in general. Our
Directors consider that the management policies, working environment,
career prospects and benefits extended to our employees have
contributed to a good employee relations and employee retention rate.

For further details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument
policy of the Group, please refer to the sections headed “Directors’ Report
— Remuneration Policies and long-term incentive schemes”.

Relationship with Suppliers

We generally source advertising resources from advertising resources
providers and advertising agents. Advertising resources providers
(i.e. ultimate advertising resources suppliers) are generally companies
possessing advertising resources directly, examples of which include TV
stations, owners of websites, search engines, social media platforms, and
outdoor platforms. Advertising agents are advertising companies which
source advertising resources from the ultimate advertising resources
suppliers. As advertising agents may establish strong relationships with
the relevant suppliers or possess some specific advertising resources, we
engage these advertising agents as our suppliers, which is consistent with
the industry practice according to the CIC Report. The Company’s system
clarifies the mechanisms for supplier access, level management and exit
and strictly abides by implementation. For core business procurement, the
Company values the dynamicinspection of its licenses and qualifications
to ensure it complies with the relevant requirements and amendments of
national policies and regulations.

For further details regarding our major customers, please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

Relationship with Customers

As an established advertising services provider in the PRC, our major
advertiser customers are generally large-scale national enterprises. In
order to guarantee the service quality to customers, the Company will
organise professionals and third-party teams to monitor the delivery during
advertising period and summarise the project after the endof project to
improve the service quality to customers.

For further details regarding our major customers, please refer to the
sections headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and cost of revenue
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
Reporting Period is as follows:

The largest supplier BAHIER
Five largest suppliers AR ER
The largest customer BAREP
Five largest customers hARER

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or any Shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital had any interests in the five largest customers or
suppliers at any time during the Reporting Period.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Company was listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 12
November 2019. A summary of the condensed consolidated results and
financial positions of the Group for the past four financial years is set out
on page 164 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period and the Group’s state of
affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

The Company currently does not have any predetermined dividend payout
ratio. A decision to declare or pay any dividend and the amount of any
dividends depends on a number of factors, including but not limited
to our results of operations, financial position, working capital, capital
requirements and other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2019 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued during the Reporting Period are set out in note
26 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period and as at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 83 and page

84 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2019, The distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution amounted to approximately RMB163,716,000.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the during the Reporting Period and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Directors

Name Position

Ms. Li Na Executive Director and Chairlady of the Board

Mr. Feng Xing Executive Director and Vice Chairman of the Board
Ms. Wang Xin Executive Director

Mr. Leng Xuejun Executive Director and Vice Chairman of the Board
Mr. Zhao Gang Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Li Xue Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. How Sze Ming Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Feng
Xing, Ms. Wang Xin and Mr. Leng Xuejun shall retire from office as
Directors at the forthcoming AGM. All of them will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the

Company are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.
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DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company on 22 October 2019. The principal particulars of these
service contracts are (i) for a term of three years commencing from their
respective effective date of appointment until the day on which the next
general meeting of the Shareholders for re-election of Directors is held,
and (i) are subject to termination in accordance with their respective
terms. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with our
Articles of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

Each of our Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with our Company for a fixed term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the individual letter of appointment. Save
for the director’s fee, none of our Independent Non-executive Directors
is expected to receive any other remuneration for holding his office as an
Independent Non-executive Director.

None of the Directors has entered into, or has proposed to enter into, a
service contract with us (excluding contracts expiring or determinable by
the employer within one year without the payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation).

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND LONG-TERM INCENTIVE
SCHEMES

To attract and retain employees of the Group, the Group provides
competitive remuneration packages to its executive Directors and senior
management. These comprise salaries and allowance, performance
related bonuses, retirement benefits contributions and long-term incentive
plan which includes Share Option Scheme. The remuneration package of
executives Directors and senior management is reference to salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The performance related bonuses are calculated based on our
employees’ respective position, duration of services and performance of
our employees. The Group assesses the remuneration package offered to
our employees on an annual basis to determine whether any adjustment
to the basic salaries and bonus should be made.
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The remuneration payable to our employees includes salaries and
allowance, performance related bonuses and retirement benefits
contributions. The salaries of our employees are generally determined
by the employees’ respective position, qualification, experience and
performance. The performance related bonuses are calculated based on
our employees’ respective position, duration of services and performance
of our employees. In order to attract and retain our employees, we assess
the remuneration package offered to our employees on an annual basis to
determine whether any adjustment to the basic salaries and bonus should
be made.

We provide training programmes for all of our employees to enhance our
employees’ knowledge, skills and capability relevant to the advertising
industry. All of our new hires will be provided with an induction programme
to familiarise with the Group, followed by on-the-job training based on
departmental needs and the development strategies of the Group. We
also provide promotion opportunities for capable employees as we have
policies and procedures setting out the assessment criteria for promotion.

The non-executive Directors’ remuneration relates to the time commitment
and responsibilities. They receive fees which comprise the following
components:

(i) Directors’ fees, which are usually paid annually; and

(ii) Share options which are rewarded subject to the discretion of the
Board.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 67 full-time
employees (31 December 2018: 68). Compared with the total number of
employees in 2018, the number of employees in 2019 has not changed
significantly, and the total number of employees of the Company has
remained relatively stable.

During the Reporting Period, the relevant staff costs amounted to
approximately RMB18,701,000 (2018: approximately RMB17,797,000).
For details, please refer to note 10 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

RETIRMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC. The
PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit plan to fund the
employee benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes operated by the Group are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Neither the Directors nor any entity connected with the Directors had
a material interests, whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party subsisting during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period was the Company, its holding company, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or any
of their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate
or had exercised any such right.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts of the Directors, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company was entered into by the Company or existed
during the Reporting Period.

INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS'’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur
or sustain by the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
covering the potential legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis. For the Reporting
Period, no claim has been made against Directors and Officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save and except for the interests of our Controlling Shareholders in
our Company, during the Reporting Period, neither our Controlling
Shareholders nor any of our Directors and their respective close associates
(other than members of the Group) has any interest in a business, apart
from the business of the Group, which competes or likely compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group which would require
disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and/or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise should be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Interests of Directors and Chief Executive of the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest and Capacity
Y ERTERSH

Ms. Li Na® Interest in a controlled corporation
Ft@ REEEE NS

Mr. Feng Xing® Interest in a controlled corporation
THERSE S REEEBE R =

Ms. Wang Xin® Interest in a controlled corporation
FRE @ REE LB

Mr. Leng Xuejun® Interest in a controlled corporation
REBE AL REE LB

Notes:

(1) All interests stated are long positions.

2) Ms. Li Na is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jujia which holds
9.19% of the shareholding in the Company. She is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Jujia by virtue of the SFO.

3) Mr. Feng Xing Is interested in approximately 83.33% of the issued share
capital of Ruichengdemao which holds 4.41% of the shareholding in the
Company. He is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Ruichengdemao by virtue of the SFO.

(4) Ms. Wang Xin is interested in 53.38% of Youyi which holds 6.31% of the
shareholding in our Company. Ms. Wang Xin is therefore deemed to be
Interested in the Shares held by Youyi by virtue of the SFO.

) Mr. Leng Xuejun is interested in 52.43% of Jing Gen which holds 3.70% of
the shareholding in our Company. Mr. Leng Xuejun is therefore deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Jing Gen by virtue of the SFO.
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(a) FRAEBRITHABHAERZE

Shareholding

Number of percentage (%)
Shares held in the Shares®
FERGBEO BRESNBE S

36,761,102 9.19%
36,761,102 9.19%
17,645,329 4.41%
17,645,329 4.41%
25,246,606 6.31%
25,246,606 6.31%
14,781,639 3.70%
14,781,639 3.70%
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(b) Interest in the shares of an associated corporation (b)

Name of Director
BEEHE
Mr. Feng Xing

R

Name of associate
corporation

HBEEEE
Beijing Lingyu

ItRER

Nature of interest and
Capacity

EEMtE

Beneficial interest

i}

e
el

\

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined
under Part XV of the SFO which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise should be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares

and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO, the following persons (other than the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company) or companies had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be

disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange in accordance with
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder
BRRERE

Yingheng
&fs

Ms. Wang
T+
Jujia

EfE

Mr. Shi Rui
e

Ruichengtianhe
MR AR

Youyi
Bs

RIGEEBER (71 27

Amount of Approximate
registered capital percentage of
held (RMB) shareholding

i mEREHE
(AR¥ ) RESQESL
70,000 7%

(Long position)
70,000 7%

(F2)

M EXXCFREES - R 2019F 12 31 B » #iE
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ARG PR EREES RAEEAE XV HE2 X3
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Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Nature of interest and Capacity

ERMER S5

Beneficial owner?

BmEA A

Interest in a controlled corporation?
Sz NS ok Tl

Beneficial owner®

BB A

Interest of spouse®

BB Ease

Beneficial owner

BalEAA

Beneficial owner*
EnEa A
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Name of Shareholder Nature of interest and Capacity

REER ERMER D
Mr. Wei Chunlei Interest of spouse*
REFSXE BoiB e

Mr. Wang Pingpin Interest in controlled corporation®

FPHRRAE RIS A B E RS
Ms. Zhang Miao Interest of spouse®
R L iRk Y

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s “long position” (as defined under Part XV of the
SFO) in such Shares.

2) Our Company is held directly by Yingheng as to approximately 40.43% of our
total issued share capital. Yingheng is wholly-owned by Ms. Wang. Ms. Wang
is deemed, or taken to be interested, in all the Shares held by Yingheng for the
purpose of the SFO.

3) Our Company is held directly by Jujia as to approximately 9.19% of our total issued
share capital. Jujia is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Na. Ms. Li Na and her spouse, Mr.
Shi Rui are deemed, or taken to be interested, in all the Shares held by Jujia for the
purpose of the SFO.

(4) Our Company is held directly by Youyi as to approximately 6.31% of our total issued
share capital. Youyi is owned as to approximately 563.38% by Ms. Wang Xin. Ms.
Wang Xin and her spouse, Mr. Wei Chunlei are deemed, or taken to be interested,
in all the Shares held by Youyi for the purpose of the SFO.

(%) Our Company is held directly by Youyi as to approximately 6.31% of our total issued
share capital. Youyi is owned as to approximately 46.62% by Mr. Wang Pingpin.
Mr. Wang Pingpin and his spouse, Ms. Zhang Miao are deemed, or taken to be
interested, in all the Shares held by Youyi for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors was not
aware of any other persons (other than the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange in accordance with Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the Relevant Period.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

or securities held interest
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has conditionally adopted the share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”), which was adopted by written resolutions passed by
its Shareholders on 22 October 2019.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to eligible participants (including (i) any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
(i) any Directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; (i) any advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and (iv) such other persons, who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group) an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to achieving the
following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(ii) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going business
relationships with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are
or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Details of the principal terms
of the Share Option Scheme are set out below. The Directors may, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant options to any employee of the
Group, any non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors), any suppliers, any customers, any adviser or any participants
who shall be determined by the Directors from time to time on the basis
that the Directors’ opinion as to his contribution to the development and
growth of the Group. The maximum number of ordinary shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue upon the Listing
(the Company may refresh this 10% limit under certain conditions) or 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time where there are options to be
granted and yet to be exercised. The total number of Shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant
of options which would result in the number of ordinary shares exceeding
1% requires a Shareholder's approval with the relevant participant and his/
her close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his/her associates
if the Eligible Participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from
the date the offer together with the consideration of HK$1 by the grantee.
The minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted. All outstanding options shall lapse, among other circumstances,
when the grantee ceases to be a participant of the Share Option Scheme
by reason of the termination of his/her employment/death. No option may
be granted more than 10 years after the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme by the Shareholders of our Company (the “Adoption
Date”). Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years from the Adoption Date.
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The subscription price a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less
than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

@iy ~ the nominal value of a Share.

As at 31 December 2019, there was no option outstanding, granted,
cancelled, exercised or lapsed.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter any connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which should be
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that all the related party transactions disclosed
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements did not fall under
the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are required to comply with any of the reporting, annual review,
announcement, or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that
it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at the date of this report, there was no outstanding or pending litigation
and arbitration for the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
minimum public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules during
the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the COVID-19 in China and the subsequent quarantine
measures imposed by the Chinese government in early 2020 have had
a negative impact on the operations of our Group since the beginning
of 2020, as most of our Group's operations are located in China and
our Group's major suppliers/customers are located in China. Certain
customers had not yet been able to resume operations on site, resulting
in delay in collectability of our Group's trade receivables. The Directors
are still assessing the financial impact that the COVID-19 will have on
our Group's consolidated financial statements as at the date that these
financial statements are authorised for issue.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on Wednesday, 3 June 2020. The
notice of AGM will be sent to Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining Shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM to be held on Wednesday, 3 June 2020, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 29 May 2020 to
Wednesday, 3 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 28 May 2020.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has acted as auditor of the Company for the
Reporting Period. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has audited the attached
financial statements, which were prepared pursuant to International
Financial Reporting Standards. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu shall retire
in the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The annual results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Company, which is of the opinion that the preparation
of such financial information complies with the applicable accounting
standards, the requirements under the Listing Rules and any other
applicable legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been
made.

By Order of the Board
Li Na
Chairlady

24 April 2020
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RUICHENG (CHINA) MEDIA GROUP
LIMITED
i (PE) BEEEER AR

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ruicheng (China)
Media Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 163, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

RRERER

Revenue recognition from online advertising services

We identified the revenue
recognition from online advertising
services as a key audit matter due
to more than half of the Group’s
revenue is generated from online
advertising services and revenue
is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group.

The Group reported revenue
generated from online advertising
services of Renminbi("RMB”)
433,593,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019.

As disclosed in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements,
revenue from online advertising
services is primarily derived from
the placement of advertisements on
platforms such as websites, mobile
applications, social media platforms
and search engines. The Group
utilised a pricing model based on
specific terms of the contract. The
revenue from online advertising
services on cost per click or cost per
mille basis is recognised over the
service period based on the actual
clicks or views of the advertisement
confirmed by customers based on
the relevant contract terms.

Our procedures in relation to
revenue recognition from online
advertising services included:

e Testing the operational
effectiveness of Group’s
internal controls relevant to
recognition of revenue from
online advertising services;

e Comparing, on a sample basis,
specific online advertising
services revenue transactions
recorded during the year with
the underlying advertising
contracts, placement timetable
confirmed by both customers
and suppliers;

e Selecting, on a sample basis,
online advertising services
revenue transactions recorded
during the year and inspecting
payments from the contracting
parties and underlying payment
details; and

e Performing background
research on the new customers
to assess if the customers
existed.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HRELER

Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables

We identified allowance for expected
credit losses on trade receivables
as a key audit matter because

Our procedures in relation to the
allowance for expected credit
losses on trade receivables

HAREFREE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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both the balance of the gross trade included:
receivables and loss allowance
are material to the Group and the e
recognition of expected credit
losses involved a significant degree
of estimates and judgements made
by the management. .

Evaluating the independent
valuer’s objectivity, qualification
and competence;

Utilising our internal valuation
specialists to assess the
valuation methodologies and
the assumptions involved in the
estimated loss rates; and

As disclosed in Notes 20
and 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group
reported net trade receivables of
RMB294,693,000, after deducting e
expected credit loss allowance of of key data and assumptions of
RMB7,703,000 as at 31 December the expected credit loss model,
2019. including testing the accuracy
of the historical default data
and credit risk characteristics.

Assessing the reasonableness

Details of the estimation uncertainty
of the estimated impairment of
trade receivables are set out in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE REMRBERASUBRRAREZET (@)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going . HESHERARBECE SN ER ZREHEL & -
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence RIEFER B2RE  BERLSFEREEE
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events NEBNERNTHEEME  HMuERE 25
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability R ECERNEESEARE NREERAFRE
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material BEATNEEMN - BV EEZEMBSEFIRBERA
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's EABGEMBERERP 2 EEETE - BREEBENE
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial BIE  AESERELRIBRBER - BEEZHE
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our MEERNZEHMRE QRIS 2 EBZRE - A
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained M ARRBERIERATEES BEETERIFEL
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or & o
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the . FHESEM SRR BENHRAN - BERAR -
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, BREEE  URGKEMBERESETHERMIBRER
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the SHRFEIE -
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial . B OESEERNERIERTHNMEELERR
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to BB ZEREFE  WEHRAMEHRRERE
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We R-BZAE£EEZNAM EEMHT - TS
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of ABEZERERERHET -
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among BREMEEIN  FEEREEER TIENEZEE - &

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant ML  EABERERSE  BETSEFEZFHAL AT

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that i 2 AE A B RERPE ©

we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we TEEMREEBRRER HATECHEE@EBELMEY

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, R ERESR - WEM YRR E A AR R AE

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that HETEBEITUNMERRLREMEIE  UREERANIE

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where DN = 1= Ak = A

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we RECAIEEBBNSET - EEWEWMLBEE ARG S

determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the W HRER EZRAEE  MEKBREZEE 5%

consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore EZEEREPHRNELEEIE  RIEERERTATAR

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report WRELEE  ERGERNBRT  WREETEME
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or SEREPBREFREKNEMERBBAEEN AR
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should W BERETEAEREPBRZEE -

not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent BB ZHM AR E R TEERARERE -

auditor's report is Ip Yat Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu EE B EMR S EFHARAT

Certified Public Accountants HESEED

Hong Kong B

24 April 2020 20204 A24H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBRRREMZERER

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Other income, gains and loss

Selling and marketing expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Impairment losses under expected credit loss
model, net of reversals

Listing expenses

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations

Profit and total comprehensive income for the
year

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income
(expense) attributable to owners of the
Company
— from continuing operations
— from discontinued operations

Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations

EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations
— Basic (RMB)

From continuing operations
— Basic (RMB)

Notes
FaE

FRREREY

EH
HipgA - ez K gsia 6
HHE R E X
G
AE A 7
BHERBEEN TRREER

(feHkrs @) 8
EmRX

B A A A
PSR 9

K BB EETE A F N A 10

ERIEREER
REBH I EEBNFE AR 28

S b P e Gk
ARARHEE AEERN (B18) k2 EIK
g (FIs) 3R

— REFELEEY
— REDKRIEEER

IR RS (RN M e E R AR

— RERBEREER

SREF

REFRR DA ILEERT
— ER(ARH) )

— ERARE) 14
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Year ended 31 December

HE128310LFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT
845,820 783,364
(738,992) (687,753)
106,828 95,611
14,088 4,119
(15,098) (14,875)
(14,248) (11,202)
(7,576) (6,043)
(8,942) (998)
(18,918) (4,143)
56,134 62,469
(19,830) (15,846)
36,304 46,623
- (474)
36,304 46,149
36,282 46,623
- (474)
36,282 46,149
22 -
36,304 46,149
0.12 0.16
0.12 0.16




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

eI R

Non-Current Assets

Property and equipment

Other intangible assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Deferred tax assets

Loan receivable

Long-term deposit

Current Assets

Trade receivables, prepayments and other
receivables

Trade receivables backed by bills

Amounts due from related parties

Contract assets

Loan receivable

Bank balances and cash

Asset classified as held for distribution to
owners

Total Assets

Capital and Reserves
Share capital/paid-in capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total Equity

FRBEE
EUEINEELE
Hib I\ EE
BAREFABRNSREE

BIETRIRE E
FEUE R
~#RS

REBEE

B S RNGIR - TN TR R
HAibh YRR
SREMNG 5 R KEOR
e UK RSt 77 3R IR

BREE

FEUE R

RITRESR IR S

DERFHEDIRTHREAEANEE

BEERE

RARf#E
BABHER
G

EA/NSIE PN Ay
FEiERR AR

REEEE

As at 31 December

M12831H
Notes 2019 2018
FaE 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
15 5,234 5,493
38 43
17 - 6,050
18 2,789 638
19 - 13,000
20 303 401
8,364 25,625
20a 443,700 208,515
20b 38,000 -
34 2,819 14,850
21 6,498 -
19 12,579 -
22 68,034 36,747
571,630 260,112
15 - 2,243
571,630 262,355
579,994 287,980
26 3,578 80,800
210,777 7,011
214,355 87,811
142 120
214,497 87,931
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR

As at 31 December

M12831H
Notes 2019 2018
Ff 5 20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
Non-current Liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 2,464 2,795
Current Liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMERFKIE 23 240,535 94,243
Tax payables FERTFRIR 20,120 9,510
Contract liabilities aHaE 24 2,392 1,748
Bank and other borrowings #RIT R EADE K 25 98,349 83,523
Amounts due to a related party e — & B 5 5RIE 34 - 5,000
Lease liabilities HEEE 29 1,637 2,250
363,033 196,274
Liability associated with asset classified as held 2538 AZED R THAE ANEE
for distribution to owners HENEE 15 - 980
363,033 197,254
Total Liabilities B &85 365,497 200,049
Total Equity and Liabilities ERkEEEE 579,994 287,980
The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 163 were approved F80E163EMiRE SRR EEEELMN2020F4 A 24
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 April 2020 and BHbERFRETE - WA TIIEEREES -

are signed on its behalf by:

Leng, Xuejun Feng, Xing
REE BE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF =%

82 Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRERARLE
Paid-in Non-
capital/share Share Merger Capital ~ Statutory  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests  Total equity
B
ER/BA RBRE  AURE  ERBE  iRRBE  REER @ FBRER  EREE
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note ) (Notei) (Note i)
ik (Fzi) (FrzHi)
Balance at 1 January 2018 R2018E1 B1R &R 80,000 - - - 3819 50,334 184,153 - 134,153
Proft and total comprehensive income ERERRZENRAT
for the year - - - - - 46,149 46,149 - 46,149
Transfer to statutory reserve BRSETHE - - - - 2729 2,729 = - -
Distrbution of subsidfaries to owners of RAEBEEAARHELA
the Group (Note 2) (F329) - - e - - e - @
Distrioution of equity instrument at WAEERAANRRAAE
fair value through profit or loss SABR(RAAENAR
[FVTPL) to owners of the Group &) EATA - - - (1,500) - - (1,500) - (1,500)
Dividends recognised as distributions BRANRNRE (F13)
Note 13 - - - - S BA00 (400 - B0
Capital contribution from an owner of the AEE-2HEATE (Wi
Group Note i) 800 - - 184 - - %84 - %8t
Capital contributions from non-controling TEE-RNEL AR
shareholders of a subsiciary of the Group hErE - - - - - - - 120 120
Balance at 31 December 2018 2018512731 B I&EE 80,800 - - (39,291) 6,548 39,754 87,811 120 87,931
Proft and total comprehensive income ERETRZENRAE
for the year - - - - - 36,262 36,262 2 36,304
Transfer to statutory reserve SEEETRE - - - - 2,260 (2,260) - - -
Issue of new shares (Note 26 i) BT (k261 i) 70 2,000 - - - - 2070 - 2,070
Adustment arising from the Group REESBE| R (i)
Reorganisation (note iv) (80,800) - 90,734 (9,934) - - - - -
Deemed distribution as part of the Group fEARSEEA-Fo Ml
Reorganisation (Note v) R (i) - - - (2017) - - (2017) - (2017)
Distrioution to the owners (Note 15) METFHEEAH5) - - - (1,239) - - (1,239) - (1,239)
Issue of shares under the Loan Capitalisation ~ REEFEAZTHRG
(Note 26) (BizE60) - 1,711 - - - - 1,717 - 1,717
Issue of shares under the Global Offering RE2HBERINRR
(Note 26 vi) (BzE6u) 84 111,25 - - - - 11219 - 112119
Transaction costs attributable to issue of B RREERSRA
new ordinary shares - (22,448) - - - - (22,448) - (22,448)
Issue of shares under the Capitaisationlssue 145 BIME TR AHRL
(Note 26 vi) (Rrztopi) 2,614 (2,614) - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019512731 B T4 s 3,578 89,940 90,734 (52,481) 8,808 73,776 214,355 142 214,497
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Notes:

Jii.
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The paid-in capital/share capital as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018
represents the paid-in capital/share capital of Bejjing Ruicheng Advertising Co.,
Ltd.* (1t F i HEE BRG] (“Beiing Ruicheng’) and the share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2019.

In accordance with the articles of association of the subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and relevant PRC laws and regulations,
these subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10% of their profit after tax,
which is determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to a statutory reserve (including the general reserve fund and enterprise expansion
fund, where appropriate). Transfer to this statutory reserve is subject to the
approval of the respective board of directors, and is discretionary when the balance
of such fund has reached 50% of the registered capital of the respective company.
Statutory reserve can only be used to offset accumulated losses or to increase
capital of the relevant subsidiaries.

On 19 December 2018, Beijing Ruicheng received capital contribution of
RMB984,000 in cash from Ms. Liu Yang, an independent third party. Amount
of RMB800,000 was recorded in paid-in capital, which represented 0.99% of
equity interest of Beijjing Ruicheng and the remaining amount of RMB184,000 was
recorded in capital reserve.

On 27 March 2019, Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye Advertising Co., Ltd.” (& &7
HEEBR2F) (“Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye’) acquired the entire equity interest
in Beijjing Ruicheng with the consideration of RMBZ2 million when the then net
assets value of Beijjing Ruicheng was RMB92,734,000. The difference amount
of RMB90, 734,000 was credit to merger reserve and the then issued capital of
Beijjing Ruicheng of RMBS80,800,000 was transferred to capital reserve upon the
completion of the reorganisation.

On 1 March 2019, Ruicheng (Hong Kong) Media Co., Ltd. (“Ruicheng HK”) and
the then shareholders of Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye entered into an equity transfer
agreement, pursuant to which, the entire equity interest in Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye
was transferred from the then shareholders of Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye to Ruicheng
HK at an aggregate consideration of HKD2,353,000 (equivalent to RMB2,017,000).
The relevant registration procedure in respect of such transfer was completed
on 7 March 2019. The then shareholders of Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye received
cash consideration of HKD2,330,000 (equivalent to RMB1,997,000) based on
their proportion of investment amount in April 2019, the remaining consideration
of HKD23,000 (equivalent to RMBZ20,000) due to Mr. Soon Ao (“Mr. Soon’) was
settled in May 2019.

*English names are for identification purpose only.
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idated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERIMER

Operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:
Income tax
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation of
— property and equipment
— asset classified as held for sale
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Impairment losses under expected credit loss
model, net of reversals
Gains on early termination of a lease
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Fair value gain of financial assets at FVTPL

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in trade receivables, prepayments and
other receivables

(Increase) decrease in contract assets

Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Interest paid

Net cash (used in) generated from operating
activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL
Proceeds from financial assets at FVTPL
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of other intangible assets
Repayment from related parties

Loan to a related party

Payments for rental deposits

Refund of rental deposits

Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash generated from (used in) investing
activities

wEEe
R F

FRA T HIR(EL 9
FRSH
FBHA
BERA
AT &IBITE

e/ EV S

— D ERFEHENEE
Hip @& E#H
BEREEREETRERE
(FeHkrEm)
BeRlAR IEAR A B eas
HEMERREBOER
BRAREFABRNSREENARE
Yezs
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Hoth JE WO SRIRIE h

BHAE (B
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B 5 RE MR RGN

rz (A MmERE
BEfFEH
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REEE

B E
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BEMELERE
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REREFIS (PTR) R 2 F 88

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE

Notes 2019 2018
M5E 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETF T

36,304 46,149

19,830 15,710
(1,147) (181)

7,576 6,043

2,512 5,284

54 -

5 5

8,942 998

(732) -

187 -

(2,594) -

70,937 74,008
(224,640) (46,633)

(6,536) 3,228
644 (62,166)

107,773 77,414

(51,822) 45,851
(11,371) (15,798)
(7,208) (7,520)

(70,401) 22,533

1,147 181
17 (15,000) (6,050)
3,235 -
(702) (297)
- ©)

12,131 -

(100) -

(303) -

401 -
28 - (75)
809 (6,250)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EERERER

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
Note 2019 2018
M 20194 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Financing activities RYEER)
Capital contributions from an owner of the Group AN B — I B AJTE - 984
Capital contributions from non-controlling REEN B AR FEERR R FE
shareholders of a subsidiary of the Group - 120
Dividends paid BENEE - (54,000)
New bank and other borrowings raised ELAMEIRTT R EMER 99,458 111,000
Repayments of bank and other borrowings BIRRITREMER (85,000) (92,150)
Repayment to related parties EET @S (5,030) -
Repayment of the lease liabilities BEHEAE (1,950) (2,122)
Advances from Ms. Wang Lei (“Ms. Wang”) BEEZLE((EzL]) R BR 11,777 -
Repayments to Ms. Wang EBETELZL (10,000) -
Deemed distribution as part of the Group EBASLBEER— I HRIEDIR
Reorganisation (2,017) -
Issuance of new shares BATEIR D 2,070 -
Issue of shares under the Global Offering RIEZBREEEITRND 26 112,119 -
Payments of transaction costs of issue of new X ETTHT EBAL A H Ak 2K
ordinary shares (20,548) (525)
Net cash generated from (used in) financing BB ESME TR EEFE
activities 100,879 (36,693)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash Re RRSEBWILINORND) F5E
equivalents 31,287 (20,410)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F¥13R & MIREEEY 36,747 57,157
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year, FRBSRBFSEEBY KA
represented by bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE 68,034 36,747

86 Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION, GROUP REORGANISATION,
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1

1.2

General information

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability under Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, on 15 January 2019 and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12 November 2019.
The address of the Company’s registered office is Cayman
Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital Road, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands and the principal place
of business is room 302, 3/F, Building C1, Phase I, Dongyi
International Media Industrial Park, No. 8 Gaojing Culture
Park Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC. The Company
is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of advertising services in
the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in the
currency of Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. The Company and its subsidiaries
are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”.

Group reorganisation, basis of preparation and
presentation of consolidated financial statements

In preparation for the proposed listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the entities
comprising the Group underwent a group reorganisation
(the “Reorganisation”) as described below. Ms. Wang has
historically been controlling the entities now comprising
the Group (the “Controlling Shareholder”). Prior to the
Reorganisation, Ms. Wang owned approximately 55% equity
interest in Beijing Ruicheng.

The Reorganisation comprised the following steps:

1. On 7 December 2018, Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye was
incorporated as a company with limited liability in the
PRC. Ms. Wang owned as to approximately 54.4%
equity interest in Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye.

—RER - KEEAURGEMBERRNVERR

25 E%E
1.1 —RER

1.2

(R B EEEBEERAFT(ERE DR
2019F1 R15HIRIBEMEHE ARVERFE
BHEIMKR L AEREER AR RARNOR
2019F 11 A1I2EEB BB ERSMBMRAR]
([BE 22 F]) EMR _ETH « RARIREM#FEE i
it &#Cayman Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital
Road, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
9008, Cayman Islands & = B & 1 25 A E
LR HABE & H X b E &85k R BRI E E
EXEER _HICIRIESEI0E - ARAlA—
MR EER AR - MEMBAREZHER
PR E SR o

HEMBRRAARE(TARED 27 - 0
ARBENTRBARBNEES - RTXARF
REKBARGHE R AEE]

EEEAURGEMBERRNFERREZIE
REBRRARN N AERNERE L
W AEEETERSET T AAEESE
MUIEAD - FREBE-EFHAEER
REPE T Z 88 (=R R ) - WEBAERT - TX
THEA LRI AI556% X FE

BHEBIEATHE
1. M2018F12A7H  SEMMEEER

BEMKZRBREETAR - TR
BT B3 5 HI54.4%H A -

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR

87



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

88

1. GENERAL INFORMATION, GROUP REORGANISATION, 1. —RER EEEAURGEUBERRNERR
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION 25 EE (])
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)
1.2  Group reorganisation, basis of preparation and 1.2 SEEAURGETERRNVERERZIE

presentation of consolidated financial statements % (48)

(continued)

2. On 25 December 2018, Mr. Soon, as purchaser 2. A2018F12A25H @ HEAEHEAE
and Ms. Wang, as vendor, entered into a sale and FETLELWERERIN—HER
purchase agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Soon Wk B BEEWES SR
acquired 1% equity interest in Qingdao Ruicheng 1% RRAE - EiRTNE - BEm AR
Jiaye. After such transfer, Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye ¥EXBRINEGEDE -
became a sino-foreign joint enterprise.

3. On 15 January 2019, the Company was incorporated 3. R2019F1H15H » AR AIRER2
as an exempted company with limited liability under BEEPIEMK A EREERES
the laws of the Cayman Islands with an authorised AR EERAA380,000% T ([
share capital of Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) 380,000 7tl) * 9 /38,000,000 & I E1EO0.01
divided into 38,000,000 Shares of par value of IR - R2019F1825H * &
HKDO0.01 each. On 25 January 2019, 4,398,800 4,398,800% AR (D AR 2 R 34T T AR E
shares were allotted and issued to Yingheng Co., Ltd. Zr2ERENABERES ((REH
(“Yingheng”), a British Virgin Island (“BVI") company RESDRAETREFERAR(RIE]D -
wholly owned by Ms. Wang. Upon such allotment, the BREESERk % - ARRIA T L tREES
Company was indirectly owned as to approximately #154.4% ©
54.4% by Ms. Wang.

4. On 28 January 2019, Ruicheng Media Co., Ltd. 4. FA2019F1A28H - HHEEER AR
(“Ruicheng BVI") was incorporated as a limited liability (DhEBERES ) RIR A B A
company under the laws of BVI with an authorised SEEFMKLABREERAT  EE
shares capital of United States Dollars (“USD”) 5 fRAA5ETT ([3ET]) + 5 /50,0008%
divided into 50,000 shares of par value of USD0.0001 HFRMEEO0.0001E LK MK - RA -
each. On the same date, 100 shares in Ruicheng BVI T S B B SR I E R AN A AR
was allotted and issued to the Company at par value. MEEFT100/% A% 1) © FRBE k& + Tmasl
After such allotment, Ruicheng BVI was wholly owned RBRRHESHARRZERES -
by the Company.

5. On 21 February 2019, Ruicheng HK was incorporated 5. H2019F2F218 @ Inl BB RERS
as a company with limited liability under the laws of ERIFEMA L ABREEAR - @A -
Hong Kong. On the same day, 100 shares in Ruicheng Il B AR B A R RS A R
HK was allotted and issued to Ruicheng BVI. After 171000 MR 17 © BLEETTAki& - TnilE s
such allotment, Ruicheng HK was wholly owned by i EEBE RS EHE -
Ruicheng BVI.

6.  On 1 March 2019, Ruicheng HK, as purchaser, and 6. M2019F3F1H  HHES(HEAE

the then shareholders of Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye, as
vendor, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Ruicheng HK acquired the entire
equity interest in Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye at an
aggregate consideration of HKD2,353,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,017,000). After such transfer completed on
7 March 2019, Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye became a
wholly foreign owned enterprise and wholly owned by
Ruicheng HK.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION, GROUP REORGANISATION,
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

1.2

Group reorganisation, basis of preparation and

presentation of consolidated financial statements

(continued)

7. On 19 March 2019, Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye and the
then shareholders of Beijing Ruicheng entered into
a series of equity transfer agreements, pursuant to
which, the entire equity interest in Beijing Ruicheng
was transferred from the then shareholders of
Beijing Ruicheng to Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye at a
consideration of RMB2 million. Such transfer was
completed on 27 March 2019. After such transfer,
Beijing Ruicheng became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye.

Upon completion of the Reorganisation, the Company
has become the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group by interspersing the Company,
Ruicheng BVI, Ruicheng HK and Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye
between the Controlling Shareholder and Beijing Ruicheng.
The Group comprising of the Company and its subsidiaries
resulting from the Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing
entity, accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
has been prepared as if the Company had always been the
holding company of the Group.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”)

2.1

New and Amendments to International Financial

Reporting Standards, (“IFRSs”) that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments

to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first time in the current

year and early adopted and consistently applied IFRS 16

Lease (“IFRS 16”) using the modified retrospective approach

(including practical expedient permitted by IFRS 16) since 1

January 2016:

IFRIC-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IFRSs
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

The application of the new and amendments to IFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®
Definition of Material*

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform?*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
IFRS Stanaards, will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

2.2

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Except for the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting mentioned below, the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) anticipate that application of all other new
and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “New Framework”) and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards

The New Framework:

o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on
rights and a new liability definition that is likely to be
broader than the definition it replaces, but does not
change the distinction between a liability and an equity
instrument;

o discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

o states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or expenses
that arise from a change in the current value of an asset
or liability; and

o discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account,
the reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain IFRSs have been updated to the New
Framework, whilst some IFRSs are still referred to the
previous versions of the framework. These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020, with earlier application permitted. Other than specific
standards which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework on its
effective date in determining the accounting policies especially
for transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise
dealt with under the accounting standards.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains controls until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Merger accounting for business combination involving entities under
common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in which
the common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities or businesses
first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combined entities or businesses are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combined entities or businesses from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combined entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the cash-
generating unit within the Group of cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for distribution to owners
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
distribution to owners if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a distribution rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for distribution
of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the distribution, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed distribution
within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a distribution plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for distribution to owners when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after
the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
distribution to owners are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the

customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or

services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with

an alternative use to customers and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to

date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Advertising services, including Television (“TV”), online, outdoor and
other advertising services, are principal activities from which the

Group generated its revenue.

(i) Revenue from TV advertising services is primarily derived
from the placement of advertisements on TV channels or
variety shows. Revenue from services rendered is recognised
in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion
is determined by the actual broadcasted TV advertisements
and verified by reports issued by an independent third party
with relevant qualification and experience or by customer’s
confirmations on a monthly basis, which evidenced the

advertisement actually broadcasted.

(i) Revenue from online advertising services is primarily derived
from the placement of advertisements on platforms such as
websites, mobile applications, social media platforms and
search engines. The Group utilised a pricing model based
on specific terms of the contract which are commonly based
on cost per click or cost per mille, which means the cost per
1,000 advertisement impressions regardless of whether the
advertisement is being clicked by the viewers. The revenue
from online advertising services on cost per click or cost per
mille basis is recognised over the service period based on
the actual clicks or views of the advertisement confirmed by

customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(iii) Revenue from outdoor advertising services is primarily
derived from the placement of advertisements on outdoor
platforms such as LED screens on or in buildings, metros
or advertising light boxes in car shelters. The revenue is
recognised over the service period based on an advertising
schedule confirmed by customers.

(iv)  Revenue from other advertising services are primarily derived
from the placement of advertisements on radio channels,
newspapers or magazines or organising marketing events.
The revenue is recognised over the service period based on
an advertising schedule confirmed by customers.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in
an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group’s
performance completed to date, the Group recognises revenue in
the amount to which the Group has the right to bill.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled
using either (a) the expected value method or (b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Variable consideration (continued)
The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal
in the future when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment of
whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to
represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances during the
reporting period.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception or
modification date. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of advertising light boxes in car shelters that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3. FESTEE (@)
Foreign currencies (continued) s (58
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, HEEEHEANURSESMHMEEKIHEELNELZ
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit HREELHEEERER o

or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs IEE &S

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction UglE - BENEEAREE ZSEEFTHERN—
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily RS B EITEE AR E) EREN 2B
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use AREER FEEFBIFANETEHRRAGRNKEER
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the T EFTAZEERAR

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All the Group’s borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in AEBFBERKANEEEHAMEERER -

the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants BT Bh

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable fis BE 50 & T2 R 38 7N 52 (B 1 & 38 <7 AT 460 B 1 P 75 {6
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching HLARSSEREE - FEERBUTHEE -

to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for EREEENAIIBENHEXEEL TAE
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving & & BN BF B 75 ST 4% (4 B 12 B RA R ZN) B9 FE MR T 465
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related B eRBEBEBKARKFTENSHMEESE
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they R o

become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs BARBERB A
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are Bl &R KR FUET BT 50 - ME B IR AR IS MR H
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service ZHEHRGERAFRZ

entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits CHIEE BRI

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted REEEEMNDNEERERBHE - HEHETX
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when NHENARITRSEER © BRIES —BEET %
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits HEEAZRIOETT BRI ABERAE - TAIFT
are recognised as an expense unless another IFRSs requires or ERHREBERNEERAMASL -

permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as AR ERE e BEERENEENEF (fltnTE
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting LEs FRBRRB) BRAsE -

any amount already paid.

Taxation HE
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable Fr{SHiF SIE IR R FE N R T8 SR AR T A 4B AN ©
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. R ENTRIED IR ENERTENGTE o ERTUS
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income or FBERNRBRBENRT - JYARREEMEE 2 ERT
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that SRR B W A SR ST DA ROk /B R R B AT F0ER
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is HIEE - AREDNZREREMREBITHRERE
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively MITHR R E AT I A E -

enacted by the end of each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 /Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the
tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment including buildings, right-of-use assets,
leasehold improvements, motor vehicles, and office equipment
(other than properties under construction as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statements of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised, if any, in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Other intangible assets of the Group comprise computer software
and are amortised on a straight line basis over an estimated useful
life of 10 years. The useful life of the computer software is estimated
based on the expected usage of the computer software and their
technological and commercial obsolescence.

Impairment on property and equipment (including right-of-
use assets) and intangible assets (other than goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property and equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, corporates assets are allocated to individual cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The Group assesses
whether there is indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If
such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property and equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a
cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
Group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the Group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the Group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of IFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is not held for
trading.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

i Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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B RS R AR BT AL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other
income, gains and loss” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets including contract
assets, trade receivables and other receivables, amounts due
from related parties, bank balances and loan receivable which are
subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for contract assets
and trade receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3. FESTEE (@)
Financial instruments (continued) SRT A (@
Financial assets (continued) THEE ()

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to TREE R ARIE IR 2R & 2R B O 7T B
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (continued) S BT M A B AR E ()
0] Significant increase in credit risk (i) {Z AR R E L N

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

RiHh EVEEREEARBRESTEZIEM
B AEBRBRREHHERMTARENE
HERETEERE BRI TEBRENEY
ERREITEE R o FEEITZA AN AEES
EEAREANYENTEMNTHEER - 81
ERNETUENKAKLE HMA]SHESL
EER R ATEMER -

/\ﬁj%ﬁ‘ﬁé CEREERRERA D BEEEN
2EZRBIATER

-lH
mE}

SR T ESNED (2075) skR BB E AT
MERSIEMBRERL

. SMNEPTIZE AR R IEIREE R - 10
EEMZREILN - EEARIERED
1= BB

. T EEHEBAEBEEREIABT
&r#]%ﬂ‘éz ﬁ?ﬁ‘*i%@ﬂkﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ

. BERALEXENERRBERRES
1t

. BHER AEEELL AR T ROE
BAREEE « EESRINRENER
HIEHINBARREL o

Tim L FF AR AR ARERE &
BN FEHEBI0K - BB VIR TERIAK
EﬁﬁHﬁME?ﬁ%i@ébD BIFAEEAGER
A SRR E R R JE AN

AEEFE HEDNBAIE R REBRE B BREL N
ﬁﬂzﬁlﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁxﬁ\i WS 1ER] BRRE
VARECR BETA A R R IR 78 A A )15 PR L B &
BREIE -

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR



110

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(i

(iv)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(o) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on
the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade and other receivables are each assessed as
a separate group. Loan receivable is assessed for
expected credit losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The Grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables and contract
assets where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) FESFBR @)
Financial instruments (continued) SRT A (@
Financial assets (continued) THEE ()
Derecognition of financial assets AR L A E

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bank and
other borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019

ERTEERIRESREZANENT 2 HE - 3
CHEECHEAEAEECDHENSREERGRE
ZBAFOEBREREBES —TEE - ASR
BEBPH LR -

R ERIZE R A BN REER - BER
EEED B EEREAEZ BN ZEN B DR

=71
o ©

EEHEEE#EE

DHERBEB K
EREETADREMITLANRTHNEERS
BAELESTANTEEY BT RBESES -

#RTA

BT AANERREEAEREHIBAEaER
WEETHFRBEZNE[EL - ARRAETH
ER T ARCWRAEHRIE (EHBREREETAE)

=7
a ©

BREAAF BN ER T AEZNEESRER LI
B BE  HE ZFTAEHARFNBEFEET
A BB R e

B AR 2 R (8
TREERERSNAMENTUR - RITREME
) B R(E R BRI FORIRH AT E -

AUTER A E

BEEEARENEECET  BRIIEE - K
SETERIHRASRAE RIERNSBHAE
SREEED N MENREZ AR ERRR SRR -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

B RS R AR BT AL

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
individually for all the trade receivables. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about the ECL
and the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Note 31.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is RMB294,693,000 (2018:RMB147,457,000), net of loss allowance
of RMB7,703,000 (2018: RMB2,183,000).

fhEr TR R ENEERIF
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BEMEE M ORISR B B & B B ARE A H
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REMBERBBENEEMEL - EREREZE
EETRB AR

ZEmA RBERR S ERFERT o ME S
EVERT1 E@iﬁﬁ.ﬁ RIEVEAR - RIBRRERT &N
HiRMERR - SIS RT 8 & Al SRR AR - BIRAME
ET/HHFEﬁ&;REK/HIQFHﬁEEWL\ °©

et TR RN ER R

AT RREHRERRBAIREEHEEREBEREE
RT-—MBEERFREHEAFENRRBELTE
R KR A ARBAE R E A E 2R -

B Z W IR G a BE
FEEREEHEEERELRMEE S EEHE
BEETRERS - BREEERBBYGINE
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2019612 A31H + BFRUGKEMEREAEBEAAR
#294,693,0007T (20184 : AR¥147,457,0007T)
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Continuing operations

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

Revenue by service nature

Ws K 2 ERE R

() HEFENELKZHIKD

KRB 1L E &) 77 Al as

Year ended 31 December

Television (“TV”) advertising services
— Hard-sell TV advertising services (Note)
— Advertising solution packages involving
soft-sell TV advertising services (Note)

Online advertising services
Qutdoor advertising services
Other advertising services

BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
BR(ER]) BERS
— B ERESRS ) 207,934 290,752
— S REHERESRENE
LRGBS () 101,148 236,291
309,082 527,043
HTREERS 433,593 195,839
FINES RS 63,441 51,568
HAb B SRS 39,704 8,914
845,820 783,364

Note: Hard-sell TV advertising service is the placement of traditional
advertisements during TV advertising time slots; and soft-sell TV
advertising service is the implantation of advertisements in variety
shows and TV series such as product placement, title sponsorship,
sublitle advertisement and verbal slogan.

Revenue by customer types

Biat . BB EEESIRE B EE SR Z
HESE  MEEERESRESRAEEFF R
ELRBITEAES  WERBEA  BEEL -
FRESROFESE -

BREPIRIE 7 A a

Year ended 31 December

114

Advertisers
Advertising agents
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BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
BEE 504,679 516,245
EHERE 341,141 267,119
845,820 783,364
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Continuing operations (continued)

0

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

Revenue by categories of products or services being
advertised

Household furnishing & electronics FEERE

Foods and beverages RE
Telecommunications s

Internet and mobile games B A I T e,
Pharmaceuticals B A

Automobile B

Others EHAh,

Timing of revenue recognition

Over time BB

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

The Group principally earns revenue from the provision of
advertising services which usually range from one to twelve
months. Advertising services typically meet the criterion
where customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefit of the Group’s performance as the Group performs.
Therefore, such revenue is recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time, using output method.

5.

Wz

R EHER ()

SEREER (#)

(M)

(i)

BEEFENELRZ IS ()

KB & 2 Edn ZRE TR 7 iy ez

Year ended 31 December

AEETEARE-—REF =T _EAD
Fiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiuﬁzm o BERB -METEUT
AR BIZR S (B R 40 B 2 P [R) ey OB OB 78
AEBEBORBMEROMNE - Bt - AKE
ERAELEBEZERNEEN —REREAERX

ﬁﬁﬁwuﬁﬁﬁ”&/\ ©

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR

BZE12A31AILEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
150,932 258,718
155,384 210,429
25,694 30,506
411,570 183,695
67,495 52,852
15,886 26,314
18,859 20,850
845,820 783,364

Weas HEZR A5 AT
Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HILEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETFT
845,820 783,364

HEFSANELET
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Continuing operations (continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
(continued)

The Group acts as the principal during the provision of
advertising services and therefore recognised revenue
earned and costs incurred related to these transactions on
a gross basis where the Group is the primary obligor and
are responsible for (1) identifying and contracting with third-
party advertiser which the Group views as customers; (2)
identifying and contracting with media platforms to provide
advertising time or space where the Group views media
platforms as suppliers; (3) establishing selling price for the
advertising services; and (4) bearing sole responsibility for
fulfilment of the advertising services.

Advertising services, including TV online, outdoor and other
advertising services, are principal activities from which the
Group generated its revenue.

U

(i

()

Revenue from TV advertising services is primarily
derived from the placement of advertisements on TV
channels or variety shows. Revenue from services
rendered is recognised in profit or loss in proportion
to the stage of completion of the transaction at the
reporting date. The stage of completion is determined
by the actual broadcasted TV advertisements and
verified by reports issued by an independent third
party with relevant qualification and experience or by
customer’s confirmations on a monthly basis, which
evidenced the advertisement actually broadcasted.

Revenue from online advertising services is primarily
derived from the placement of advertisements on
platforms such as websites, mobile applications,
social media platforms and search engines. The
Group utilised a pricing model based on specific terms
of the contract which are commonly based on cost
per click or cost per mille. “Cost per mille” means the
cost per 1,000 advertisement impressions regardless
of whether the advertisement is being clicked by the
viewers. The revenue from online advertising services
on cost per click or cost per mille basis is recognised
over the service period based on the actual clicks or
views of the advertisement confirmed by customers.

Revenue from outdoor advertising services is primarily
derived from the placement of advertisements on
outdoor platforms such as LED screens on or in
buildings, metros or advertising light boxes in car
shelters. The revenue is recognised over the service
period based on an advertising schedule confirmed by
customers.

Revenue from other advertising services are primarily
derived from the placement of advertisements on radio
channels, newspapers or magazines or organising
marketing events. The revenue is recognised over
the service period based on an advertising schedule
confirmed by customers.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Continuing operations (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers
All advertising services are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Segment information

Information reported to Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM”), for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance, focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided. During
the two years ended 31 December 2019, the CODM
assesses the operating performance from continuing
operations and allocates resources of the Group as a whole,
as all of the Group’s activities are considered to be primarily
the provision of advertising services. Accordingly, the CODM
considers there is only one operating segment under the
requirements of IFRS 8 Operating Segments. In this regard,
no segment information is presented.

No geographic information is presented as the revenue, non-
current assets and operations of the Group are primarily
derived from its activities in the PRC.

Information about major customers

Continuing operations

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as
follows:

Customer A' BEPA

Customer B® ®PB

Customer C* ®PC*

Customer D® EFD?

! Revenue is from online advertising services.

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total
revenue of the Group for the relevant year.

3 Revenue is from TV advertising services.

N Revenue is from TV advertising services, outdoor advertising
services, and other advertising services.

s Revenue is from TV advertising services and online advertising

services.

5.

Wz 2 #RE ()
FRSEER (B
(iii) BEFEXNDETHEGENIEEHIR S E

(iv)

PA B SR M T BB —F - RERMK
WEEREISHRANBRE - DT RTEREH
MR ZEBANTHE -

AEBEH

MEZE(MEBLLRRE ((TBLELERRE
) EMAMBER B RO B MTED KRR
AR BEREICRNSCREHEZERK
RFE MR - RELZE 2019512 A31 B IEMIE
FE - FELEAREERILFECLE
BHKERBYORAEEER - REEAR
EENMBELEIWEAESREESR
oo BRI FBLEEAKERE  BREBEER
ISR EEAFFLELE DR TE - EH—E
EEDER o A - WS HELER o

MR AR  FERBEERKEEED
TERGEAPEMENES B2

FEEPEH
FEKEER

ERAFEEAEEARFZI0%AENERT
Ugzsan T

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
124,891 N/A2
114,116 189,550
102,724 N/A2
N/A? 136,865

K EHFE IR0z
B as I BB AR BB Y F e B 2S 10% 4 E »

KA B EEIRF A Kz -
KEBEEEIRE ~ FINEE IR REMBEEIRFF A

7o

KEEREERIERY T & &SRB M as
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6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSS 6. Hibl A ~ WEREE
Continuing operations BEEEER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT

Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A BUA 44 179

Government grants (Note i) ERAT T B (3D 6,307 3,940

Fair value gain of financial assets BAnEst A BaNemEEARE

at FVTPL (Note ii) Weas (Bt Ein) 2,504 -
Input tax additional deduction on value added tax (B Y3 IE R ZEANETFABR (M &iii)

(Note iii) 2,776 -
Gains on early termination of a lease (Note iv) IRATAR LIEFR A Aok 25 (T i) 1,100 -
Loss on disposal of property and equipment HEMERRENESE (187) -
Interest income on loan receivable JE U B SRR B 1,103 -
Foreign exchange gains Rl € 191 -
Others A 160 -

14,088 4,119

Notes: aE -

1} The amounts represented subsidies received from the local governments 10} FZ IR 43 B AN 5 [ ] AT B B B BT B BB
for rewarding the Group’s contribution to local economies. There were FTHIREITHRE © SZZ B R EIRM - AE R
no specific conditions attached to the grants and the amounts were R B IF 7E 1R 2 TR ©
recognised in profit or loss when the grants were received.

(i) The financial assets at FVTPL represented investments in TV series and (i) IR BT A B B % B 15K AR R AT AR B Y
internet dramas. During the year ended 31 December 2019, both of the RE - REEFE2019F 12831 HIFFE » ZHEREE
investments were derecognised as set out in Note 17. The details of fair AR RERR (RAfTaF1 757 8L) o DA (EETE B 1B E RNt
valve measurements are set out in Note 31. 31 ¢

(i) The PRC subsidiaries were granted an input tax additional 10% deduction (i) R EIZEF AR AE - BB 2 7] R2019F 44
on value added tax from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2021 according to 1HZE2021F 12731 H R T 1518 F A # B 58 N5
relevant law on value added tax of the PRC. 10% 71 °

(iv) Gains on early termination of a lease represented the net difference of (i) @ﬁg £ /5 EA9AYH TN 1 R A R 368,000 - 12
RMB732,000 comprising a RMB3, 147,000 decrease in right-of-use A “'j}fﬁf}/ﬁjj&ﬁﬁfﬂ/ﬁﬁ FARMT32, ;;0075 ?}E’( g
assets and a RMB3,879,000 decrease in lease liabilities, in addition to a AREENLARES, 147,000/ REA R FHIAR

RMB368,000 compensation from the lessor who breached the contract. #3,879,0007T ©

7.  FINANCE COSTS 7. REARE
Continuing operations REEERS
Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
Interest expenses on bank and other borrowings #2717 & EAb & Z &I E5 2 7,325 5,760
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENF SR 251 283
7,576 6,043
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8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS
MODEL, NET OF REVERSALS

Continuing operations

Impairment losses, net of reversals,

recognised on: (& mprEEE) -
— Trade receivables — Bk HSZ/TA
— Other receivables — Efh EYRT
— Loan receivable — EUER

— Contract assets — BHEE

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 31.
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Continuing operations

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)

— Current year G
— Deferred tax — RERIE
Income tax expense FriS®imx

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (“EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.

The applicable tax rate of Xizang Wanmei Advertising Co., Ltd.*
(AEEEESER QA (“Xizang Wanmei”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, is 15% according to Circular Zang
Zheng Fa [2018] No. 25 (the “Circular”). According to the Circular,
enterprises located in Tibet and engaged in specific encouraged
industries are qualified for applying a preferential tax rate of 15%
for the periods from 2018 to 2020. As such, the EIT rate for Xizang
Wanmei is 15% for both years.

LA TR B MR AR ER 1R

BHMEEBEEX THRERSE (EHRER)

Year ended 31 December

HBZE12A318LEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
5,520 998
2,963 -
421 -
38 -
8,942 998

AR B H NS -

REIEPISH ([REMSH])

FriSHiB X
? i«(é&%j&
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
21,981 16,057
(2,151) (211)
19,830 15,846

BEPECEMERA([REMSRED REEAT
BEEEHRIEN - PRENBLARMEFENTEA
25% °

RIEE B [2018]25%B A (@A) - AEE—
2EMBARABEEZEESERAR(AEEE])
HEABIEB15% - IRIEBAN - 12018F £2020F
R NRAEEN RS T EEENCEFER
HB15%MEERE - Fit - AREERMERE
AMEMESHBER15% °

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Continuing operations (continued)

According to the EIT Law and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, withholding income tax at a rate of 10% would be imposed
on dividends relating to profits earned in year 2008 onwards
to foreign investors for the companies established in the PRC.
Such dividend tax rate may be further reduced by applicable tax
treaties or arrangement. According to the arrangement between
the Mainland of China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention
of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income, the withholding
tax rate on dividends paid by a PRC resident enterprise to a Hong
Kong resident enterprise is further reduced to 5% if the Hong Kong
resident enterprise holds at least 25% equity interests in the PRC
resident enterprise, and remains at 10% otherwise.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax from continuing operations per the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

w13 /\Zl-i%$|§%% Bﬁ--gi

Fris®ip < ()

FRSEER(®
RBEEMEVEREEMETEERIED - SME
REE R BB A B B 20084F B ELHT & ) -
HEBRE S REBBA0%NTARMEH - ZF
P BT ] B & BB R R BB 15 E Sk i R — 23
1K o RIBEHERMMNE B RITTRRBERE SN
MELEBHBMG LEBROZE - HEREER
CEBETREROCEZ V25%EE - MZTREFE
REEAHEBEREEMIIRENBRBMEK
HE—TTEES% - BAUNERREASHERE10%

MR AEENBALFEBRIREETE - L ER
BETAELBYE -

REZNAEHRAXTERESABEIEMEE

e s 3R TR F A8 A SR TS B AR O TR T BT O R T BR 40
T

Year ended 31 December

HBE12A31BLLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Profit before tax from continuing operations REFFELEEBHRT AR 56,134 62,469
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% R B EPTST25% B R @ aE1E 14,034 15,617
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A 0FL R S RS
purposes 5,826 694
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEB BN BT E 64 1
Effect on different tax rate resulting from an —XINBRAREEZEEEHETEYN
entitlement of preferential tax rate of BREREz®
a subsidiary (94) (466)
Income tax expense s 19,830 15,846

*

English names are for identification purpose only.
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B RS R AR BT AL

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 10. HHEKEXRBELENFERRR

OPERATIONS

Profit for the year from continuing operations has been arrived at

after charging:

Depreciation of property and equipment

Depreciation of asset classified as hold for
distribution to owners

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Total depreciation and amortisation

Staff costs

Salaries and allowances
Performance related bonuses (Note)
Retirement benefits contribution

Total staff costs

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of revenue recognised relating to
short-term leases

Note: Performance related bonuses are determined based on the Group’s
performance, performance of the relevant individual within the Group and

comparable market statistics.

FEREXBEENFRENTENBRUTERS

[T
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
W NRETE 2,512 2,612
DEAFED R THEEANEENITE
54 -
E b E 5 5
PrE M EEE 2,571 2,617
BIKA
o MOERL 14,359 12,229
FRIBEMETEAT () 2,463 4,347
RKFEFIHER 1,879 1,221
@8 TR 18,701 17,797
% IR 1,380 831
AR AN ROBE KR
2,374 6,217

(T E) EEEEERLR « —F—

Wit RBEBGTEATIERFEERE - 1EEARAEEL
FKHERAEL KT SEFET -

NFFR
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11.

122

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the individuals
including emoluments for services as senior management of the
Group entities prior to becoming the Directors for the year, are as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Executive directors: BTEE:
Ms. Li Na (Note i) (Chairladly) A (i) (£58)
Mr. Feng Xing (Note ii BT ()
Mr. Leng Xusjun (Note i REELAE (M)

Ms. Wang Xin (Notes ii and iv) F e (i iv)

Independent non-executive directors BIYFHTEE

Mr. Li Xue (Note v) FELE ()

Mr. Zhao Gang (Note v) RIS A (PR

Mr. How Sze Ming (Note v) EBHLE Ry
Total FetTs

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Executive directors: YTES:
Ms. Li Na (Note i) (Chairladly) ZP L (i) (£5)
Mr. Feng Xing (Note i) 5 85 A (B i)
Mr. Leng Xuejun (Note i) REE A (I FE)

Ms. Wang Xin (Notes ii and iv) F e (i iv)

Total Fehrs
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11. EERFETBAEMSE
AEE - MEAZNSEROME (BERKAESZ
AIfERAEERRERE ABREREHEIE) F1B50
T
HZ2019F12831HLEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries and related benefits
Fees allowances bonuses  contribution Total
e 3k x| RINER
ik Hepzg AL e wct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR N ARETR ARETR
(Note i)
(CEdD)
- 679 - 52 731
- 853 - 52 905
- 420 - 45 465
- 207 - 21 228
- 2,159 - 170 2,329
18 - - - 18
18 - - - 18
35 - - - 35
I - - - 14!
I 2,159 - 170 2,400
BZ2018F12A31ALEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries and related benefits
Fees allowances bonuses contribution Total
REEN BRIER
ik i TEAL #x Wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note i)
(B &)
- 677 - 39 716
- 851 - 37 888
- 312 100 27 439
- 147 - 14 161
- 1,987 100 117 2,204
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11.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

i

Performance related bonuses are determined based on the Group’s
performance, performance of the relevant individual within the Group and
comparable market statistics.

Role as executive director of the Company commenced from 25 January
2019.

Role as executive director of the Company commenced from 1 April 2019.
Ms. Wang Xin is the sister of Ms. Wang, the Controlling Shareholder.

Role as independent non-executive director of the Company commenced
from 22 October 2019.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for lost of office.

11.

EERTETHRAEME (8

Wiz -

i

KBEHTEAT BRI EEX T - 1R EA R EE
KB R A ELLRTTSEIEET

AR EJB7TEFBER2019% 1 525H Ft5 »

AR EIBTTEFRER2019F4 51 H LG -
TIhZ+BERRE T 2+ a9t # o
KL EE I TTEFRER2019F 10722 A B

EXZ2ATEENME HEREREERNRA LA
SEEBMIBHRBEIESH#ME -

EXPAES AT EENE AW EIERARRT]
EENRBMSE -

FR - BEESHATETRABREXREREL
B EY 22 B

RER - AEBE W ESMNEMME - FREFENA
SANAAR R B &R ERY S E R BRI E -

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12. AfuERSHMES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year ended REZE2019F12A31BIEFE  AEBRUESH
31 December 2019 included two directors (2018: two), details of EE BIEMEZES (2018F : MAB) » MRS
whose remuneration are set out in Note 11 above. Details of the B ESCHIEET - RFEHEB=AL(20185F « =f1)
remuneration for the remaining three (2018: three) individuals for the AT BEFIEAT ¢

year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
Salaries and allowances Fre KoEEL 1,155 1,116
Performance related bonuses FIREMBTEAT 591 1,272
Retirement benefits contribution RIREF R 151 101
1,897 2,489
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the FHAELTHIENIERARAEETNESHHEBA

directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the T
following bands is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREETF T
Nil to HKD1,000,000 2 Z1,000,0007 7T 3 2
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7T Z 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
Total KAET 3 3
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13.

14.

B RS R AR BT AL

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company and other
companies comprising the Group during 2019.

In August 2018, Beijing Ruicheng Advertising Co., Ltd.* (3t 5 im0
B4 AR A A (“Beiing Ruicheng”) declared and paid an interim
dividend of RMB54,000,000 to its shareholders. The rate of
dividend and the number of shares, ranking for the dividend are not
presented as such information is not meaningful having regards for
the purpose of this report.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, no dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 has been proposed.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

13.

14.

RE

R2019F AR A RN BE TR At R A A
HERRE -

MR2018F8A b mmdEEBER AR ([ER
W) MEBRESERT X FHRHEREARE
54,000,0007T ° I & 2 71|[% 83 KA EWER B8
BHEE  REERAHEMS  GEERTES
%o

MRS R  BRSBE20106 12831 A LS
REERS -

SREF

A R R

AR AEE AR SRERRFIREA T RIEHE
Bt -

ERBTHEWT :

Year ended 31 December

HBE12A31BLLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFIT
Profit for the year attributable owners of the RATHEE AEEFRET
Company 36,282 46,149
Less: Loss for the year from discontinued W RAED RIS EEBHFANER
operations - 474
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per  FTE R BIFELEEBLHN
share from continuing operations BRERBTOZF 36,282 46,623
Number of shares BREEE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for 58 &% 7K 2 51| 5 & 38 A%
the purpose of basic earnings per share ('000) I E (TR 313,056 294,194
W (FE) EEEEERAT « —2—NFFR
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 14. SREF &)
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERDKRIELEER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share from continuing and ARBEEAELREFERERIEEEXEKNE
discontinued operations attributable to the owners of the Company RERBFBEA TSR ESE

is based on the following data:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREEF T
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the NARHER AEEFRET
Company 36,282 46,149
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for FrAMSBE FXFFRARTESRERZFN S
basic earnings per share. EHER o
From discontinued operations REBRIEREER

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
201945 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Loss for the year from discontinued operations ~ ANAFIEAE AELEA DK IE
attributable to owners of the Company AT NEE - (474)

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBEF T
Basic loss per share for discontinued operations 3 B B 4% |HE & ¥ 55 B RCEAE 12 - -
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for FrASE EXGFRARTESRERZT NS
basic earnings per share. ISZEIEK
No diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December BREZE2019F12 A31 B IEFE BIEEEITE
2019 was presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in B% (20184 « #&) - ﬁ&iﬁiﬁ;%&%&%@imﬂ
issue (2018: nil). J1HLEFENSRETEF -
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15.

Statements

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 15. YERXE
Owned  Right-of-use Leasehold Motor Office  Construction
Buildings assets  improvements vehicles equipment  in progress Total
CREET  GREEE HELBER RE BAERE HEIR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT ARETR ARETR
cosT A
At 1 January 2018 H2018F1 518 26,315 27,920 625 5475 1,266 1,849 63,450
Additions hE - - - 245 52 - 297
Reclassified as held for distrioution to owners ~ EF A AR ERRTFEAA
(Note ) i) (3,400 - - - - - (3.400)
Disposals RE - - - - Y] - )
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 28(a) HE-HHEAF (H28(a) (22.919) (17,169) - &) (143) (1849) 42,079
At 31 December 2018 H2018%12R318 - 10,751 625 5,717 1,178 - 18,266
Early termination of a lease (Note i) SRRIR TR () - (10,227) - - - - (10,227)
Elimination at end of a lease NEEEREHS - (524) (439) - - - 962)
Addtions hE - 4,885 648 - 54 - 5,587
Disposals RE - - (187) - - - (187)
At 31 December 2019 H2019%12R318 - 4,885 648 5717 1,227 - 12477
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Zitihe
At1 January 2018 H2018F1 518 1,762 4572 229 5198 816 - 12,677
Charge for the year EREA 2,005 2,893 125 ® 29 - 5,084
Reclassiied as held for distribution to owners ~ EFHEARENEFERA
Note) (Bzt) (117 - - - - - (1,167
Eliminated on disposals REEREHH - - - - Y] - )
Elminated on disposal of a subsidary REE—THEL AR
INote 28(2) (28 ) 610 (1259 - il 59 - 3929
At 31 December 2018 H2018F12A318 - 6,206 354 5,229 984 - 12,773
Charge for the year EREA - 2212 156 47 97 - 2512
Early termination of a lease (Note f) SRR ETR4 (i) - (7,080) - - - - (7,080
Elimination at end of a lease REEEREHH - (524) (439) - - - 962)
At 31 December 2019 Ho019%12R318 - 814 72 5,276 1,081 - 7,243
CARRYING AMOUNT A
At 31 December 2018 2018128310 - 4545 271 488 189 - 549
At 31 December 2019 R2019512A310 - 4071 576 441 146 - 5,234
Notes: Htat -

Y

On 21 December 2018, pursuant to an shareholders’ resolution, Beijjing
Ruicheng is demerged into two companies, namely Beijjing Ruicheng and
Beijing Yuehe Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Beijjing Yuehe")* (1t
RUHEEZ:ZHABRAE]). Bejing Yuehe, a company controlled by Ms.
Wang, will obtain a building and assume a liability directly associated with
the building from Beijjing Ruicheng. Since Beijjing Yuehe is established on 2
April 2019, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors determined the building
and the liability should be treated as asset classified as held for distribution
to owners and liability associated with the asset classified as held for
distribution to owners, respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the net carrying amounts of the building and the
liability were amounted to RMB2,243,000 and RMB980,000, respectively.

After Beifing Yuehe was established, the building and the liability were
distributed to owners in April 2019 of which the net carrying amounts
of the building and the liability were amounted to RMBZ2,189,000 and
RMB950,000, respectively. The net amount of RMB1,239,000 from the
distribution was debited to capital reserve.

)

R2018%F12H21H + RIF—IERFRFE I 7 mal
BLBMRERE] - BRI E R IR S E R 55 IR
DA ([HERGEA]) o LT (B F X2 7RI 2 7)) #F
BRI RS — 1B F R A B F AR B
18 o R R 2019464 52 AR + R20184E12
F31H » EEHRTEFRE EEDFIEIES I BIFED
TR FIEB N BB E R BT BIFED R THEAAMEE
1A B (E -

R2018%F12H31H » #F K B Ea9AREDFIES 5 BA
E#52,243,0007T R A E#980,0007T °

WRERE T - ZEFREER2019F 48 5k T
AN AFPZEFHREFERBEDFAARE
2,189,0007T R A F#950,0007T ° 3% 53 k8, F 5N
1,239,000 BT A E X (1 °

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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15.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(i) On 31 May 2019, the Group signed a supplementary contract with the
lessor, and the current lease contract with original expiry date on 24
February 2021 would be early terminated on 4 September 2019. The
compensation of breach of contract amounted to RMB368,000 as
disclosed in Note 6(iv). The lease has been terminated on 4 September
2019.

(i) The above items of property and equipment are depreciated over their useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value, on a straight-
line basis at the following useful lives:

Owned buildings
Right-of-use assets
Leasehold improvements

20 years
Over the lease term
Shorter of lease terms and

its useful life
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 3-5 years

As at 31 December 2019, right-of-use assets are leased buildings
whose carrying amounts is RMB4,071,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB4,545,000).

The depreciation by classes of rights-of-use assets are set out as
below:

Depreciation recognised in profit or loss RERERNITE
Leasehold land HETH
Leased buildings HEEF

* English name is for identification purpose only.

The Group’s lease agreements did not contain any contingent rent
nor any extension, or early termination option or purchase option
for leasee.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for advertising
light boxes in car shelters. As at 31 December 2019, the portfolio
of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to
which the short-term lease expense disclosed in Note 10.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019

MER R (&)
Wzt - (&)

(i) R2019F5H31H - AEFEHFAN ZEETHHETEK - IR
JE AR 732021F2 24 A #1505 1 & 5 £ 20199F9
F4AERLUI - 2R A HIMEEIEBA R 368,000
(RII516(v) 17 FE)  ZTAIER2019F9 F4HUE

(i) YR AR IR B ASE RAGA IR B BRI T A
FHFBIA ERER B0 AT R FHATE

EF 204
FREEE EEREH
MEREEE FAE M E A A

FHz8EE
Y 5%
B NE g 3FE5E

MR2019F12A31H - FAREEAKRMEARE
4,071,0007T (2018412 A318 : AR#4,545,000
T NHEERT -

RERREEEERBDITESRIIAT

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLEE
2019 2018
201945 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
- 795
2,212 2,098
2,212 2,893

© EXEFEHES]

AEEHEBRE TR T AREESSIAEANE
ERSRER AT AR | IR R S B B R -

AEETHIVREZESEBEHEANEHBEE - B
2019 F 12 A 31 B EHHESHAABURNEN=E
0P RECHHEEANOHHEEAS -
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17.
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GOODWILL

COST
At 1 January
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 28(a))

At 31 December

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December

16. BE
As at 31 December
A12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARET T
BN
»1A1H - 60
& — A E A 7] (13E28() - (60)
MW12A31H - -
BREMAE
MW12A31H - -

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

OR LOSS

Investments in film and drama
Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current assets
Non-current assets

BYNBIENIRE
MERBNDITR

mEVEE
FERBEE

The balance of RMB6,050,000 as at 31 December 2018
represented an investment in film (the “Investment A”) with fair value
of RMB1,050,000 and an investment in drama (the “Investment B”)
with fair value of RMB5,000,000, which entitled the Group to share
certain percentage of income to be generated from the film and
drama based on the proportion of investment amounts as specified
in respective investment agreements. The Directors designated the

investment as FVTPL.

17. BAAREFABRSENEHEE

As at 31 December

M12A318
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREETF T
- 6,050
- 6,050
- 6,050

R2018F 12 431 HM & AR®6,050,0007T38
AEBREZHEE ([HEAD (DRAEBEBARE
1,050,0007T) MR BIERHIEE ([EB)) (RAEA
5,000,0007T) ' FASKEBREBESEERZENR
EERECHELIIDZEFREESELAN—TEa D
LA - EBRIEEZIEE BIR AR ERT AR -

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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17.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

On 28 December 2019, a supplemental agreement in respect of
Investment A was signed which modified the investment into a 15%
annual fixed return rate investment. An amount of RMB444,000
was settled in 2019 and the remained RMB921,000 will be repaid
on or before 30 April 2020. In view that there is a significant
modification of the contractual cash flows of the investment,
the financial asset at FVTPL with fair value of RMB879,000 was
derecognised and an other receivable is recognised accordingly.
A gain of RMB264,000 is recognised from the derecognition. As
set out in Note 20a, the carrying amount of the receivable from
Investment A is RMB850,000, net of ECL allowance RMB29,000, as
at 31 December 2019.

In January 2019, the Group increased RMB15,000,000 investment
in Investment B. In April 2019, a supplemental agreement in respect
of Investment B was signed due to the postponement of the drama
and compensation payment amounted to RMB2,800,000 was
settled in December 2019. On 31 December 2019, a withdrawal
agreement in respect of Investment B was signed since the drama
was abandoned and the amount of investment of RMB20,000,000
would be repaid before 10 March 2020. In view that there is
a significant modification of the contractual cash flows of the
investment, the financial asset at FVTPL is derecognised and the
fair value of RMB19,530,000 which is discounted by the unsecured
borrowing rate of the counterparty of 13%, was transferred to other
receivable accordingly. A gain of RMB2,330,000 is recognised from
the derecognition. As set out in Note 20a, the carrying amount of
the receivable from Investment B is RMB18,901,000, net of ECL
allowance RMB629,000, as at 31 December 2019. The balance of
RMB20,000,000 was settled in March 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the fair value gain
with an amount of RMB2,594,000 relevant to Investment A and
Investment B was recognised in profit or loss (2018: nil). The details
of fair valve measurements are set out in Note 31.
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17.

BARERABENEREE (B

M2019F12A28H AR EANE R HAE
3o BB ERAISKEEFRIHREE - ARKE
444,0007CF 2019 4575 K #4588 AR #921,000
TL 20204 A30B s Z ATEL - SERIREWNE
NESREAERNRES  WAREFABEAER
REAARES79,0007THE B E ER IR A
REREMENFIE - BRIEERIABRRFZAR
064,000  BAMTFE20aPE, - 2019412 A31
H ' REFREANERGIEREERSARKS50,000
T (KR IEHEEEEEE ARE29,0007T) -

20191 A » AREEE A K% 15,000,0007T1%
BEWREB ° 2019548 IR BIEHIE - AR
REBRM T ] R ERIEARE2,800,000
JLER2019F 12 A48 - R2019F12A31H * M
REIEBUEE IR EBMNBE B R IR ERE
AR #20,000,0007T#720206F3 A10B AIEE °
EREENAYNEESREAANRES KA ER
ABHENEREEDRIIERAERAABEABARKE
19,530,0007T (32 F 75 B EIE I E KR =9 1R) -
HAF13%E I S = b ERGRIE - AR IETER

U zE A R EE2,330,0007T © WA sE20aFT#, - 7
201912 A31H » REREBMEKRFBERAES
AR18,901,0007T GBI E BB BREHE AR
629,0007T) ° #%58 A K% 20,000,000 2 720204
SAKE -

REZE2019F12831H ILFE © HIEEARIEEB
BN AR BEKRFEARE2,594,000T R EHTER
(2018%F : &) - NAETEFIBEHAMI S -
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18.

19.

BA R IR AR Y RE

DEFERRED TAXATION 18. EZEHIE
The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) NTARFERANEZELCHBEE(BE) E
recognised and movements thereon during the year: #E) -
Timing
differences
in relation Revaluation of
ECL tolease Revaluationof  right-of-use
provision arrangements buildings assets Total
HEZH
AHEE EL] By
BREE BEZE EftEF EREEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT AREFT
At1 January 2018 #2018F1A1H 296 131 (921) (4,129 (4,617)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss FAGIRE) B 217 ®) 242 196 649
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 28(a)) & —EHE LA (F328() - - 679 3,027 4,606
At 31 December 2018 #2018%12A31H 513 125 - - 638
Credit (charge) to profit or loss SAGIRE) B 2,268 (117) - - 2,151
At 31 December 2019 720195127316 2,781 8 - - 2,789

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB257,000 (2018: RMB11,000), available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of of
such losses (2018: nil), due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses will be expired as follow:

2022 20224
2023 20234
2024 20244F

LOAN RECEIVABLE

On 31 October 2017, Beijing Ruicheng entered into a contract,
pursuant to which Beijing Ruicheng invested RMB13,000,000 in
an internet drama and was entitled to share certain percentage of
income to be generated from the internet drama distribution based
on the proportion of investment amount. The Directors designated
the investment as FVTPL.

19.

20195 12A31H » AXBARPAREBEBBEAR
#257,0007T (20184 + ARE11,00070) Al AR
AR TOE A o BA AR ACHE FIFR N ] TR - AR
BB ERRELRIBEE (2018F « #) - K
RERBEEGNATBERER :

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETF T
- 10
1 1
256 -
257 11

P&

HR2017F10A318 It RImHEI L — DAL - &
It bR IR — B A A B A AR5 13,000,000
T UTERERRESHELAIE—TEI D FZ
WPEBDIRBELNRA - ERETZIREARA
/ME::‘\')\}E/\ °

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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19.

20a.

LOAN RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

On 21 December 2018, a supplemental agreement was signed
which entitled Beijing Ruicheng to a fixed rate of return of 18% for
the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020. In view that
there is significant modification of the contractual cash flows of the
investment as of 21 December 2018, the financial asset at FVTPL
with a carrying amount of RMB13,000,000 was derecognised and
a loan receivable, was recognised accordingly. The loan receivable
was subsequently measured at amortised cost because the
Group’s business model was to hold the financial asset in order to
collect contractual cash flow, and the cash flow of the investment
met the IFRS 9 criteria as solely payment of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. No gain or loss is recognised
from the derecognition.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of loan receivable
was RMB12,579,000, net of accumulated ECL impairment of
RMB421,000.

Details of impairment assessment for the year are set out in Note
31.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables — contracts with customers (Note i) ‘& 5 Uk 718 — BLE B A 4 (M)

B EEEERE

Less: allowance for credit losses

Prepayments to suppliers

Receivable from a supplier (Note ii)
Receivable from Investment A (Note 17)
Receivable from Investment B (Note 17)

Deductible value-added tax A HIRIGERE
Rental and other deposits HeREMZe
Deferred listing expenses RIE ETRE
Others Hib

Less: long-term deposit W RERS

&

Analysed as: Current IR R

I

Notes:

i The significant increase in trade receivables — contracts with customers
results from a seasonal fluctuation in demand for the Group’s
aadvertising services of customers in different industries.
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19.

20a.

HEEEMNIAN IR
8 H e e YRR (P D
KB EARN YA (H5E17)
KB E BROEUGRIA (M 5E17)

ERER (#E)

M2018F 128210 » @rp#s sy - FihinHE
HE2019F1 1 HE2020F12 A31 HZH18%H)
EFEHRE - EREE2018F 12 421 BIRENE L
BeREAANRES  RAABESABZAEEER
EAARK13,000,000tHE B EERIEER > I
A R B E T - iZEEINE KRB IRE A
AE DHRAEENESEXARESREEN
WHAHRERE  MEENBESRERFTS HERE
EHRELEBIFENAER - EEAM AT NASEDN
A R BN o WK ERR IS S IEERE

7
o ©

M2019F12A31H - EKEZRNEAEAARE
12,579,0007T Mk 2 EHEEBERBREARE
421,0007T °

FRRERH A FISENMEEST -

B2 RWRIA - AE AR At EKRKIEA

As at 31 December

A12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREF T
302,396 149,640
(7,703) (2,183)
294,693 147,457
75,592 53,182
28,074 -
850 -
18,901 -
18,688 -
5,382 4,740
- 1,381
1,823 2,156
444,003 208,916
(303) (401)
443,700 208,515

et

i TIRITTRE 1 15 (B & IR 7% ) FEO )% 8) 5] B
E SN IR — BEFEAAIEEN
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20a. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

i The amount represented prepayment of approximately RMB30,048,000
to a supplier for the Group'’s online advertising services, during the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group considered the supplier failed
to deliver related services according to the contract. After negotiation
with the supplier, on 21 December 2019, the Group and the supplier
entered into a supplementary agreement with the supplier promised
to repay whole amount of the prepayment to the Group subsequent
to the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the prepayment is
derecognised and a receivable from a supplier is being recognised at
the carrying amount of approximately RMB28,074,000, net of ECL
impairment of RMB1,974,000.

As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB65,945,000.

The Group’s trade receivables with certain customers are used to
secure certain bank borrowings which is disclosed in Note 25.

The Group generally determines the credit period granted to
customers with reference to the financial position, credit record,
duration of business relationship and the types of services the
Group provides. Credit and payment terms may vary for different
customers and projects. The Group generally issues billings to
customers after performance of advertising services according to
the terms set out in the relevant contracts.

For TV advertising services, the Group generally provides credit
periods ranging from 15 to 90 days after performing the advertising
services to customers. For certain customers, the Group demands
payment by instalments or in full prior to services being provided.

For online advertising services, the Group generally provide credit
periods ranging from 1 to 90 days after performing the advertising
services to customers. For certain customers, the Group receives
prepayment before services are provided and the amounts are
deducted based on monthly services provided.

For outdoor advertising services, the Group generally sets the
contract terms by instalments within the contract period.

For other advertising services, the Group generally demands
payment by instalments or in full prior to services being provided.

20a.

B 5 RWFEUR - BARIARHE YRR (8

Hiit - (&)

i ZAEIE L E BT R — & BB AT
HAIA F#30,048,0007T * R#EZE2019F12H31H 1F
FJF - E R B % PE B R REARIE S KX AT IR R
T o R2019F 12521 H » 45 8 (1 JiE 5 1 /5 14 7K 25 [ A
RIERFT L7 iz » IR (R EE ARG R IR A 7]
KEFREEETEI I o FU - FEITHIBAL R R
O B 2 7 A JE M S TE 2 R T BT AT R 528,07 4,0007T
(F0/7 78 A5 BT RI B FE#61,974,0007T) HER7

201851 A1H - REHEFPHA KN E S EYGR
18 /7 AR #565,945,0007T ©

AEFHEETEPHNE S RUGRABRE TRTT
SRR (P25 58) -

REEE—R2BP BN - FERLE - FHHESF
HEAEEREOREELEERTEPHNEER
B TRAEPREBNERERIMERATRER
REE—RNBIRAES BN IERBETESR
BRAZTPHARSE -

REREERETE - AEE—RRAESETE
&R EEUN T15Z00RMERE - RETEF
M AEMERS BN REAE R R 2B
fit -

RBFEESREME @ ARE-—RRAZFPEITE
EIRBEREN T1Z0RNEES - #ETEFM
5 ARBEREHREATETAN TR - BeEE
BT ARHEOIRETIOAN -

HREINEERBME - AEE—RNA LIRS H

FIEB KGR -

BEMBESREMS - ARE—RERDHHRK
IR RIS AT 2 B AT -

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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20a.

20b.

B RS R AR BT AL

TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses presented based on the date of billing:

0-30 days 0%Z30%
31-90 days 31£290Kk
91-180 days 91E180K
181-360 days 181E360K
Over 360 days 360K LA
Total 1AET

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of RMB94,656,000 (31 December 2018: RMB34,477,000), which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
RMB43,963,000 (2018: RMB12,182,000), has been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default because there
is no significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances or charge any interest thereon.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
are set out in Note 31.

TRADE RECEIVABLES BACKED BY BILLS

Current BNEA
Trade receivables backed by bills

On 15 May 2019, the Group received a one year bill receivable of
RMB38,000,000 (the “Bill"). The Bill was classified as financial asset
at FVTPL because the Bill is held within a business model whose
objective is not to collect contractual cash flows but to sell. On 16
May 2019, the Group endorsed the Bill to a supplier to settle trade
payables. As the endorsement was on a full recourse basis, the
Group continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the Bill.
The details of fair valve measurements are set out in Note 31.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019

20a.

20b.

SERERNE S REFUR

B 5 RWFEUR - BARIARHE YRR (8

AT ARERERHN2ICHREEBRRBENE
5 FEMGRIE R BRI DA

As at 31 December

A12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR ARETT
144,656 66,308
105,707 74,918
14,909 4,839
27,921 -
1,500 1,392
294,693 147,457

72019412 4318 - BEFE(E2EE A AR4,656,000
£ (201841283180 « AR#¥34,477,0007T)
WEKRREFALAEEZESRKRKREBELS R
HERHCDEY - R SaHEHRT  ARKE
43,963,0007T (20184 : AR#12,182,0007T) B
HIQOARE A F - B RIERARY  RALEEE
EVESAEHALEWRANARD - REEL
B S S E TR R SREUT R E o

B 5 MEM EHBGRIRHRERT A A B RS

REERANE S ERRIEA

As at 31 December

W128318
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
38,000 -

MR2019F 54158 » ANEEWE—F —F Ry E UL
ZEIEARME38,000,0007T ([FiR]) - ZERESESR
BRARBEFABENEREE - TJEEEG;AKFI#
ABURBANBELREMENLE BRMNEKERE
B o R2019F5816H » ANEBEHEREEZE
DX NESREMNTRE - ARE SN2 HEREARE
A AEBBETEERZEERDE - AAEHE
u$‘ ﬁﬁ/\\’-gﬁufsA] ©
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21.

22.

CONTRACT ASSETS

Current B
Contract assets BREE

As at 1 January 2018, contract assets from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB3,228,000.

The Group generally collects the service fees either at the inception
of the service contract or by instalments over the service period.
Upon entering into a service contract with customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer and
assumes performance obligations to perform advertising service
to customers. The service contract is an asset if the measure
of remaining conditional rights to consideration exceeds the
satisfied performance obligations. Contract asset is recognised
over the period of the contract in which the service is performed
representing the Group’s rights to receive consideration for the
service performed because the rights are conditioned on the
Group’s future performance of remaining advertising service. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional, i.e. advertising services performed are
verified by an independent third party with relevant qualifications
and experience.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.30% to 1.10% (2018: 0.30% to 1.10%).

21.

22,

EREE
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
6,498 -

R2018F1 AR - BRFANMNANEERARK
3,228,0007T °

REE RN IRTS A 45 16 B IR F A D Bk
HRGE - REEFAIRBANEK  NEEES
BEPYRBAENEN  WAERTPEITESMR
BHBEOEE - MHRTOE G ERNTEBE
ERITHENEME  ARBAVNAREE - aNEE
RETTIRBHAWIAER  KRAKERETR
BB B RIRER - TR A RRENAFASER
BRRBEITHR THESRBES IR - EEAKR
EG AR EAREER MERIBIE =71 58E
BETHESIRBK) ARHEEEREEHEUGK
pi

RITEBRRE

RITEBDRIENF0.830%E1.10% (20184 :
0.30%%1.10%) 5 F R 8 -

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EBESRHMENSKE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
Trade payables Z S HIE 215,109 75,383
Staff cost payables JERT B TR 1,615 2,671
Other tax payables EAb eI 17,479 12,758
Transaction costs attributable to issue of new BT L BB (LR SR AN BT IR
ordinary shares payables 1,375 856
Listing expenses payables BN ETRAX 4,247 2,567
Others Efth 710 8
240,535 94,243
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables, as at the end of RERESHR - AEBEIZRESEHHNE S ENRIE
each reporting period, based on the date of biling is as follows: RERER DTN T -
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETF T
0-30 days 0ZE30K 170,569 71,436
31-90 days 31E90K 41,876 1,819
Over 90 days 90K LA+ 2,664 2,128
215,109 75,383
The Group is granted a credit period from 5 to 60 days from its AEBREHEERR TEERRSE60K F RIEE
suppliers, unless prepayment to suppliers is specified on the »HiE Eﬁ@‘—t%ﬁﬁﬁ/ 18 °
contract.
24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24, BHEE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Current wE
Contract liabilities GHAE 2,392 1,748
As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities from contracts with R2018F1A1H r BAEPANNENEaBAARE
customers amounted to RMB63,914,000. 63,914,0007T, ©

136 Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

e MR RRE

24.

25.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Contract liabilities are recognised when the Company receives an
amount from customers before services are provided, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the beginning of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount
received. The Company typically receives a deposit range from
20% to 50% of total consideration from certain customers when
they enter into the contracts with the Company.

Revenue recognised during each reporting period included
the whole amount of contract liabilities at the beginning of the
respective reporting period. There was no revenue recognised
during the year that related to performance obligations that were
satisfied in prior years.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Bank loans HRITER
- secured (Note i)
— unsecured (Note ii)
Other borrowing

— unsecured (Note iii)

HAER

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are all repayable
within one year.

Notes:

(i) The bank loans were secured by the Group’s trade receivables with
certain customers for both years. The secured bank loans bear a fixed
interest rate of 7.395% per annum as at 31 December 2019 (31 December
2018:7.18%).

(i) The bank loans were guaranteed by three third party guarantors, who
charged an upfront guarantee fees at 2.5% of the corresponding loan
principal amounts. The effective interest rates of these bank loans are fixed
at 8.08% per annum as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: range
from 8.14% to 8.565%).

(i) On 27 December 2019, Ruicheng (Hong Kong) Mediia Co., Ltd. borrowed a
loan of HKD1,625,000 (equivalent to RMB1,458,000) from an independent
third party and will mature on 27 June 2020. The effective interest rates is
12.32%.

— AR (D
— EARAR (BIREID

— I (M7

24.

25.

BHEEGE

AHEBRARBIRERESATIE F BB R
R NBEBERANHBRESAANEE  BEEM
AR ESBEZRESLL - ARE—HR
ETEPEAQAFLANBEEFPRERARERN
N F20%ZE50%H LS -

W& RIS BN S R E BT A N AR
5 HSE - FNLEEREBEEEDETHE
493 FEARRRIOMERS =

SRITRHEMMER
As at 31 December
#R12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
18,000 10,000
78,891 73,523
1,458 -
98,349 83,523

R EREOREESRR —FAER -

Hat
4

(i)

(i)

RAEEERZRITESA RN EFRE FEFHE S
JEW S IBER I - R2019F 12318 + HHERT
E(1%7.395% 89 [EE F FIF 518 (2018F 12H31H -
7.18%) °

ZERITEAB=FEE=FERAER  HIZHEE
AR EEE)2.6% W TIERE A - R2019F 12531
H » ZERITE B EBRFFE 3 ELFS.08% (20184
12/31H : 71 F8.14%%18.565% 2 ) °

R2019F 12278 -« Jigill (B)8) (BIR B R 21 Al lr]— 5 9%
VEZHEA—F1,62500087 (FRA L #1,458,000
TT) BB 3 R AR 2020466 527 A BH - BEFIE A
12.32% °

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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26. SHARE CAPITAL/PAID-IN CAPITAL 26. BRAE BHER
Combined capital of the Group AEEEHER

REVGEMBMRAERNT  RALRERKREAZ
Al - AREER2018F 12 A31 BN BEE R isthTsdt

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated statements
of financial position, before the completion of the Group

Reorganisation, the balances of paid-in capital of the Group as TIRHRANERER -
at 31 December 2018 represent the paid-in capital of Beijing
Ruicheng.
Share capital of the Company RATRAR
Number of
shares Share capital
RHEE [N
HKD
BT
Ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each SREEOIBTHNEER
Authorised EE
At 15 January 2019 (the date of incorporation) #201991 A158 (FEf AL B HA)

(Note i) (G, 38,000,000 380,000
Increase on 22 October 2019 (Note iv) 72019410 A 22 B # 0 (Ff Eiv) 1,962,000,000 19,620,000
At 31 December 2019 R2019912831H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid BRITRHEZE
At 15 January 2019 (the date of incorporation) 201991 A158 (FEM A B HA)

(Note i) (P &) 1 -
Issue of new shares (Note ii) BATHAR D (B i) 8,079,999 80,800
Issue of new shares to Hengrui Co., Ltd. (Note iii) AHengrui Co., Ltd. 21T # A% (T 5iii) 80,800 808
Issue of share pursuant to the Loan Capitalisation #2715 &7 & AL 31T (i sEv)

(Note v) 1 -
Issue of shares under the Global Offering (Note vi) 1815 & B3 & 3517 R% 1 (it 5Evi) 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issue of shares under the Capitalisation Issue RIEE AL 277317 (B 5Evii)

(Note vii) 291,839,199 2,918,392
Balance at 31 December 2019 201912 A31 HR &4 400,000,000 4,000,000

As at

31 December

2019

A20195F

12A81H

RMB’000

AR¥TR

Presented as 235 3,578
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26.

SHARE CAPITAL/PAID-IN CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Share capital of the Company (continued)

Notes:

Vi,

Vi,

The Company was incorporated on 15 January 2019 and 1 share was
allotted and issued to the initial subscriber at cash consideration of
HKDO.01 and was recorded in share capital.

On 25 January 2019, 8,079,999 shares were allotted and issued in cash
to nine investment holding companies under the laws of BVI, respectively,
including Yingheng Co., Ltd. and Jing Gen Holdings Ltd. at cash
consideration of HKD80,800 (equivalent to RMB69,000) and was recorded
in share capital. On the same date, the subscriber 1 share was transferred
to Jing Gen Holdings Ltd. by the initial subscriber.

On 21 March 2019, Hengrui Co., Ltd., a company incorporated under
the laws of BVI which is wholly owned by Mr. Soon, subscribed for
80,800 shares at a subscription price of HKD2,338,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,001,000) in cash. Amount of RMB1,000 was recorded in share
capital, which represented 0.99% of equity interest of the Company and
the remaining amount of RMB2,000,000 was recorded in share premium.

On 22 October 2019, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HKD380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares to
HKD20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares by creation of an
additional of 1,962,000,000 shares, each ranking pari passu with the
existing share in all respects.

On 22 October 2019, a loan owed to Ms. Wang in an aggregate sum
of RMB1,777,000 was capitalised and settled in full by the issuance
of 1 new share to Yingheng at the instruction of Ms. Wang (the “Loan
Capitalisation”). The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in
all aspects.

On 12 November 2019, 100,000,000 ordinary shares with par value
of HKDO.01 each of the Company were issued at HKD1.25 by way
of public offer with the share capital of HKD1,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB894,000) recognised (the “Global Offering”). An amount
of RMB111,225,000, being the excess of the consideration received of
HKD125,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB112,119,000) over the
par value of the ordinary shares of RMB894,000), was credited to share
premium. On the same date, the Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The new shares rank pari passu with
the existing shares.

On 12 November 2019, the Company capitalised an amount of
HKD2,918,391.99 (equivalent to approximately RMB2,614,000) standing
to the credit of the share premium of the Company by applying such sum
in paying up in full at par 291,839,199 shares for allotment and issue to
Shareholders (the “Capitalisation Issue”). The new shares rank pari passu
with the existing shares in all aspects.

BRARE EX (H#)

RRBRA (B

Wiz -

A

il

Vi.

ARER2019F1 16 HFMATL - 1R ERE 2
HIBO.OVETTAEER Z7T T BIEA R EERASKA

R2019%1525A + 8,079,999 1%17 B 73 FIRE 2 B #
REBHVZEOIN R 2 7 R BT PNRREZR A
B BIEEEERAFIRAEEIFERERLE] - BB
£80,8007 7T (ERA R #69,0007T) R EERARA o )
B + 8 REAN LR ENANERAR (7 8258 TAEE 17
REMRIA]

R2019%43H21H * Hengrui Co., Ltd. (IR#EZEH T
HELEAMET - WHIRAE 2 EHB AR B
80,800/%fR 17 + B iRfE 18 732,338,000/ 7T (HHE KA
E#2,001,0007T) ° ARHE1,000TT EERABRE - (5L
FIRIERI0.99% + HEAA R HE2,000,0007T EEEA SRS i
{g °
R2019F10H22H - #8155 55M,962,000,00048 %
15+ K2\ 54 E R #1380,000/% 7T 5 438,000,0004%
SR 12 1122 20,000,000/% 7T 3 4.2,000,000,00088 82 17 +
FZERRE T EHE ERR (2 HREHT -

R2019F10A220 » BRI L+ EHFEBARK
1,777,0007T 89 E S #542 T Z 19 #5 7 (A28 18 27T 15837
BR1D FIAE RN REBLBEE ([BHEXI])  FRHR
E R ER D Z A RIS

R2019F11512H - K22 A]100,000,000/% & % E
1B0.018 T 49 Z 87 8 2B % & L 1.26/ 8 T BB 15
77 - BREFRIT,000,000/8 T (HE RN RE
894,0007T) ([£HE#E ) - ARK111,225,0005T (FIE
W 18125,000,000/% 7T (HHERAIA KB 112,119,000
TL) B B AR ET (B A R #5894,000T #97 88) RER 17 i
BASE - RIEIA » K2 G- RS AT F MR L 1T TR
7B G R 17 Z B RIEHT -

R2019%F 11128 + AR AR R ER 175 (E# AT
F11492,918,391.99E T (12 KA FE#:2,614,0007T) ##
FEEA U AEZ A R I E AR 22 291,839,199
RERD + A HRAOBRF7T FIRE ([EREETT]) - #ThR
HRE 7 E R B R 52 F R 7 -

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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27.

28.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit plan
to fund the employee benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions. The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
RMB1,879,000 (2018 from continuing operations: RMB1,221,000)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the plan.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of Qingdao Economic and Technological
Development Zone Chaoqun Culture Co., Ltd.* (F&&
EH 75 % BB A Xt B R 2 7)) (“Qingdao Chaoqun”)
On 13 December 2018, Ruicheng Hexin (Beijing) Media
Co., Ltd.* (M #AE QL) EEERFTE A E]) (‘Ruicheng
Hexin”), a company controlled by Ms. Wang Lei (“Ms.
Wang”), and Beijing Ruicheng entered into an equity transfer
agreement, pursuant to which, 100% of equity interest in
Qingdao Chaoqun was transferred from Beijing Ruicheng to
Ruicheng Hexin at a cash consideration of RMB1. Qingdao
Chaoqun principally engages in operation of film and TV
park and production of short videos in Qingdao which, in
the opinion of the Directors, represents a separate line of
businesses. The disposal of Qingdao Chaoqun is accounted
as a deemed distribution to the owners of the Group and is
presented as discontinued operations for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The difference of RMB37,002,000 between the net
carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities of
RMB36,942,000, goodwill of RMB60,000 and the cash
consideration of RMB1 is charged to capital reserve.
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27.

28.

RGBS

AEBENFRES A+ BBRFEENBRRERRIK
BRI EINKE - AARIMFBEMEARARZE
KEFAERNITEXRANIEEE D - UstiEE
BRBAES  AKERRKEFFEINE ST
BELETHER - MESHERNAIAEARE
1,879,0007T (2018F R EFE L X : ARK
1,221,0007T) 36 AL E B IR &R I E A LR [
ZERT R M HER -

HEHREQH

() HEFEEERMAREEHEERAF
(TEE8E])

M2018F12813H » BHAE (b R) EEE
RETAR ([HEAED) (BEELL (X
T s AR Rt R ET AR E R
o B b RIS B B RREE100% M A E
EETIRHARE  BeREAARKITL - &
EHMHFEZNEEMUEBLET RN LRIE
HRNER MEZRAUA KB LNE
ig o REZE2018F12A31HIEFE - HE
EEBEENAEEEE ARIESRAR -
BRBEIHEEEB R -

HEEERBENEAFEARE
36,942,0007T * A& A R®60,0007THF &
REARE1TZBEHZE5EARE37,002,000
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28.

B RS R AR BT AL

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Disposal of Qingdao Economic and Technological

28.

Development Zone Chaoqun Culture Co., Ltd.* (F &&

ER T % BB A LB R A7) (“Qingdao Chaoqun”)

(continued)

Analysis of loss for the year from discontinued

operations

The results of Qingdao Chaoqun during the year ended
31 December 2018, which have been included in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income, are set out as follows:

Revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross profit
Other income
Administrative expenses

Loss before tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year from discontinued operations

Loss for the year from Qingdao Chaoqun has been

arrived at after charging:
Depreciation of property and equipment

Staff costs
Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefits contribution

Total staff costs

Net cash (used in) generated from
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

Total cash flows

Yt
Yz Bk A

EH
HABYA
TTHASE

B % Al S 1R
FRISTiE S

HERE 2R (8)

() HEFBEERMAREBHLERLF

(B8 @

KECERUAREEBZFERERTIT

EEHENEZE2018F12A31 B IEFEE T
AGZABEEEREMEERESROEES N

T

RECKRIEREEB 2 FRER

BEBRFABRENBRIATSRERS

8T
e LoRas
Eﬁ(ﬁ?ﬂfl {/\TA

BTRAEE

LATKIE(}E)H%)FE SH e

z«< EE)
?xéxﬁib
BEEY

RenBes

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR

For the

year ended

31 December
2018
HZ=2018F
128318 IEFE
RMB’000
ARETT

6,045
(3,435)

2,610
2
(3,222)

(610)
136

(474)

2,672

524
49

573

(16,250)
(21)
14,826

(1,445)
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28.

BB MR

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 28. HEMHBAT#E)
(a) Disposal of Qingdao Economic and Technological (a) HESERBERMEREERULERAH
Development Zone Chaoqun Culture Co., Ltd.* (5 E#& (TEBEBE] @
ER T % BB A LB R A7) (“Qingdao Chaoqun”)
(continued)
Analysis of loss for the year from discontinued FKEERIZEERZ FAEESH (B
operations (continued)
The Group’s share of net assets of Qingdao Chaoqun at the AEENTERMLESESBENFEERD
date of disposal and the effect of disposal were as follows: RS (NE
Consideration received: BHRE -
RMB’000
AR®EF T
(Note)
Deferred cash consideration EEIRSKRE _ ()
Note:  The amount is RMB1. The deferred consideration was settled in Wiat : Z2BEAAREIT « ZEEREER2019F 125 f i
cash by Ruicheng Hexin in December 2019. BRNGABEZAET -
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control K LG EERBESH -
was lost:
RMB’000
ARETT
Property and equipment LIEYNE"s 38,150
Amount due from Beijing Ruicheng FEMIL IR IR 5,000
Prepayment and other receivables TE 1 FRIE R E A FE U R IE 18,682
Bank balances and cash RITEBRKIAS 70
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMERFRIA (528)
Amounts due to related parties FE{ R RS 77 5B
- Beijing Ruicheng — bR (11,800)
— Shanghai Kailun Advertising Co., Ltd.* — EEmESEBR AR
(BB mES AR AR (“Shanghai Kailun”) (TEHam ) (3,026)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIBERE (4,606)
Bank borrowings RITIER (5,000)
Net assets disposed of BHEFEE 36,942
Charged to capital reserve on disposal of a subsidiary RUERE 2 aiFst A B FE -
RMB’000
ARETT
Consideration receivable FEWRAE -
Net assets disposal of BHEFEE (36,942)
Goodwill mE (60)
Charged to capital reserve FFAB AR (37,002)

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 28. HEMERR (HE)
(a) Disposal of Qingdao Economic and Technological (a) HESELERMHERERBEBRAT
Development Zone Chaoqun Culture Co., Ltd.* (F&& (TEEB@EE] @

EH T % & B A Xt B R A7) (“Qingdao Chaoqun”)
(continued)

Charged to capital reserve on disposal of a subsidiary REER B A Gt A E X @G - ()
(continued) N - -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HERELFREML
RMB’000
ARETT
Cash consideration BeRE -
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of W BHEZRITERREIRE (70)
(70)
(b) Disposal of Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye Public Relations (b) HELEHBEXEABMBEBERAT (TR
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (A ZIxHEE£ABEBERA ) mREED
(“Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye”)
On 26 November 2018, Ruicheng Hexin, a company H2018F 11 A26H @ I AfE (T2t
controlled by Ms. Wang, and Beijing Ruicheng entered into B2 R BRI RIRHE] R EEE S - B
an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which, 100% It b RImSAR SR EARKITEILRIG
equity interest in Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye was transferred from F S 100% ) AR B 5E T IR s RS o
Beijing Ruicheng to Ruicheng Hexin at a cash consideration
of RMB1.
The difference of RMB985,000 between the carrying HEAEEMREEARE85,000 T HIE &K
amount of the relevant assets of RMB985,000 and the cash BARBIT2HNEEARKEIS5000TE
consideration of RMB1 is charged to capital reserve. FFAB ARG -
The Group’s share of net assets of Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye at REEREE AN R InH R £ FEE
the date of disposal and the effect were as follows: RBRET :
Consideration received: EURAE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Deferred cash consideration (Note) JEIEIR £ RAB (I E) -
Note: The amount is RMB1. The deferred consideration was settled in Bist © Z2BEAAREIT « ZiEAMAEER2019F12
cash by Ruicheng Hexin in December 2019. R (2 U B ST -
Analysis of assets over which control was lost: LGS EELH
RMB’000
ARETT
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR KIS 5
Amount due from a related party P BRE T E
- Beijing Ruicheng — b RIm 980
Net assets disposed of BHEFEE 985
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28.

29.
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B RS R AR BT AL

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye Public Relations
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (It REHEE A BERERA )

(“Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye”) (continued)

Analysis of assets over which control was lost:

(continued)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal:

28. HEMWBXRE

(b)

HELREHEXABBERARAT (TR
e (@)

K LB EZBET - (H)
HEREEFRSMH

RMB’000
ARBEF T
Cash consideration ReRE -
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BEHEZRITEBRRS (5)
(5)
(c) Disposal of Wuxi Ruicheng Movie Media Co., Ltd.* (£& (c) HEESHEIAXREEBRAR(EHHE
S E TR EESR A T) (“Wuxi Ruicheng”) )
On 24 December 2018, Ruicheng Hexin, a company M2018F12A248 » I R{E (B E X T#F

controlled by Ms. Wang, and Beijing Ruicheng entered into
an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which, 100%
equity interest in Wuxi Ruicheng was transferred from Beijing

Ruicheng to Ruicheng Hexin with nil consideration.

The carrying amount of the net liabilities disposed is credited

to capital reserve.

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control

was lost:

Other receivables
Amount due to a related party
— Beijing Ruicheng

Net liabilities disposed of

* English names are for identification purpose only.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group leases properties to operate its business. These leases
are typically made for fixed terms of 3 to 5 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different payment
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any

Bl 2 ) Rt R AT B B - 18
B U AT 01 00% AR
R TR -

EHEFRENREETAELRHE

KEEPEZEERBEDH -

RMB’000
AREFIT

E b YR IE 12

e BB 5 RIA

— bR, (24)

EHEFERE (12)

© RLEFEELT -
2. HEEE

covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purpose.

The Group also leases billboards with contract terms of less than
one year. These leases are short-term and the Group has elected
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these

leases.

REEREMRAREEHER - %FHEBERIE
SEE R o HERFUREREEER - T8
=R B SRR S AR - TE Hrk e INEAT 22
% EEEEETSREEENERR -

AEETAT R —FNHEGNETEERSE -
ZEHEREHESE WK%EE ERTHERLTE
HEREREEENREEEE -
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 20, HEEEBE@E@E
The exposure of the Group’s lease liabilities are as follows: AEEAENHEESERT
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEFRENINTA :
Current liabilities mEBaE 1,637 2,250
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 2,464 2,795
4,101 5,045
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREF T
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEERE
Within one year —FR 1,637 2,250
Within a period of more than one year but not —F BT BBME A
exceeding two years 1,820 2,385
Within a period of more than two years but not ~ ML HETBBAF ZHR
more than five years 644 410
4,101 5,045
Less: Amounts due for settlement within one year J& : —FREIHLEENCERERBBAE
under current liabilities ) (1,637) (2,250)
Amounts due for settlement after one year shown —FREE|HIEENSE (PIERBEESE
under non-current liabilities THIR) 2,464 2,795

Lease liabilities of the Group were measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not yet paid using its incremental
borrowing rate. The rate applied is 5.70% per annum for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 5.88%). All leases are entered at
fixed prices. The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with
regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the
Group’s treasury function.

The total cash outflows for leases amounted to RMB4,717,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB8,995,000),
including total cash outflow for short-term leases amounted to
RMB2,516,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB6,590,000).

AEBAEABUNEEEZIFRIZEATFNHEE
NEBIREEE - HE2019F12 A31HILEER T
Wz e R R B5.70% (20184 : 5.88%) °
FAMENRETEBRIY c AEFTEREAE
BEEREARDERR - AEaEh AL N
EQHEtAbE/_ﬂ o

REZE2019F12A31HILFE - ERS R HAEE
BARME4 717,0007T (20184 : A R%8,995,000
7T)  BREEE2019F 12 A3 B I FENEEHHEE
WE A% ARE?2 516,0007T (20184 : ARE
6,590,0007T) °
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. EXERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to AEBEEBEER  UBREBEMAFELCE B
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to equity HERBBLEBRESTFESALERIFEEAR
holders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. o ASENEBRBEANRETE -
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which AEBMEREHBERFE (BERITREME
includes bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities and amounts o HEABREMNEHRIFEMHERReRAeE
due to related parties, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity BY)) RANEE A ATELERS (BEREEHE
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising share capital/paid- A R RARE &) 4BRK o
in capital, reserves and retained eamnings.
The Directors reviews the capital structure on a continuous basis BETRERKA R EEEEANEENRBITER
taking into account the cost of capital and the risks associated with NEAREE  HREZNER  ASEKEBRET
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors, AR R BATHE RS T E R RS B ANGEHE -
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues as well as the issue of new debts.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. SRMIARHBREKRER
MANAGEMENT
Categories of the financial instruments ST ARR
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2019 2018
201945 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Financial assets: SRYEE ¢
Financial assets at amortised cost REENATTENEREE 433,155 218,549
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABENERERE
~ Trade receivables backed by bills — RREMNE F KA 38,000 -
— Investments in film and drama — REFREIENRE - 6,050
Financial liabilities: TRAME :
Amortised cost RERSHRA 319,790 168,317

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include long-term deposit,
loan receivable, trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due
from and due to related parties, bank balances and cash, financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and other payables and bank and other
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.
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31.

B RS R AR BT AL

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk

Y

Currency risk

As at the end of each reporting period, the Group had the
following financial assets and financial liabilities, which are
bank balances and cash and other payables denominated in
currencies other than RMB.

Assets: HE
- HKD — BT
-USD — %t
Liabilities: B1E:
- HKD — BT
- UsD — XL

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to foreign currency rates and includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusted their transaction at year end for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
bank balances and cash, other payables. A 5% increase
or decrease is used when reporting foreign currency rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign currency rates.

If 5% weakening/strengthening of USD and HKD against
RMB, the Group’s post tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2019 would increase/decrease by RMB230,000
(2018: increase/decrease by RMB128,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to foreign currencies
rates of HKD on its listing expenses payables as at 31
December 2018 and 2019.

31.

ERMITARMERREE @)

B EREE B EREEEK (@)

TE A (&)

B

REMERR  AEEBUTUARELASN
WEBHENEREENEREE  BER
TR S AN RIA -

As at 31 December

A12831H
2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
133 -
1 -
134 -
5,987 3,423
9 —
5,996 3,423

BURENT

T X BURE DT T E R IMNEE R R E
o BERBEUIMNEFENHAXNE ﬁ”ﬁiﬁ
B WIAS%HIINETE R BB FRIER

B GREIMBERITERLIRE Ef’ﬂ
FERTFIE - MEEEER A B AP ERINEE
RERE - RAL%AILE - RREEELIN
BIERM ST e B EHARTE -

HMETRBITHEARBERTE, EF5%
BIREFEEZ2019F12A31HILFEBRT
%355 &8 00,8 > AR #230,0007T (2018
o #n R ARE128,0007T) c EX B
EAHRAEER2018F £2019F12 A31HA
JER ETR S mEESTIMNE ERE S o
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31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
fixed-rate bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities, and
amounts due to a related party. The Group’s policy is to
maintain short-term borrowings at prevailing market rates so
as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to bank balances
which carry prevailing market interest rates. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is provided.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to long-term deposit, trade receivables, contract assets, bank
balances, amounts due from related parties, other receivables and
loan receivable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from coniracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group only
accepts bills issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks if trade
receivables are settled by bills and therefore the management
of the Group considers the credit risk arising from the endorsed
bills is insignificant. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of IFRS 9 on trade
receivables individually. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. The management of the Group estimates the
lifetime ECL of trade receivables and contract assets based on
individual assessment of each debtor, after considering credit risk
characteristics based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information. Estimated loss rates are based on credit risk
characteristics with reference to estimated loss rates assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 20.89% (2018: nil)
and 46.24% (2018: 42.22%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.
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B RS R AR BT AL

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Loan receivable

For loan receivable, the Group has applied the general approach
in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at 12m ECL basis as
there had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. The Group actively monitors the outstanding amounts
owed by each debtor and identifies any credit risks in a timely
manner in order to reduce the risk of a credit related loss.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on the full amount of
loan receivable due from the investor of the investment.

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks with good credit ratings assigned by
international credit agencies. The Group assessed 12m ECL for
bank balances by reference to information relating to probability of
default and loss given default of the respective credit rating grades
published by external credit rating agencies. The 12m ECL on bank
balances is considered to be insignificant.

The Group has concentration risk with approximately 47.71% of the
Group’s bank balances placed with a bank at 31 December 2019
(81 December 2018: 43.93%).

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and deposits
The Directors make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and amounts due from related
parties based on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL.

No 12m ECL was made for amounts due from related parties for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:nil) as the counterparties
involved are considered with limited credit risk and the ECL involved
is not material. The disclosure of loss allowance recognised for
other receivables was made below in this note for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018:nil).

The Group has concentration risk with approximately 51.93% of
the Group’s other receivables from a counterparty at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: 30.63%).

ERMITARMERREE @)

B EREE B EREEEK (@)

EEmBRBETE ()

JEWE K

ﬁ'mfuﬁzﬁm C REEE R R R SRS 4R
oM — ﬂxﬁ/iﬁszlﬂTﬁi%ﬁ%fﬁ?@%ﬁ'ﬁ%

EREE - TTERNE B RERAREERR IR

FIRM - AEEEEBER AR AMRHKREER

B X REHIEMERERR - AREEEAEE

RERE

FEEFEUZIEENREE 2P RRERE ET
EERE -

RiTH8R
HREFHAEGEBREETIARBATREREE
FEMEERFNIRT  RBRTESNEERRE
R~ AEBESEBFMENHTREM REBREIE R
HEATFERBAGNEEEETILASHER B
RITRESEITI2E ARBEEERTL - RITEH
W12(E AFEHEEEBERABLTEK -

R2019F 128318 » NEELNA7.71%HRTTH
BFHR—RIEIT  MAEEBEF R (2018F12
A318 : 43.93%) °

BRI - [ER G 7 7B K tx
EFRBBAEENDLE BELRARSIERAR
BXASHATEEEE REEER - B EAMEUKIA
R JE Mo B Bt 7 SR OR ) AT U B 1 HE 1T E B I/”JJEHEE
FEENSERRESR12EARBEEER - K
FFEERERAREEBBBEZEM TE'J$%I
ERTHEEERE -

REZ2019F 12 A31HIEF/E - A& R IR
FOEEH12(E ATEHREEEE (20184 « #) » JiHh
PEBEF AR AEEEREERR XIEETER
FEEBEETEBEK - @immimﬂmaiiﬁ
BLEAD FEUR BB FE R B0 S 1R B P AR BT 5 T U R
(20185 : &)

#mmﬁmﬂma REEE#)51.93%H) H b B UL
FIERE—BHFH  WAEEEEFER (2018
ﬁﬁ2ﬂ315-3063%)
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and deposits

(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s

financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

31. SRMIAERFKEKREE

2 (%)

B EREE B EREEEK (@)

EEmBRBETE ()
E MR ~ JENL BT

TRV ARBEEREEZEERR %
EITTRHE R BRI

EH AR R e ()

faray AN /)
kA

Gross carrying
amount as at

Credit risk Average 31 December
characteristic 12m or lifetime ECL loss rate 2019
20194
128318
FERBSE 12 A2 HEHEERFE TR =R REAE
RMB’000
AR¥TR
Trade receivables Class A Lifetime ECL 0.6% 159,539
— contracts with customers (Note 20a) (not credit-impaired)
& 5 W IE 4RIA 2 HIEEME B &S
— BEFE4 (f7F20a) (EEERE)
Class B Lifetime ECL 2.2% 60,101
(not credit-impaired)
#4518 2 HIEEMEE &S
(EEERE)
Class C Lifetime ECL 6.6% 82,756
(not credit-impaired)
#RIC 2 HIEEEE &R
(EEERE)
302,396
Loan receivable (Note 19) N/A 12m ECL 3.2% 13,000
(not credit-impaired)
FENE R (I EE19) iE A 1218 A e EiE B B8
(EEERE)
Contract assets (Note 21) N/A Lifetime ECL 0.6% 6,536
(not credit-impaired)
BHEE (H:21) TE A 2 HIEEEEEE
(EEERE)
Other receivables (Note 20a) Note 12m ECL 0.0% 5,933
(not credit-impaired)
H b pE Y E (M 3E20a) B3E 128 AT A E B 1R
(EEERE)
12m ECL 3.2% 20,409
(not credit-impaired)
1218 R R E B &8
(EEERE)
Lifetime ECL 6.5% 31,048
(not credit-impaired)
T HIEEEEEE
(EEERE)
Lifetime ECL 100.0% 300
(credit-impaired)
2 HIEEEEEIE
(EERIE) 57,690
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. SRIARMBEARER(E
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BIEEREEREEZREBE (E)
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EE R R EFE ()
Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and deposits E A EWTE - FEW I A B R IZ% (B
(continued)
Gross carrying
amount as at
Credit risk Average 31 December
characteristic 12m or lifetime ECL loss rate 2018
20184
12A31H#K)
EE R 128 A2 B i E B 518 T EE R BREAE
RMB’000
ARBEFT
Trade receivables Class A Life ECL 0.5% 114,212
— contracts with customers (Note 20a) (not credit-impaired)
Z ZEWEIE #RIA THITEREEEIE
—EP&a# (MFE20a) (EEERE)
Class B Lifetime 2.1% 23,246
(not credit-impaired)
#5IB SHITEEEEEIE
(EEERE)
Class C Lifetime 6.3% 10,330
(not credit-impaired)
#5IC S HITEEEEEIE
(EEERE)
Class D Lifetime 24.8% 1,852
(not credit-impaired)
#5ID S HITEEEEEIE
(EZERE)
149,640
Note:  For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past Wi - BASEERREENE @ AEBEHOHERTIEE
due information to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly Emfg B BRI KEDBEEIEN -
since initial recognition:
2019 20195
Past due Not past due Total
g KREE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TT AREFT
Other receivables HoAth e WokoE 300 57,390 57,690
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. SRIARMBEARER(E
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BIEEREEREEZREBE (E)
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EE R R EFE ()

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and deposits E A EWTE - FEW I A B R IZ% (B
(continued)

The following tables shows the movements in lifetime ECL that Ti’%ﬂﬂ_?E?Ziﬁ%ﬂ:ii?iféf%EEW%IEEEWE’]%HJ?TE
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified HzEEIEEs)

approach.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HATEM 2HITEH
FEER EEFE
(BIEERE) (EERE) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT
As at 1 January 2018 #2018F1 A1H 1,185 - 1,185
Impairment losses recognised EERAEEE 3,124 - 3,124
Impairment losses reversed B EREEE (2,126) - (2,126)
As at 31 December 2018 #2018F12A31H 2,183 - 2,183
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 7,695 - 7,695
Impairment losses reversed B EREEE (2,175) - (2,175)
As at 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 7,703 - 7,703
The following tables shows the movements in lifetime ECL that has TR BBECEREOEERRN 2 PENE
been recognised for contract assets under the simplified approach. BB 28 -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

2 HITEH 2 HATEH

FEEE FEFHE
(BREERE) (FEERE) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT AREEFT

As at 1 January 2018 and R2018F1 A1H K

31 December 2018 201812 H31H - - -
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 38 - 38
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H 38 - 38

152 Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

n-/T\

31.

B RS R AR BT AL

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and deposits
(continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs earlier.

The following tables shows reconciliation of loss allowances that
has been recognised for loan receivable.

As at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 #2018F1A1H %2018 123318
Impairment losses recognised B AEEE

As at 31 December 2019 R2019512A31H

The following tables shows reconciliation of loss allowances that
has been recognised for other receivables.

As at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 #2018F1A1H %2018F12A31H
Impairment losses recognised EHERRESE

As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H

3. TRTIARVFEEMEE ()

B EREE B EREEEK (@)

EEmBRBETE ()

E MR ~ JENL BT

EH AR R e ()

MAEMNBETES ABREREN BN  BEER

QEAEEE
(AP B EERBE)

Ig o

TRIIRE

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

I (NEHADENTRAKERF)
CAKEEMIEE S EUGR

AR W E SRR R A B R B B AR

(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2HRES 2HEH
12f8A FEFR REER
BECEFE (BEERE) (FERE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
421 - - 421
421 - - 421
TRINRE B EMERFIE RN SRR LR o
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2HES ZHEE
12184 FERE FEFE
BECEFE (EBEERE (FERE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
658 2,005 300 2,963
658 2,005 300 2,963

(T E) EEEEERLR « —F—
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. SRIARMBEARER(E
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BIEEREEREEZREBE (E)
(continued)

Liquidity risk /)niﬁﬁfﬂ /ff%

In management of liquidity risk, the Group’s management monitors EERBECRRE AEBETREEERTH#RE
and maintains a reasonable level of bank balances and cash which i'r% [B18 & 2 y’]E’]AEEﬂ@ZE’\]%Eﬁ,%ﬁ% KIR& A AR
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s EEHEERBESARER S RERDNEE -
operations and mitigate the impacts of fluctuations in cash flows. AEBEGRELEBEENR G U RRITRAME
The Group relies on the cash generated from operating activities HIERRBESHEERIR °

and bank and other borrowings as the main source of liquidity.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRFNAEESHBENBRTEOFE - 2R
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up RASE A ERKNHNRZT A RN SR A EARE
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based R MERR -

on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

Weighted Over 1 year Total
average Less than 4months  andlessthan  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate imonth  1-3months  to 12 months 5years cash flows amount

BERE  HE-ER  ARRRE
nETERE  R-BAR -EfiA =k SREF il £ R
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARRTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARRTR

As at 31 December 2019 20195128318
Financial liabilities SRAE
Trade and other payables B REMERNTE - 97,057 124,384 - - 21,441 221,441
Bank borrowings /TR 8.02 6,115 13,186 81,640 - 100,941 96,891
Other borrowings a0 12.32 - - 1,545 - 1,545 1,458
Leases liabiltes HERE 570 - 605 1,210 2548 4,363 4,101
Total @t 103,172 138,175 84,395 2,548 328,290 323,801
Weighted Over 1 year Total
average Lessthan 4months  andlessthan  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 1-3months  to 12 months 5 years cash flows amount
BEAZE BE-ER AETRE

mErRE  R-BAR  -Z=ER TZfEA )ik ik e BEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
%  ARETn  AREFr  ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR

As at 31 December 2018 H2018F12A318

Financial liabilities SHER

Trade and other payables BARAMERTE - 84,794 - - - 84,794 84,794
Bank borrowings R 8.08 2,069 10,743 76,844 - 89,856 83,523
Leases liabllties HEBE 588 - 647 1,940 2,580 5173 5045
Total @t 87,063 1,390 78,784 2,586 179,823 173,362
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31.

BB MR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
values of various financial assets.

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the management establishes
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurement.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of
certain types of financial instruments.

Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

The Group’s investments in film and drama are measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2018 and both the investments in film and
drama were derecognised in 2019. The Group’s bill receivables are
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2019. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined (in particular, the valuation technique and inputs
used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

3. TRTIARVFEEMEE ()
ERMIANDAENE
A FERUEBAEENIEESREMEELR
BEHEF -
R BHRME - ARENEDEERAARESR
2
Witst—IHEERRENRAER - REBRRAA
EROAmSRRREE - HEAESE R AR
I AIEEEEREEMNGERTRBABEE
AVRER

REEFMERNGHERNEELIEERATBRETS
BENBARE  AGHETEESRTANDR

=

AEEUEEMEELZ LA ETENEHEEN L

SfE

R2018%F12A831H » AEEH
REFERREZ MEIENREER2019F K IHE
19F12A31H  AEERKEREAARE
ATE e T%hﬁﬁ%mﬂ#muﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
AR L HRATR ARG E R RE AR

MAREANEEREGASBNBEREE ﬁ%%
DREBR(E—REE=H) -

R o 720

BYLBISKRERR

Valuation Significant Relationship of
Fair value techniques unobservable unobservable to
Financial asset Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs inputs fair value
RERTR EXFAH TUBR@AYEY
SRER RTISIBHHALE AREER [EL PN ¢ ESOPN ¢ ARENBR
31/12/2019 31/12/2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETT
Financial assets at FVTPL - 6,050 Level3 The discounted cash Expected future cash  The higher the expected
flow method was flow future cash flow, the
used to capture future higher the fair value.
economic benefitsto  Discounted rate
be derived from the The higher the discounted
ownership of these rate, the lower the fair
investments. value.
Key unobservable
inputs, cash flows and
discount rate.
BARBHABHZ =R HRREREEZANER BHARRERE EHAREERENS
SRAE RAEZSREMES AREHE -
)RR B BRE
BREME  AnEY
FENBRREARE & -
RengRURE .
i (HE) BREEBRAT « —Z—NFFR
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31.

B RS R AR BT AL

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that are measured at

3. SWMIANEKREREEE

THMITANDRERE(E)

AEEUEEMEERAAETENEHEEN L

fair value on a recurring basis (continued) JlE ()
Valuation Significant Relationship of
Fair value techniques unobservable unobservable to
Financial asset Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs inputs fair value
RERTR EXTAE TABREBAYEY
SREE RTISIBMHARE AREER BREABE TR ABE AREHBR
31/12/2019 31/12/2018
20194 2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFT
Trade receivables backed 38,000 - Level2 The discounted cash flow Discounted rate The higher the
by hills (Note) method was used to discounted rate, the
capture the nominal lower the fair value.
amount of the Bill
Key unobservable inputs:
discounted rate.
ZBRERNE HRKEE 38,000 - B2 HEReREEANTE BRE HREME AR EUE
i3] SEEE

Note:  Due to the short-term nature of the Bill, its carrying amounts are considered

approximate to its fair value.

The sensitivity analysis on changes in fair value of these financial
assets as are as follows:

A 1% increase/decrease in the discount rate while all other variables
keep constant, would decrease/increase the carrying amount by
RMB138,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: by RMB99,000).

A 5% increase/decrease in revenue attributable to the Group while
all other variables keep constant, would increase/decrease the

carrying amount by RMB298,000 as at 31 December 2018.
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31.

B RS R AR BT AL

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. SMIAREKERER(E

MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued) SBMIENAAEFE @)

Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that are measured at PEBULEMEEZ R BT ENEHEEN A

fair value on a recurring basis (continued) 1B (&)

As disclosed in Note 17, Investment A and the Investment B WMEE7ATHRER - IR EARIABE 20195 42 L1

were derecognised in 2019, the following table gives information 2 TRIBHABNNEETZESREEAAEN

about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined ﬁﬂ (CHEFEANGERMRBAZE) UKk

(in particular, the valuation technique and inputs used), as well AREFEERERAZENAIBEREERBENR

as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value REEFE—REE=H) -

measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree

to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value as at Valuation Significant Relationship of
derecognition Fair value techniques unobservable unobservable
Financial asset date hierarchy and key inputs inputs to fair value
R ERER B EIRY RERMTR EXTTH FABZGAHEY
SRER M AREER HRGARE LN ¢ ARENBR
RMB'000
AREFT

Financial assets at FVTPL 20,409 Level 3 The discounted cash  Discounted rate The higher the discounted
flow method was used rate, the lower the fair
to withdraw these value
investments.

RORBHABRNEREE 20,409 £=4 HRRERBER BB E HEEWE  AREME
REEZERE

The sensitivity analysis on changes in fair value of these financial
assets as at derecognition date are as follows:

A 1% increase/decrease in the discount rate while all other variables
keep constant, would decrease/increase the carrying amount as at
derecognition date by RMB36,000.

A 5% increase/decrease in revenue attributable to the Group while
all other variables keep constant, would increase/decrease the
carrying amount as derecognition date by RMB1,020,000.

%&%%ﬂé?%%i%EE%M@ﬁ
RREDHTAT -

EE UL

BRI L7t/ T 19 T AT EAL B BR T
BIR A IEBERR B ER 0 PR T E 4G 0 48 00 A R 95
36,0007T °

1185 7 5 [ B A1 R 2288 0, SR 5% ifn FiT 78 L 4t S AR

FAE - AR IR A IR BREE S, 4
AF#1,020,0007T °

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

ERTARVEEAMEE (HE

Financial assets

at FVTPL

BRARETA

BENESREE

RMB’000

ARBTFT

As at 1 January 2018 720181 A1H 13,000
Purchase BE 6,050
Transfer out of level 3 (Note 19) EHE =R (HEE19) (13,000)
As at 31 December 2018 7H2018F12HA31H 6,050
Purchase e 15,000
Total gains in profit or loss (Note 6) RBmAE B (F5E6) 2,594
Settlements e (3,235)
Transfer out of level 3 BRE=F (20,409)

As at 31 December 2019

Fair value gains or losses on financial assets at FVTPL are included
in “other income, gains and loss”.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Transfers of financial assets

As disclosed in Note 20b, the Group has transferred a bill
receivable amounted to RMB38,000,000 (31 December 2018: nil)
to its supplier by endorsing the bill receivable on a full recourse
basis. As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and
rewards relating to the bill receivable, it continues to recognise the
full carrying amount of the bill receivable and trade payables.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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32.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 32. BEEBELSENWHIER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRENFEEREEDNEEEE2EBFIE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BREASIIFRCEDY - MERBMELNEER
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for RenBCEIHERKASREFTRAEEHLES
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the ReRERDBEAMETHNESRENAE -
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.
Transaction
costs
attributable to
issue of new Amounts Bank
ordinary shares Lease Dividends due to and other
payables liabilities payable  related parties borrowings Total
BANEBRR
LR A HE FEfEEE RITREM
Ef5E HE8E EfRE HE EES by
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETIL ANEBTT ARBFTL ARETT AREFR ARETIL
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1A1A - 7,167 - - 71,150 78,317
Financing cash flow BABSHE (529) 2122) (54,000 - 18,850 (37,797)
Prepaid quarantee fee BAERE - - - - (1477) (1477)
Increase in deferred EELD
listing expenses FIXEM 1,381 - - - - 1,381
Disposal of subsidlaries HERBAT
(Note 28(2) & (o) (FzE28(@E(b) - - - 5,980 (5,000 980
Dividends declared EERRE - - 54,000 - - 54,000
At 31 December 2018 1201812 A31H 856 5,045 - 5,980 83,523 95,404
Financing cash flow RERSTE (20548) (1,950) - (3.253) 14,458 (11,299
Early termination of a lease RAIR RS - (3879 - - - (3,879
Additions RE - 4,885 - - - 4,885
Decrease in deferred BT L™
listing expenses RS (1,381) - - - - (1381)
Transaction costs attributable to ~ E4TH7 Z @Rk
issue of new ordinary shares ~ FEIER SRR 22,448 - - - - 22,448
Others Eth - - - - 368 368
Distribution to the owners PETEEA
(Note 15) (H515) - - - (950) - (950)
Waive from amount due to HEEATRL
Ms. Wang TE - - - (1,777) - (1777)
At 31 December 2019 12019128318 1,375 4101 - - 98,349 103,825

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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33.

34.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements
for the use of leased properties for three years. On the lease
commencement, the Group recognised RMB4,885,000 of right-of-
use asset and RMB4,885,000 lease liability.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@

(b)

Name and relationship

Name Relationship

Ms. Wang Controlling Shareholder

Ruicheng Hexin A company controlled by
Ms. Wang

Wuxi Ruicheng A company controlled by
Ms. Wang

Qingdao Chaoqun A company controlled by
Ms. Wang

Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye A company controlled by
Ms. Wang

Related party balances
Non-trade nature

Amounts due from related parties:

Ruicheng Hexin E Y N
Wuxi Ruicheng w5
Qingdao Chaoqun s BB
Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye Bldst Fre
Total st

Note:  The amount is RMB3.

The maximum amounts outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2019 from Ruicheng Hexin, Wuxi Ruicheng,
Qingdao Chaoqun and Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye were RMB3,
RMB24,000, RMB14,826,000 and RMB100, respectively.
The maximum amounts outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2018 from Ruicheng Hexin, Wuxi Ruicheng
and Qingdao Chaoqun were RMB3, RMB24,000 and
RMB14,946,000, respectively. These amounts were non-
trade nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.
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33.

34.

FTEHFRERS

FR - AFREREHAEEEMET L =FHE

Sk - ZEHERBE

AEEEREAEE

EAR¥4,885,0007T M E & & AR #4,885,000

IT o
BEHERS
(a) HAEREBHE
®E [£2RE
T+ JERRAR R
PN BT 2T A
SRR BTz TR A
&S BT ZEFINA
IErim R BTz A
(b) BT HER
HEZMHE
JEWETRE T 500F -
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREBEFT
- _ (Note)
- 24
2,719 14,826
100 -
2,819 14,850
it - £EABARKEIT °
REE2019F12831HIEFE - REFHK
2 BHHHN - SEBHELILERBRNES
KREEFES R AARKEST - ARKE24,000

T~ AR¥14,826,0007T & A R#1007T °
REZE2018F12A31HIEFE » REmHAAK
5  ERHEBELESBENREAEERE
DRIBAREST « ARKE24,0007T K& AR
14,946,0007C - ZEHREAIIEESHHE - &
A~ BN BIREREE -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Related party balances (continued)
Non-trade nature (continued)

Amounts due to a related party:

Qingdao Chaogqun s BB

The amount is non-trade nature, unsecured, carries interest
at a rate of 5.23% per annum and is repayable on demand.
The amount was fully settled in May 2019.

Amount due to a related party and reclassified as a liability
associated with asset classified as held for distribution to
owners:

Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye I 2

The amount is non-trade nature, unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand. The Group repaid RMB30,000
in March 2019 and the rest amounts were distributed to the
owners after Beijing Yuehe was established.

Remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group

The emoluments of key management during the reporting
period are as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Performance related bonuses
Retirement benefits contributions

FE KRR
RIAARATEAL
RRTE AR

34.

B E R 5 (%)

(b) EAEETS A ek ()
HEGIHE (H)
JET SR 77 7R -

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETF T
- 5,000

ZHERIFESMNE - IR - 125.28%MF
MR B RARERIEE - ZHIADH2019
FoABEEEE ©

JEIT BT 7 50 R R B3 JE I35 (E IR B A 70
REENEF 7SR EAHE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETF T
- 980

ZHBEREEHUE - EIKE - 2B RAR
TREE - AEBR2019F34EBEARE
30,0007t © E&£S BRI RIS 1E DR
FHAA °

() FEEXEEEBEAEZHMH

AEBETEERA SRS EHME B

™
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBFT
2,230 1,987
- 100
170 117
2,400 2,204
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 35. ZARATMEBARFE
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RIERRARFEELEZEFENRNBARFE
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below. A -
Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/  ordinary share/ At 31 December
Name of entities establishment  registered capital R12A318
AL/ BREIRERER Kind of legal entity 2019 2018 Principal activities
EREE RS R/HRER EABRER 2019% 2018F TEER
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B BE  ER i
% % % %
Ruicheng BVI BVI USD0.01 Company with limited 100 - N/A N/A~ Investment holding
liability
HHARERES EBEREE  001ER BRAR TER TER  REAER
Ruicheng HK Hong Kong HKD100 Company with limited - 100 N/A N/A~ Investment holding
liability
HHER 3 10087 BRAE TER  TER RERR
Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye (Note )  The PRC USD12,832,861 Company with limited - 100 - - Investment holding
liability
B &z (i) HE 12,832,861 7T BRAR RERR
Beijing Ruicheng The PRC RMB166,740,317.32  Company with limited - 100 - 100 Provision of advertising services
liability
R HE AR166,740,317.32 BR DA RS
Shanghai Kailun The PRC RMBS5,000,000 Company with limited - 100 - 100 Provision of advertising services
liability
LR i ARE5000000  BRAFA REEERG
Xizang Wanmei The PRC RMBS5,000,000 Company with limited - 100 - 100 Provision of advertising services
liability
EEEE e ARM50000000  ARAAF heft B SR
Lingyu (Beijing) Cultural Media ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 Company with limited - 88 - 88 Provision of advertising services
Co., Ltd" liability
BEURXLEFERAT  PE ARE1,0000000  ARAA Rt EERS
Shanghai Ruicheng Jiahe Cu\tural The PRC RMB1,100,000 Company with limited N/A N/A - 100 Inactive
Media Co., Ltd. (Note i) liability
DERIRIULERERAR HE AR1,100,0007 BRAF TER TEAR TEHRT
(Htzi)
Notes: Bt -
i The entity was established in the PRC and became a sino-foreign i ZERERAEIR T B RIS BT -
investment enterprise.
i The entity was deregistered on 15 February 2019. i, ZERER2019%2 16 A ##53 »

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.

* English names are for identification purpose only.
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36.

37.

B RS R AR BT AL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 36.

OF THE COMPANY

Information about the financial position of the Company at the end

of the reporting period includes:

PBRR TR A DR E

RIRESR - ARBZHBARRERNT -

At 31 December

2019
A2019F12831H
RMB’000
ARBETR
Non-current Asset EMBENEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHTE A RRIIRE 94,665
Current Assets mMBEE
Prepayments BB 129
Bank balances and cash RITEBRKIES 104
233
Total Assets BEBE 94,898
Capital and Reserves A& AR R
Share capital &N 3,578
Reserves i 90,196
Total Equity TEmiERE 93,774
Current Liability mEBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNRK 1,124
Total Equity and Liability BmkalEEsE 94,898
Movement in the Company’s reserves AARRHENES
Share Capital  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R ERE BEXfRE LB ECH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At the date of incorporation Nt ava=h: - - (4,143) (4,143
Loss and total comprehensive expense BRBEREERTEE
for the period - - (18,715) (18,715)
Waiver of listing expenses by a subsidiary MBAREME LM% - 23,114 - 23,114
Share premium from Hengrui Co., Ltd. JR EHengrui Co., Ltd. AR (7% 2,000 - - 2,000
Issue of shares under the Loan Capitalisation BEEFEMCBEIRG 1,777 - - 1,777
Issue of shares under the Global Offering RIEZHEEEITRG 111,225 - - 111,225
Transaction costs of issue of new ordinary shares (T3 L BRI HHA (22,448) - - (22,448)
Issue of shares under the Capitalisation Issue RIEERCBITEIRG (2,614) - - 2,614)
Balance at 31 December 2019 2019512 A31 B &5 89,940 23,114 (22,858) 90,196
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. WEHERSE

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) in
China and the subsequent quarantine measures imposed by the
Chinese government in early 2020 have had a negative impact on
the operations of the Group since January 2020, as most of the
Group’s operations are located in China and the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are located in China. Certain customers
had not yet been able to resume operations on site, resulting in
delay in collectability of the Group’s trade receivables. The Directors
are still assessing the financial impact that the COVID-19 will have
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at the date
that these financial statements are authorised for issue.

FE201 95T BB AR S ([COVID-19)) MIBEE R Hig
B BT 720204 #) & e B9 4% & 1E B 202041 A
MRS AEEEEERBEFE  JYARAERD
KE /‘Mﬂfqﬂl BEAEENEBHEFLER
URAFE - BETHEFEREMERSEEEUAEE
TR EIE S EWFIE - RS BHRERERET
AW - BENAEFECOVID-1958 B AR E B4z 4 Bt
EHRRIEXNTIETE -
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Four Years Financial Summary
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Results
Revenue

Gross Profit
Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from continuing
operations

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Assets and liabilities

Property and equipment

Other intangible assets

Goodwill

Deferred tax assets

Trade receivables, prepayments and
other receivables

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Earnings per share

From continuing and discontinued
operations — Basic (RMB)

From continuing operations
— Basic (RMB)
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BERA
B A A A
PSR s

R EFEIE R E B F N

NOIEIAMEL
RAFRERR
SRR R
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BERGAE
[UEISES
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[EEN

G4
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ES R
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KREREREED
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2019 2018 2017 2016
—B-hE “T-N\FE “TtE “TAH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFT AREFIT AREFIT
845,820 783,364 660,612 313,082
106,828 95,611 83,365 43,325
(7,576) (6,043) (1,803) (499)
56,134 62,469 51,355 22,093
(19,830) (15,846) (13,615) (6,327)
36,304 46,623 37,740 15,766
36,282 46,149 37,740 15,766
22 - - -
36,304 46,149 37,740 15,766
5,234 5,493 50,873 12,794

38 43 39 44

- - 60 -

2,789 638 131 107
443,700 208,515 182,759 109,915
208,597 65,101 82,276 88,650
216,961 90,726 148,280 101,996
214,497 87,931 135,042 94,829
214,355 87,811 135,042 94,829
3,578 80,800 80,000 80,000
210,777 7,011 55,042 14,829
214,355 87,811 135,042 94,829
142 120 - -
214,497 87,931 135,042 94,829
0.12 0.16 0.14 0.05
0.12 0.16 0.13 0.05




Glossary
FsAR

ABBREVIATIONS

“affiliate(s)”

(BB A L]

“AGM”
[BRBFERE]

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”

(408 sk [ =iz Al

“Audit Committee”
[BIZZE®

“Beijing Lingyu”
[HEm4EE]

“Beijing Ruicheng”

Bl 2

“Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye”

Bl Eikd

“Board”
[Efg]

“BVI”
[RBR TS

“CG Code”
[{2EE <P

“China” or “PRC”

[ E]

“Company” or “we” or “our Company”
or “the Company”

[ARA])

any person(s), directly or indirectly, controlling, controlled by or under direct or indirect common
control with another person(s)

HEKHEZRGHIZS-ATHREZ - ATEHINERAL - EBS - ATE I EESEELR
ZHIEER AL

the forthcoming annual general mesting for the year 2019 of the Company

AAFRO19F EERFERAFAS

the amended and restated articles of association of our Company conditionally adopted on 22
October 2019 which became effective upon the Listing Date, as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

RRTR2019F10 A22 B B IR RIS ET R B IEBERMA - K TAEHERT - #FnskiA
Hih = gek - W Em HEER

the audit committee under the Board
EEGE ERELEY

Lingyu (Beijing) Cultural Media Co., Ltd.* ((8F (IER) X(LEEAR AR, a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 29 October 2018 and an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, which was owned as to 88.0%, 7.0% and 5.0% by Beijing
Ruicheng, Mr. Feng Xing and Ms. Lin Zi, respectively, as at the Latest Practicable Date

EB LR L EBEAR AR - BN2018F10A20HRF BRI MEREFELRR - AXAR
WEEFE2EMBAR - REEERAIITEE - Bt - SEEERMELTDBIES
88.0% * 7.0%}25.0%

Beijing Ruicheng Advertising Co., Ltd.* (bt RIGEE S BR A R]) (formerly known as Beijing
Ruicheng Advertising Co., Ltd.* Gt RIR#HE SN BRAR]), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 9 April 2003 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

I ES AR AR (AIEIL IR ESRMHAERAT) - 1R2003F4 9B R EIRK KA
REMFQTE  ARARKEZIEZENBE AT

Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye Public Relations Consulting Co., Ltd.* (1t RIm#i s 2 A BER AR A
7)) (formerly known as Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye Advertising Co., Ltd.* (dt FIs = £ EE AR A
7)), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 21 December 2015 and was wholly-
owned subsidiary of Ruicheng Hexin

IR EAHRBERAR GBS EEESEBRAR) - R2016F 12521 AR
B BERBEERRARAREEEMNBE AR

board of directors of the Company

ARRERE

the British Virgin Islands
REERES

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

LRI SR AR E R B E AT R

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purposes of this annual report and for geographical
reference only (unless otherwise indicated), excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

REARANE  ERAFRREHRMFL2EMS - TEEES - FERFFITRRERE

N53

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited (58 (1 B) 1% S E B R A 7)), an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 15 January 2019

e (PR EEEE AR AR - 201961 B15HRHSH B EMA I EREER AR

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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Glossary
FsAR

“Director(s)” director(s) of the Company

= RARMES

“Global Offering” the Hong Kong Public Offer and the International Placing (as defined in the Prospectus)
[2EREE] ERENABRERBERLE (T& ABRER)

»oa "o« "now »

“Group”, “the Group”, “we”, “our” or “us our Company and our subsidiaries at the relevant time or, where the context refers to any

time prior to our Company becoming the holding company of our present subsidiaries, such

subsidiaries and the business carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) our

predecessors, and “we”, “our” or “us” shall be construed accordingly

[ %EE 5[5 M) RRFREMBELRNEBRRE - S EMERAR R AR AN E R T MERA A
RIS - AR S ME R A RZEM B A RSk (R FIERME) RMHIAT SRR FEEDN
5% 0w [ FRAP S RPN ] IMEIRERR R

“HK$” or “HKD” Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency for the time being of Hong Kong

[l ERETEEET

“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

(&) HEEEEAITTHRE

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar” Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

[EERNBFERLDER] BAETRBSELERAT]

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards, which include standards, amendments and

interpretations promulgated by the IASB and the International Accounting Standards and
interpretation issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee

[ B B 7 s 22 B BIFR B 5 E 2 R - BIEER G ERIEE S MM ER]  BFT AR - UREF g5 A
ZESBMHOBERGHEL R

“Independent Non-executive Directors” the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
(B IEITES] RATIMBEULIFHITES
“Independent Third Party(ies)” an individual(s) or a company(ies) who or which is/are independent of and not connected

with (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) any Directors, chief executive or substantial
Shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules), of our Company, our subsidiaries or any
of their respective associates

(B E=7] BURARR  HNB ARSI EAMSEBBEAZEMNES  FETBRABRFERR(E
F R IR BRESHEEMEE(EER ETRAD 2 ALHAT

“Jing Gen” Jing Gen Holdings Limited (48 E %% A IR /A 7)), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 19 December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 52.43%, 18.65%, 21.96%
and 6.96% by Mr. Leng Xuejun, Ms. Lin Zi, employees of Beijing Ruicheng and an Independent
Third Party, respectively

(&5 REEBRERAT - N2018F12A19R R EBHRBESEMARINERETAT - Dol
BESE  MEZL A RGHEE R —EBILE=%552.43% * 18.65% ~ 21.96% K
6.96%

“Jujia” Jujia Co., Ltd (BEEBER AT, a company with limited liability incorporated in the BVI on 19
December 2018 and is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Na

[Ef£] EEARAF - R2018F 12 A 19ANEBERREXMAIMNEREELRR  dFPtH
BHER

“Listing Date” the date on which our Shares are listed and Shares first commence dealing on the Main Board,
being 12 November 2019

[ HE#] IR ER LR EREE 2 HE - B12019F11 4128

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as
amended from time to time

[ LR Al B 32 PRraE 2 AR Al
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Glossary
FsAR

“Model Code”

[fR2Esp A

“Ms. Wang”
[E&t]

“Nomination Committee”

REZEE]
“Prospectus”

(TR ETE]

“Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye”

[EBmHEE]

“Remuneration Committee”

[FEZz8e]

“Relevant Period”

(e R

“Renminbi” or “RMB”
[AR#]

“Reporting Period”
(&

“Ruichengdemao”

[BhaiEr]

“Ruichengtianhe”

AR

“Ruicheng BVI”

[ By 50 S a8 A R

“Ruicheng HK”

[T &)

“SFO”

[ 7 L EE 5D

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules
FRAIEER10PAE E T EITAEFETES R HMIRETR

Ms. Wang Lei (£%), one of our Controlling Shareholders

FTEZL  BEMNERERZ—

the nomination committee under the Board
EEGE NMEEELEE

the prospectus of the Company dated 31 October 2019 in connection with the Hong Kong
public offering of the Company
RARRBBHA-ZE-NFTA=Z+—RERERRRESEAREENHRER

Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye Advertising Co., Ltd.* (& &lnism2EES AR A A)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 7 December 2018, and an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

EERUREREARAT - R2018F12A7ARFREKIMERETRR - AARARIKRE
E2EMBEAR

the remuneration committee under the Board

EXZgE THHZES

the Period from the Listing Date to December 31,2019
HEmRPE—"T-NF+-A=+—HHOHH

the lawful currency of the PRC
PEVEFEE B AR

the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NAF+-_A=+—BILFE

Ruichengdemao Co., Ltd (##{E% AR A F]), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 19 December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 83.33% by Mr. Feng Xing
and 16.67% by Ms. Liu Yang, respectively

IniEXBR AT - N2018F12 A 19RN BB RBEERMA LN EAREETARF - AIHESE
£ R BI85 25 BB 4983.33% 52 16.67%

Ruichengtianhe Co., Ltd (##AAKRERZAF]), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 19 December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 32.17% by Ms. Wang Zeli
and 67.83% by Independent Third Parties, respectively

W ARBRAR - R2018F12A19R N EBRERBESEMA N BEREEAR - AEERE
R RIBIE=T 7 RIHEEKI32.17% 5% 67.83%

Ruicheng Media Co., Ltd (H#{EE AR A R]), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 28 January 2019 and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
HHEEERAT  R2019F1 28N EBE R B MR ZOFREE AR  BARF
BERZ2EWBAR

Ruicheng (Hong Kong) Media Co., Limited (i (&%) EE AR A7), a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 February 2019 and an indirectly wholly subsidiary of our
Company

I (BB EEARAT - R2019F2 A21 BN EBAMK LM ERAR - AARARHEES
NG

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EBEDIFESEE S LR IRY ETRHER] ~ fRsAE MR &R

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « —F-—AFFR
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Glossary
FsAR

“Shanghai Kailun”

[ Eigsifw]

“Share(s)”
(A&7 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
MR ]

“Share Option Scheme”

[RERRERT 2]
“Stock Exchange”
Bk 32 P |
“Yingheng”

[&18]

Shanghai Kailun Advertising Co., Ltd.* (E/&8lESHR A A]), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 17 June 2010 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

EEIREEERAT - R2010F6 AI7THRFBKIMAREEIAR - ARAAFREES
BB AR

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company

AN FRE A ZAREEC.01E LAY E Bk

holder(s) of the Shares
ESHESESUN

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 22 October 2019, the
principal terms of which are summarised in the section headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the prospectus

RRATFF20195F10 722 B A R RN B AERT & - H = ZIEFE R B Z 12 MY 87
[D.fEMREEI] —&n

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERMERHMARAT

Yingheng Co., Ltd (BBF R A &]), a company with limited liability incorporated in the BVI on 19
December 2018 and is wholly-owned by Ms. Wang, and one of our Controlling Shareholders
BIEARAR  R2018F 12 19N EBHRHEF MK INBEREELRF - AEXTRAK
REEP—BIERER2EES

Youyi Co., Ltd ((B=EFR/A 7)), a company with limited liability incorporated in the BVI on 19
December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 53.38% by Ms. Wang Xin and 46.62% by
Mr. Wang Pingpin, respectively

BSAEBRRA] - N2018F12 A19REABE RS MK INEREERR - AEME TR
T A8 A B £953.38% £ 46.62%

per cent.
AL
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